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WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
FORM 10-K
Report for the Fiscal Year Ended August 25, 2018

Forward-Looking Information

Certain of the matters discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which involve risks and uncertainties. A number of factors could
cause actual results to differ materially from these statements, including, but not limited to, competition and new product introductions by competitors, our
ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, business or production disruptions, sales order cancellations, risk related to compliance with debt covenants and
leverage ratios, stock price volatility, availability of labor, a slowdown in the economy, low consumer confidence, the effect of global tensions, increases in
interest rates, availability of credit, risk related to cyclicality and seasonality, slower than anticipated sales of new or existing products, integration of operations
relating to merger and acquisition activities generally, inadequate liquidity or capital resources, inventory and distribution channel management, our ability to
innovate, our reliance on large dealer organizations, significant increase in repurchase obligations, availability and price of fuel, availability of chassis and other
key component parts, increased material and component costs, exposure to warranty claims, ability to protect our intellectual property, exposure to product
liability claims, dependence on information systems and web applications, any unexpected expenses related to the implementation of our Enterprise Resource
Planning system, risk related to data security, governmental regulation, including for climate change, risk related to anti-takeover provisions applicable to us,
and other factors which may be disclosed throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the “forward-
looking statements" are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Undue reliance should not be placed
on these "forward-looking statements," which speak only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any "forward-
looking statements," whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except as required by law or the rules of the New York Stock
Exchange. We advise you, however, to consult any further disclosures made on related subjects in future quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports
on Form 8-K that are filed or furnished with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").
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PART |
Item 1. Business.
General

The "Company," "Winnebago Industries," "we," "our," and "us" are used interchangeably to refer to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, as appropriate in the context.

Winnebago Industries, Inc., headquartered in Forest City, lowa, is a leading U.S. manufacturer with a diversified portfolio of recreation vehicles ("RV"s) and
marine products used primarily in leisure travel and outdoor recreation activities. We produce our motorhomes in manufacturing facilities in lowa and Oregon;
our travel trailer and fifth wheel trailers in Indiana; and our marine products in Florida. We distribute our RV and marine products primarily through independent
dealers throughout the U.S. and Canada, who then retail the products to the end consumer. We also distribute our marine products internationally through
independent dealers, who then retail the products to the end consumer.

We were incorporated under the laws of the state of lowa on February 12, 1958, and adopted our present name on February 28, 1961. Our executive offices
are located at 605 West Crystal Lake Road in Forest City, lowa. Our telephone number is (641) 585-3535.

Available Information

Our website, located at www.wgo.net, provides additional information about us. On our website, you can obtain, free of charge, this and prior year Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all of our other filings with the SEC. Our recent press releases are
also available on our website. Our website also contains important information regarding our corporate governance practices. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Principal Products

Beginning in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we have five operating segments: 1) Winnebago motorhomes, 2) Winnebago towables, 3) Grand Design
towables, 4) Winnebago specialty vehicles, and 5) Chris-Craft marine. We evaluate performance based on each operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA, as
defined within Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which
excludes certain corporate administration expenses and non-operating income and expense.

Our two reportable segments include: 1) Motorhome (comprised of products that include a motorized chassis as well as other related manufactured products
and services) and 2) Towable (comprised of products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle as well as other related
manufactured products and services), which is an aggregation of the Winnebago towables and Grand Design towables operating segments.

The Corporate / All Other category includes the Winnebago specialty vehicles and Chris-Craft marine operating segments as well as expenses related to
certain corporate administration expenses for the oversight of the enterprise. These expenses include items such as corporate leadership and administration
costs. Previously, these expenses were allocated to each operating segment.

Prior year segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current reportable segment presentation. The reclassifications included removing the
corporate administration expenses from both the Motorhome and Towable reportable segments and removing Winnebago specialty vehicles from the
Motorhome reportable segment, as we begin to dedicate leadership and focus on these operations separately from our Winnebago motorhomes operations.
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Motorhome

A motorhome is a self-propelled mobile dwelling used primarily as temporary living quarters during vacation and camping trips, or to support active and mobile
lifestyles. The Recreation Vehicle Industry Association ("RVIA") classifies motorhomes into three types, all of which we manufacture and sell under the
Winnebago brand name, which are defined as follows:

Type Description Winnebago products offerings
Class A Conventional motorhomes constructed directly on medium- and heavy-duty Gas: Adventurer, Intent, Sightseer, Suncruiser, Sunova,
(gas and diesel) truck chassis, which include the engine and drivetrain components. The Sunstar, Sunstar LX, Vista, Vista LX
living area and driver's compartment are designed and produced by the . . )
motorhome manufacturer. Diesel: Forza, Grand Tour, Horizon®, Journey, Tour, Via
Class B Panel-type vans to which sleeping, kitchen, and/or toilet facilities are Winnebago Touring Coach (Era, Paseo, Revel®, Travato)
(gas and diesel) added. These models may also have a top extension to provide more
headroom.
Class C Motorhomes built on van-type chassis onto which the motorhome Aspect, Cambria, Fuse, Minnie Winnie, Navion,
(gas and diesel) manufacturer constructs a living area with access to the driver's Outlook®, Spirit, Trend, View
compartment.

(1) New product offerings introduced in Fiscal 2018.

Our Class A, B, and C motorhomes are sold by dealers in the retail market with manufacturer's suggested retail prices ranging from approximately $80,000 to
$520,000, depending on size and model, plus optional equipment and delivery charges. Our motorhomes range in length from 21 to 44 feet.

Unit sales of our motorhomes for the last three fiscal years were as follows:

Year Ended @

Units August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Class A 2,997 31.4% 3,182 34.4% 2,925 31.4%

Class B 2,012 21.1% 1,541 16.6% 1,239 13.3%

Class C 4,539 47.5% 4,537 49.0% 5,143 55.3%
Total motorhomes 9,548 100.0% 9,260 100.0% 9,307 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

Motorhome parts and service activities represent revenues generated by service work we perform for retail customers at our Forest City, lowa and Junction
City, Oregon facilities as well as revenues from sales of RV parts. Our competitive strategy is to provide proprietary manufactured parts through our dealer
network, which we believe increases customer satisfaction and the value of our motorhomes.

Towable
A towable is a non-motorized vehicle that is designed to be towed by automobiles, pickup trucks, SUVs, or vans and is used as temporary living quarters for

recreational travel. The RVIA classifies towables in four types: conventional travel trailers, fifth wheels, folding camper trailers, and truck campers. We
manufacture and sell conventional travel trailers and fifth wheels under the Winnebago and Grand Design brand names, which are defined as follows:

Type Description Winnebago product offerings Grand Design product offerings
Travel trailer Conventional travel trailers are towed by Micro Minnie, Minnie, Minnie Drop, Minnie Imagine, Reflection, Transcend®
means of a hitch attached to the frame of the  Plus
vehicle.
Fifth wheel Fifth wheel trailers are constructed with a Minnie Plus Momentum, Reflection, Solitude

raised forward section that is connected to the
vehicle with a special fifth wheel hitch.

(1) New product offerings introduced in Fiscal 2018.

Our travel trailer and fifth wheel towables are sold by dealers in the retail market with manufacturer's suggested retail prices ranging from approximately
$15,000 to $110,000, depending on size and model, plus optional equipment and delivery charges.
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Unit sales of our towables for the last three fiscal years were as follows:

Year Ended @

Units August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Travel trailer 22,360 61.1% 13,650 60.7% 3,613 86.0%

Fifth wheel 14,229 38.9% 8,824 39.3% 586 14.0%
Total towables 36,589 100.0% 22,474 100.0% 4,199 100.0%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

On November 8, 2016, we closed on our acquisition of Grand Design RV, LLC ("Grand Design"), a fast-growing towables manufacturer in Middlebury, Indiana.
Grand Design manufactures travel trailers and fifth wheel products. With this acquisition, we have a broader and more balanced portfolio of motorized and
towable products and intend to capitalize on the opportunities across the RV market and to drive improved profitability and long-term value for shareholders.

Winnebago Specialty Vehicles

We also manufacture other specialty commercial vehicles primarily custom designed for the buyer's specific needs and requirements, such as law enforcement
command centers, mobile medical clinics, and mobile office space. These specialty commercial vehicles are manufactured in Forest City, lowa and sold
through our dealer network. In addition, we also provide commercial vehicles as bare shells to third-party upfitters for conversion at their facilities.

Chris-Craft

On June 4, 2018, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests of Chris-Craft USA, Inc. (“Chris-Craft"), a privately-owned company based in Sarasota, Florida.
As a result of this acquisition, we manufacture and sell premium quality boats in the recreational powerboat industry through an established global network of
independent authorized dealers.

Production

We generally produce motorhomes and towables to stock for dealers. We have some ability to increase our capacity by scheduling overtime and/or hiring
additional production employees or to decrease our capacity through the use of shortened work weeks and/or reducing head count. We have long been known
as an industry leader in innovation as each year we introduce new or redesigned products. These changes generally include new floor plans and sizes as well
as design and decor modifications. Most of our raw materials such as steel, aluminum, fiberglass, and wood products are obtainable from numerous sources.

Our motorhomes are primarily produced in the state of lowa at four different campuses. Beginning in Fiscal 2016, we also began assembling Class A diesel
motorhomes in our Junction City, Oregon facility. Our Motorhome business utilizes vertically integrated supply streams, with the principal exceptions being
chassis, engines, generators, and appliances that we purchase from reputable manufacturers. Certain parts, especially motorhome chassis, are available from
a small group of suppliers. In Fiscal 2018, we had two chassis suppliers, that each individually accounted for more than 10% of our Motorhome raw material
purchases.

Our towables are produced at two assembly campuses located in Middlebury, Indiana. The majority of components are comprised of frames, appliances, and
furniture, and are purchased from suppliers. In Fiscal 2018, we had one supplier that accounted for more than 10% of our Towable raw material purchases.

Backlog

We strive to balance timely order fulfillment to our dealers with the lead times suppliers require to efficiently source materials and manage costs. Production
facility constraints at peak periods also lead to fluctuations in backlog orders which we manage closely. The approximate revenue of our Motorhome backlog
was $157.6 million and $122.1 million as of August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, respectively. The approximate revenue of our Towable backlog was $244.9
million and $229.7 million as of August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, respectively. A more detailed description of our Motorhome and Towable order backlog
is included in Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Distribution and Financing

We market our products on a wholesale basis to a diversified independent dealer network located throughout the U.S. and, to a limited extent, in Canada,
Africa, Asia, Europe, Australia, and South America. Foreign sales were 10.0% or less of net revenues during each of the past three fiscal years.

As of August 25, 2018, our RV dealer network in the U.S. and Canada included approximately 550 Motorhome and Towable physical dealer locations, many of
which carry both products. One of our dealer organizations, La Mesa RV Center, Inc., accounted

6



Table of Contents

for 9.8% of our consolidated net revenue for Fiscal 2018, as this dealer sold our products in 11 dealership locations across four U.S. states.

We have sales and service agreements with dealers which are subject to annual review. Many of the dealers are also engaged in other areas of business,
including the sale of automobiles, trailers, or boats, and most dealers carry one or more competitive lines of RVs. We continue to place high emphasis on the
capability of our dealers to provide complete service for our products. Dealers are obligated to provide full service for owners of our products or, in lieu thereof,
to secure such service from other authorized providers.

We advertise and promote our products through national trade magazines, the distribution of product brochures, the Go RVing national advertising campaign
sponsored by RVIA, direct-mail advertising campaigns, various national promotional opportunities, and on a local basis through trade shows, television, radio,
and newspapers, primarily in connection with area dealers.

Sales to dealers are made on cash terms. Most dealers are financed on a "floorplan” basis under which a bank or finance company lends the dealer all, or
substantially all, of the purchase price, collateralized by a security interest in the merchandise purchased. As is customary in our industries, we typically enter
into a repurchase agreement with a lending institution financing a dealer's purchase of our product upon the lending institution's request and after completion of
a credit check of the dealer involved. Our repurchase agreements provide that, for up to 18 months after an RV unit is financed and up to 24 months after a
marine unit is financed, in the event of default by the dealer on the agreement to pay the lending institution and repossession of the unit(s) by the lending
institution, we will repurchase the financed merchandise from the lender at the amount then due, which is often less than dealer invoice. Our maximum
exposure for repurchases varies significantly from time to time, depending upon the level of dealer inventory, general economic conditions, demand for our
products, dealer location, and access to and the cost of financing. See Note 11, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments, of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Competition

The RV and marine markets are highly competitive with many other manufacturers selling products which compete directly with our products. Some of our
competitors are much larger than us, most notably in the towable RV market, which may provide these competitors additional purchasing power. The
competition in our industry is based upon design, price, quality, and service of the products. We believe our principal competitive advantages are our brand
strength, product quality, and our service after the sale. We also believe that our motorhome products have historically commanded a price premium as a result
of these competitive advantages.

Seasonality

The primary use of RVs and marine products for leisure travel and outdoor recreation has historically led to a peak retail selling season concentrated in the
spring and summer months and lower sales during winter months. Our sales are generally influenced by this pattern in retail sales, but sales can also be
affected by the level of dealer inventory. As a result, our RV sales are historically lowest during our second fiscal quarter, which ends in February.

Governmental Regulations

We are subject to a variety of federal, state, local, and, to a limited extent, international laws and regulations, including the federal Motor Vehicle Act ("MVA"),
under which the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration ("NHTSA") may require manufacturers to recall RVs that contain safety-related defects, and
numerous state consumer protection laws and regulations relating to the operation of motor vehicles, including so-called "Lemon Laws." The Boat Safety Act of
1971 has similar safety-related recall requirements for marine units. In addition, marine units sold in the U.S. and Europe must meet the certification standards
of the U.S. Coast Guard and the European Community, respectively.

We are also subject to regulations established by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA"). Our facilities are periodically inspected by
federal and state agencies, such as OSHA. We are a member of RVIA, a voluntary association of RV manufacturers which promulgates RV safety standards.
We place an RVIA seal on each of our RVs to certify that the RVIA standards have been met. We believe that our products and facilities comply in all material
respects with the applicable vehicle safety, consumer protection, RVIA. and OSHA regulations and standards.

Our operations are subject to a variety of federal and state environmental laws and regulations relating to the use, generation, storage, treatment, emission,
labeling, and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes, and noise pollution. We believe that we are currently in compliance with applicable environmental
laws and regulations in all material aspects.

Trademarks
We have several domestic and foreign trademark registrations associated with our products which include: Winnebago, Adventurer, Affinity, Airlie, Aspect,

Benchmark, Brave, Bryon, Cambria, Chalet, Chris-Craft (logo), Commander, Cottesloe, County Coach, Destination, Dynomax, Ellipse, Era, Forza, Fuse, Glide
& Dine, Gowinnebago, Grand Design, Grand Design Recreational
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Vehicles, Grand Design RV, Horizon, Imagine, Inlounge, Inspire, Instinct, Intable, Intent, ltasca, Intrigue, Journey, Latitude, Maxum Chassis, Meridian, Micro
Minnie, Minnie, Minnie Drop, Minnie Winnie, Navion, One Place, Momentum, Reflection, Powerline Energy Management System and Design, Rest Easy, Revel,
Rialta, Roamer, Scorpion, Sightseer, Solei, Solitude, Spirit, Storemore and Design, Suncruiser, Sunova, Sunstar, The most recognized name in motorhomes,
Thermo-Panel, Transcend, Travato, Trend, Tribute, True Air, Via, View, Vista, Viva!, Voyage, W, Flying W (logo), WIT Club, Winnie Drop, Winnebago Ind (logo),
Winnebagolife, Winnebago Minnie, Winnebago Towables (logo), Winnebago Touring Coach, and Winnebago trade dress (three dimensional design of the
front roof panel, front grill panel, and front body panel of motor homes). We believe that our trademarks and trade names are significant assets to our business.
and we have in the past and will in the future vigorously protect them against infringement by third parties. We are not dependent upon any patents or
technology licenses of others for the conduct of our business.

Human Resources

At the end of Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, we employed approximately 4,700, 4,060, and 3,050 persons, respectively. None of our employees are covered
under a collective bargaining agreement. We believe our relations with our employees are good.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Described below are certain risks that we believe apply to our business and the industry in which we operate. The following risk factors should be considered
carefully in addition to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The risks and uncertainties highlighted represent the most
significant risk factors that we believe may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, liquidity or access to sources of
financing, and, consequently, the market value of our common stock. The risks and uncertainties discussed in this report are not exclusive and other risk
factors that we may consider immaterial or do not anticipate may emerge as significant risks and uncertainties.

Competition

The markets for RVs and marine products are very competitive. Competitive factors in the industry include price, design, value, quality, service, brand
awareness, and reputation. There can be no assurance that existing or new competitors will not develop products that are superior to our products or that
achieve better consumer acceptance, thereby adversely affecting our market share, sales volume, and profit margins. Some of our competitors are much larger
than we are and this size advantage provides these competitors with more financial resources and access to capital, additional purchasing power, and greater
leverage with the dealer networks. In addition, competition could increase if new companies enter the market, existing competitors consolidate their operations,
or if existing competitors expand their product lines or intensify efforts within existing product lines. Our current products, products under development, and our
ability to develop new and improved products may be insufficient to enable us to compete effectively with our competitors. These competitive pressures may
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Hiring Constraints and Retaining Key Employees

Our ability to meet our strategic objectives and otherwise grow our business will depend to a significant extent on the continued contributions of our leadership
team. Our future success will also depend in large part on our ability to identify, attract, and retain other highly qualified managerial, technical, sales and
marketing, operations, and customer service personnel. Competition for these individuals in our manufacturing markets is intense and supply is limited. We
may not succeed in identifying, attracting, or retaining qualified personnel on a cost-effective basis. The loss or interruption of services of any of our key
personnel, inability to identify, attract, or retain qualified personnel in the future, delays in hiring qualified personnel, or any employee work slowdowns, strikes,
or similar actions could make it difficult for us to conduct and manage our business and meet key objectives, which could harm our business, financial
condition, and operating results.

Production Disruptions

We currently manufacture most of our products in northern lowa and northern Indiana. These facilities may be affected by natural or man-made disasters and
other external events. In the event that one of our manufacturing facilities was affected by a disaster or other event, we could be forced to shift production to
one of our other manufacturing facilities or to cease operations. Although we maintain insurance for damage to our property and disruption of our business
from casualties, such insurance may not be sufficient to cover all of our potential losses. Any disruption in our manufacturing capacity could have an adverse
impact on our ability to produce sufficient inventory of our products or may require us to incur additional expenses in order to produce sufficient inventory, and
therefore, may adversely affect our net sales and operating results. Any disruption or delay at our manufacturing facilities could impair our ability to meet the
demands of our customers, and our customers may cancel orders or purchase products from our competitors, which could adversely affect our business and
operating results.
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The terms of our Credit Agreement could adversely affect our operating flexibility and pose risks of default under our Credit Agreement

We incurred substantial indebtedness to finance the acquisition of Grand Design. We entered into new asset-based revolving credit ("ABL") and term loan
("Term Loan") agreements (collectively, the "Credit Agreement") with JPMorgan Chase. Under the terms of the Credit Agreement, we have a $165.0 million
ABL credit facility, which includes a $10.0 million letter of credit facility, and a $300.0 million term loan as of September 21, 2018.

The Credit Agreement is secured by certain assets, primarily cash, inventory, accounts receivable, and certain machinery and equipment. The Credit
Agreement contains certain requirements, including affirmative and negative financial covenants. If we are unable to comply with these requirements and
covenants, we may be restricted in our ability to pay dividends or engage in certain other business transactions, the lender may obtain control of our cash
accounts, and we may experience an event of default. If a default occurs, the lenders under the Credit Agreement may elect to declare all of their respective
outstanding debt, together with accrued interest and other amounts payable thereunder, to be immediately due and payable. Under such circumstances, we
may not have sufficient funds or other resources to satisfy all of our obligations. In addition, the limitations imposed on our ability to incur additional debt and to
take other corporate actions might significantly impair our ability to obtain other financing.

Borrowing availability under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of the facility total and the calculated borrowing base, which is based on stipulated
loan percentages applied to our eligible trade accounts receivable and eligible inventories plus a defined amount related to certain machinery and equipment.
Should the borrowing base decline, our ability to borrow to fund future operations and business transactions could be limited. In addition, the Credit Agreement
contains certain restrictions on our ability to undertake certain types of transactions. Therefore, we may need to seek permission from our lenders in order to
engage in certain corporate actions. Through the Credit Agreement, we were required to enter into a hedging arrangement that fixed certain interest rates as
defined in the Credit Agreement. To satisfy this requirement, an interest rate swap contract was entered into during the second quarter of Fiscal 2017. The
results of the Swap Contract could create quarterly fluctuations in operating results. When we repriced our Credit Agreements during the second quarter of
Fiscal 2018, the requirement to hedge a portion of the debt was removed.

In addition, the additional indebtedness could:
*  Make us more vulnerable to general adverse economic, regulatory, and industry conditions;
«  Limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes and opportunities in the markets in which we compete;
» Place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt or could require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our
cash flow to service our debt; and
*  Restrict us from making strategic acquisitions or exploiting other business opportunities.

Our Stock Price is Subject to Volatility

Our stock price may fluctuate based on many factors. Our acquisition of Grand Design, for example, provided important strategic positioning and earnings
growth potential, but to partially finance the transaction we issued $124.1 million worth of common stock to the owners of Grand Design and registered these
shares for resale after the transaction closed. Any future stock issuance by us or liquidation of stock holding by the former owners of Grand Design may cause
dilution of earnings per share or put selling pressure on our share price. Changing credit agreements and leverage ratios may also impact stock price. In
general, analysts' expectations and our ability to meet those expectations quarterly may cause stock price fluctuations. If we fail to meet expectations related to
future growth, profitability, debt repayment, dividends, share issuance or repurchase, or other market expectations, our stock price may decline significantly.

Facility Expansion

We are expanding our production capabilities within our Towable segment. The expansion and renovation entails risks that could cause disruption in the
operations of our business and unanticipated cost increases. Should we experience production variances, quality, or safety issues as we ramp up these
operations, our business and operating results could be adversely affected.

Adverse Effects of Union Activities

Although none of our employees are currently represented by a labor union, unionization could result in higher employee costs and increased risk of work
stoppages. We are, directly or indirectly, dependent upon companies with unionized work forces, such as parts suppliers and trucking and freight companies,
and work stoppages or strikes organized by such unions could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, or operating results. If a
work stoppage occurs, it could delay the manufacture and sale of our products and have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, operating
results, or financial condition.

General Economic Conditions and Certain Other External Factors
Companies within the RV and marine industries are subject to volatility in operating results due primarily to general economic conditions because the purchase

of an RV or marine products is often viewed as a consumer discretionary purchase. Demand for discretionary goods in general can fluctuate with recessionary
conditions, slow or negative economic growth rates, negative
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consumer confidence, reduced consumer spending levels resulting from tax increases or other factors, prolonged high unemployment rates, higher commodity
and component costs, fuel prices, inflationary or deflationary pressures, reduced credit availability or unfavorable credit terms for dealers and end-user
customers, higher short-term interest rates, and general economic and political conditions and expectations. Specific factors affecting the RV and marine
industries include:

*  Overall consumer confidence and the level of discretionary consumer spending;

*  Employment trends;

»  The adverse impact of global tensions on consumer spending and travel-related activities; and

»  The adverse impact on margins due to increases in raw material costs, which we are unable to pass on to customers without negatively affecting
sales.

Goodwill and Trade Name Impairment

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, such as our trade names, are recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition and are not amortized but are
reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Our determination of whether goodwill impairment has occurred is
based on a comparison of each of our reporting units’ fair value with its carrying value. Significant and unanticipated changes in circumstances, such as
significant and long-term adverse changes in business climate, unanticipated competition, and/or changes in technology or markets, could require a provision
for impairment in a future period that could negatively impact our results of operations.

Dependence on Credit Availability and Interest Rates to Dealers and Retail Purchasers

Our business is affected by the availability and terms of the financing to dealers. Generally, RV and marine dealers finance their purchases of inventory with
financing provided by lending institutions. One financial flooring institution held 54.8% of our total financed dealer inventory dollars that were outstanding at
August 25, 2018. In the event that this lending institution limits or discontinues dealer financing, we could experience a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Our business is also affected by the availability and terms of financing to retail purchasers. Retail buyers purchasing one of our products may elect to finance
their purchase through the dealership or a financial institution of their choice. Substantial increases in interest rates or decreases in the general availability of
credit for our dealers or for the retail purchaser may have an adverse impact upon our business and results of operations.

Cyclicality and Seasonality

The RV and marine industries have been characterized by cycles of growth and contraction in consumer demand, reflecting prevailing economic and
demographic conditions, which affect disposable income for leisure-time activities. Consequently, the results for any prior period may not be indicative of results
for any future period.

Seasonal factors, over which we have no control, also have an effect on the demand for our products. Demand in the RV and marine industries generally
declines over the winter season, while sales are generally highest during the spring and summer months. Also, unusually severe weather conditions in some
markets may impact demand.

Managing Growth Opportunities

One of our growth strategies is to drive growth through targeted acquisitions and alliances, stronger customer relations, and new joint ventures and
partnerships that contribute profitable growth while supplementing our existing brands and product portfolio. Our ability to grow through acquisitions will
depend, in part, on the availability of suitable candidates at acceptable prices, terms, and conditions, our ability to compete effectively for acquisition
candidates, and the availability of capital and personnel to complete such acquisitions and run the acquired business effectively. Any acquisition, alliance, joint
venture, or partnership could impair our business, financial condition, reputation, and operating results. The benefits of an acquisition or new alliance, joint
venture, or partnership may take more time than expected to develop or integrate into our operations, and we cannot guarantee that previous or future
acquisitions, alliances, joint ventures, or partnerships will, in fact, produce any benefits. Such acquisitions, alliances, joint ventures, and partnerships may
involve a number of risks, including:

»  Diversion of management’s attention;

»  Disruption to our existing operations and plans;

* Inability to effectively manage our expanded operations;

» Difficulties or delays in integrating and assimilating information and financial systems, operations, and products of an acquired business or other
business venture or in realizing projected efficiencies, growth prospects, cost savings, and synergies;

« Inability to successfully integrate or develop a distribution channel for acquired product lines;

» Potential loss of key employees, customers, distributors, or dealers of the acquired businesses or adverse effects on existing business relationships
with suppliers, customers, distributors, and dealers;

* Adverse impact on overall profitability, if our expanded operations do not achieve the financial results projected in our valuation model;
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» Inaccurate assessment of additional post-acquisition or business venture investments, undisclosed, contingent or other liabilities or problems,
unanticipated costs associated with an acquisition or other business venture, and an inability to recover or manage such liabilities and costs; and

» Incorrect estimates made in the accounting for acquisitions, occurrence of non-recurring charges, and write-off of significant amounts of goodwill or
other assets that could adversely affect our operating results.

Demand Forecasting and Inventory Management

Our ability to manage our inventory levels to meet our customer's demand for our products is important for our business. For example, certain dealers are
focused on the rental market which spikes over the summer vacation period while other dealers are focused on direct sales to the consumer at various price
points. Our production levels and inventory management are based on demand estimates six to twelve months forward taking into account supply lead times,
production capacity, timing of shipments, and dealer inventory levels. If we overestimate or underestimate demand for any of our products during a given
season, we may not maintain appropriate inventory levels, which could negatively impact our net sales or working capital, hinder our ability to meet customer
demand, or cause us to incur excess and obsolete inventory charges.

Distribution Channel Management

We sell many of our products through distribution channels and are subject to risks relating to their inventory management decisions and operational and
sourcing practices. Our distribution channel customers carry inventories of our products as part of their ongoing operations and adjust those inventories based
on their assessments of future needs. Such adjustments may impact our inventory management and working capital goals as well as operating results. If the
inventory levels of our distribution channel customers are higher than they desire, they may postpone product purchases from us, which could cause our sales
to be lower than the end-user demand for our products and negatively impact our inventory management and working capital goals as well as our operating
results.

Responsiveness to Market Changes

One of our growth strategies is to develop innovative, customer-valued products to generate revenue growth. We may not be able to compete as effectively
with our competitors, and ultimately satisfy the needs and preferences of our customers, unless we can continue to enhance existing products and develop
new innovative products for the markets in which we compete. Product development requires significant financial, technological, and other resources. Product
improvements and new product introductions also require significant research, planning, design, development, engineering, and testing at the technological,
product, and manufacturing process levels, and we may not be able to timely develop and introduce product improvements or new products. Our competitors'
new products may beat our products to market, be higher quality or more reliable, be more effective with more features and/or less expensive than our
products, obtain better market acceptance, or render our products obsolete. Any new products that we develop may not receive market acceptance or
otherwise generate any meaningful net sales or profits for us relative to our expectations based on, among other things, existing and anticipated investments in
manufacturing capacity and commitments to fund advertising, marketing, promotional programs, and research and development.

Potential Loss of a Large Dealer Organization

One of our dealer organizations accounted for 9.8% of our net revenue for Fiscal 2018. A second dealer organization, accounted for 9.0% of our net revenue
for Fiscal 2018. The loss of either or both of these dealer organizations could have a significant adverse effect on our business. In addition, deterioration in the
liquidity or creditworthiness of either or both of these dealers could negatively impact our sales and could trigger repurchase obligations under our repurchase
agreements.

Potential Repurchase Liabilities

In accordance with customary practice in our industries, upon request we enter into formal repurchase agreements with lending institutions financing a dealer's
purchase of our products. In these repurchase agreements we agree, in the event of a default by an independent dealer in its obligation to a lender and
repossession of the unit(s) by the lending institution, to repurchase units at declining prices over the term of the agreements, which can last up to 24 months.
The difference between the gross repurchase price and the price at which the repurchased product can then be resold, which is typically at a discount to the
gross repurchase price, represents a potential expense to us. In certain instances, we also repurchase inventory from our dealers due to state law or regulatory
requirements that govern voluntary or involuntary terminations. If we are obligated to repurchase a substantially larger number of units in the future than we
estimate, this would increase our costs and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Dependence on Suppliers
Most of our RV and marine components are readily available from numerous sources. However, a few of our components are produced by a small group of
suppliers. In the case of motorhome chassis, Ford Motor Company, Mercedes-Benz (USA and Canada), and Freightliner Custom Chassis Corporation are our

major suppliers. Our relationship with our chassis suppliers is similar to our other supplier relationships in that no specific contractual commitments are
engaged in by either party. This means
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that we do not have minimum purchase requirements, and our chassis suppliers do not have minimum supply requirements. Our chassis suppliers also supply
to our competitors. Historically, chassis suppliers resort to an industry-wide allocation system during periods when supply is restricted. These allocations have
been based on the volume of chassis previously purchased, which could mean our larger competitors could receive more chassis in a time of scarcity. Sales of
motorhomes rely on chassis supply and are affected by shortages from time to time. Decisions by our suppliers to decrease production, production delays, or
work stoppages by the employees of such suppliers, or price increases could have a material adverse effect on our ability to produce motorhomes and
ultimately, on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. In Fiscal 2018, none of our manufacturers individually accounted for more than 10%
of our raw material purchases.

Raw Material Costs

We purchase raw materials such as steel, aluminum, and other commodities, and components, such as chassis, refrigerators, and televisions, for use in our
products. In addition, we are a purchaser of components and parts containing various commodities, including steel, aluminum, copper, lead, rubber, and others
that are integrated into our end products. To the extent that commodity prices increase and we do not have firm pricing from our suppliers, or our suppliers are
not able to honor such prices, increases in the cost of such raw materials and components and parts may adversely affect our profit margins if we are unable to
pass along to our customers these cost increases in the form of price increases or otherwise reduce our cost of goods sold. In addition, increases in other
costs of doing business may also adversely affect our profit margins and businesses. For example, an increase in fuel costs may result in an increase in our
transportation costs, which also could adversely affect our operating results and businesses. Historically, we have mitigated cost increases, in part, by
collaborating with suppliers, reviewing alternative sourcing options, substituting materials, engaging in internal cost reduction efforts, and increasing prices on
some of our products, all as appropriate. However, we may not be able to fully offset such increased costs in the future. Further, if our price increases are not
accepted by our customers and the market, our net sales, profit margins, earnings, and market share could be adversely affected.

Warranty Claims

We receive warranty claims from our dealers in the ordinary course of our business. Although we maintain reserves for such claims, which to date have been
adequate, there can be no assurance that warranty expense levels will remain at current levels or that such reserves will continue to be adequate. A significant
increase in warranty claims exceeding our current warranty expense levels could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial
condition, and cash flows.

In addition to the costs associated with the contractual warranty coverage provided on our products, we also occasionally incur costs as a result of additional
service actions not covered by our warranties, including product recalls and customer satisfaction actions. Although we estimate and reserve for the cost of
these service actions, there can be no assurance that expense levels will remain at current levels or such reserves will continue to be adequate.

Protection of our Brand

We believe that one of the strengths of our business is our brands, which are widely known around the world. We vigorously defend our brands and our other
intellectual property rights against third parties on a global basis. We have, from time to time, had to bring claims against third parties to protect or prevent
unauthorized use of our brand. If we are unable to protect and defend our brands or other intellectual property, it could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or financial condition.

Product Liability

We are subject, in the ordinary course of business, to litigation including a variety of warranty, "Lemon Law" and product liability claims typical in the RV and
marine industries. Although we have an insurance policy with a $50.0 million limit covering product liability, we are self-insured for the first $2.5 million of
product liability claims on a per occurrence basis, with a $6.0 million aggregate per policy year. We cannot be certain that our insurance coverage will be
sufficient to cover all future claims against us, which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Any increase in the
frequency and size of these claims, as compared to our experience in prior years, may cause the premium that we are required to pay for insurance to rise
significantly. Product liability claims may also cause us to pay punitive damages, not all of which are covered by our insurance. In addition, if product liability
claims rise to a level of frequency or size that are significantly higher than similar claims made against our competitors, our reputation and business may be
harmed.

Information Systems and Web Applications

We rely on our information systems and web applications to support our business operations, including but not limited to procurement, supply chain,
manufacturing, distribution, warranty administration, invoicing, and collection of payments. We use information systems to report and audit our operational
results. Additionally, we rely upon information systems in our sales, marketing, human resources, and communication efforts. Due to our reliance on our
information systems, our business processes may be negatively impacted in the event of substantial disruption of service. Further, misuse, leakage, or
falsification of information could result in a violation of privacy laws and damage our reputation which could, in turn, have a negative impact on our results.
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In addition to our general reliance on information systems, we began implementation of a new enterprise resource planning system at the end of fiscal year
2015. Though we perform planning and testing to reduce risks associated with such a complex, enterprise-wide systems change, failure to meet requirements
of the business could disrupt our business and harm our reputation, which may result in decreased sales, increased overhead costs, excess or obsolete
inventory, and product shortages, causing our business, reputation, financial condition, and operating results to suffer.

Data Security

We have security systems in place with the intent of maintaining the physical security of our facilities and protecting our customers', clients', and suppliers'
confidential information and information related to identifiable individuals against unauthorized access through our information systems or by other electronic
transmission or through the misdirection, theft, or loss of physical media. These include, for example, the appropriate encryption of information. Despite such
efforts, we are subject to breach of security systems which may result in unauthorized access to our facilities or the information we are trying to protect.
Because the technologies used to obtain unauthorized access are constantly changing and becoming increasingly more sophisticated and often are not
recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or implement sufficient preventative measures. If unauthorized
parties gain physical access to one of our facilities or electronic access to our information systems or such information is misdirected, lost, or stolen during
transmission or transport, any theft or misuse of such information could result in, among other things, unfavorable publicity, governmental inquiry and oversight,
difficulty in marketing our services, allegations by our customers and clients that we have not performed our contractual obligations, litigation by affected
parties, and possible financial obligations for damages related to the theft or misuse of such information, any of which could have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Government Regulation
We are subject to numerous federal, state, and local regulations and the following summarizes some, but not all, of the laws and regulations that apply to us.

Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards govern the design, manufacture and sale of our RV products, which standards are promulgated by the NHTSA.
NHTSA requires manufacturers to recall and repair vehicles which are non-compliant with a Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard or contain safety defects. In
addition, the U.S. Coast Guard maintains certification standards for the manufacture of our marine products, and the safety of recreational boats in the U.S. is
subject to federal regulation under the Boat Safety Act of 1971, which requires boat manufacturers to recall products for replacement of parts or components
that have demonstrated defects affecting safety. Any major recalls of our products, voluntary or involuntary, could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. While we believe we are substantially in compliance with the foregoing laws and regulations as they
currently exist, amendments to any of these regulations or the implementation of new regulations could significantly increase the cost of testing, manufacturing,
purchasing, operating, or selling our products and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. In
addition, our failure to comply with present or future regulations could result in federal fines being imposed on us, potential civil and criminal liability, suspension
of sales or production, or cessation of operations.

We are also subject to federal and numerous state consumer protection and unfair trade practice laws and regulations relating to the sale, transportation, and
marketing of motor vehicles, including so-called "Lemon Laws." Federal and state laws and regulations also impose upon vehicle operators various restrictions
on the weight, length, and width of motor vehicles, including motorhomes that may be operated in certain jurisdictions or on certain roadways. Certain
jurisdictions also prohibit the sale of vehicles exceeding length restrictions.

Failure to comply with the New York Stock Exchange and SEC laws or regulations could also have an adverse impact on our business. Additionally,
amendments to these regulations and the implementation of new regulations could increase the cost of manufacturing, purchasing, operating, or selling our
products and therefore could have an adverse impact on our business.

Finally, federal and state authorities also have various environmental control standards relating to air, water, noise pollution, and hazardous waste generation
and disposal that affect us and our operations. Failure by us to comply with present or future laws and regulations could result in fines being imposed on us,
potential civil and criminal liability, suspension of production or operations, alterations to the manufacturing process, or costly cleanup or capital expenditures,
any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Climate Change and Related Regulation

There is growing concern from members of the scientific community and the general public that an increase in global average temperatures due to emissions
of greenhouse gases ("GHG") and other human activities have or will cause significant changes in weather patterns and increase the frequency and severity of
natural disasters. We are currently subject to rules limiting emissions and other climate related rules and regulations in certain jurisdictions where we operate.
In addition, we may become subject to additional legislation and regulation regarding climate change, and compliance with any new rules could be difficult and
costly. Concerned parties, such as legislators, regulators, and non-governmental organizations, are considering ways to reduce GHG emissions. Foreign,
federal, state, and local regulatory and legislative bodies have proposed various legislative and regulatory

13



Table of Contents

measures relating to climate change, regulating GHG emissions, and energy policies. If such legislation is enacted, we could incur increased energy,
environmental, and other costs and capital expenditures to comply with the limitations. Climate change regulation combined with public sentiment could result
in reduced demand for our products, higher fuel prices, or carbon taxes, all of which could materially adversely affect our business. Due to uncertainty in the
regulatory and legislative processes, as well as the scope of such requirements and initiatives, we cannot currently determine the effect such legislation and
regulation may have on our products and operations.

Anti-takeover Effect

Provisions of our articles of incorporation, by-laws, the lowa Business Corporation Act, and provisions in our credit agreements and certain of our
compensation programs that we may enter into from time to time could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would be perceived
to be beneficial by our shareholders.The combination of these provisions effectively inhibits a non-negotiated merger or other business combination, which, in
turn, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

Our principal manufacturing, maintenance, and service operations are conducted in multi-building complexes owned or leased by us. The following sets forth
our material facilities as of August 25, 2018:

Reportable # of Owned or Square

Location Facility Typel/Use Segment Buildings Leased Footage
Forest City, 1A Manufacturing, maintenance, service, and office Motorhome 33 Owned 1,546,772
Forest City, IA Warehouse Motorhome 3 Owned 459,136
Charles City, IA Manufacturing Motorhome 2 Owned 160,950
Waverly, |A Manufacturing Motorhome 1 Owned 33,400
Junction City, OR Manufacturing, service, and office Motorhome 10 Owned 304,962
Middlebury, IN Manufacturing and office Towable 4 Owned 444,830
Lake Mills, 1A Manufacturing Motorhome 1 Leased® 98,546
Middlebury, IN Manufacturing, service, and office Towable 10 Leased® 1,044,950
Eden Prairie, MN Corporate Motorhome 1 Leased® 30,068

Corporate / All

Sarasota, FL Manufacturing and office Other 7 Owned 188,779
72 4,312,393

(1) In November 2013, we entered into a five-year lease with the city of Lake Mills, 1A for a manufacturing plant with two options to renew for five years each. We are currently
evaluating whether to renew the lease or purchase the facility.

(2) In November 2016 as part of our acquisition of Grand Design, we assumed leases to two properties which hold their current principal facilities and facilities under construction
for expansion.

(3) In January 2017, we entered into a six-year lease, expiring in 2023, for an office facility in Eden Prairie, MN.

The facilities that we own in Forest City, Charles City, and Waverly are located on a total of approximately 320 acres of land. The facilities that we own in
Junction City, Oregon are located on approximately 42 acres of land. The facilities that we own in Middlebury, Indiana are located on approximately 60 acres of
land. The facilities that we own in Sarasota, Florida are located on approximately 19 acres of land. Most of our buildings are of steel or steel and concrete
construction and are protected from fire with high-pressure sprinkler systems, dust collector systems, automatic fire doors, and alarm systems. We believe that
our facilities and equipment are well maintained and suitable for the purposes for which they are intended.

Under terms of our Credit Agreement, we have encumbered substantially all of our real property for the benefit of the lender under such facility. For additional
information, see Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

For a description of our legal proceedings, see Note 11, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included
in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure.
Not Applicable.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Name Office (Year First Elected an Officer) Age
Michael J. Happe President and Chief Executive Officer (2016) 47
Ashis N. Bhattacharya Vice President, Strategic Planning and Development (2016) 55
Stacy Bogart Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary (2018) 54
Donald J. Clark President of Grand Design RV; Vice President of Winnebago Industries (2016) 58
S. Scott Degnan Vice President and General Manager, Towables Business (2012) 53
Brian D. Hazelton Vice President and General Manager, Motorhome Business (2016) 52
Bryan L. Hughes Vice President, Chief Financial Officer (2017) 49
Jeff D. Kubacki Vice President, Information Technology, Chief Information Officer (2016) 60
Christopher D. West Vice President, Operations (2016) 46
Bret A. Woodson Vice President, Administration (2015) 48

Officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors and hold office until their successors are chosen and qualify or until their death or resignation. There are
no family relationships between or among any of the Executive Officers or Directors of the Company.

Mr. Happe joined Winnebago Industries in January 2016 as President and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to joining Winnebago, he had been employed by The
Toro Company, a provider of outdoor maintenance and beautification products, from 1997 to 2016. He served as Executive Officer and Group Vice President of
Toro's Residential and Contractor businesses from March 2012 to December 2015. From August 2010 to March 2012, he served as Vice President, Residential
and Landscape Contractor Businesses. Prior to that he held a series of senior leadership positions throughout his career across a variety of Toro's domestic
and international divisions.

Mr. Bhattacharya joined Winnebago Industries in May 2016 as Vice President, Strategic Planning and Development. Prior to joining Winnebago, Mr.
Bhattacharya served at Honeywell International, Inc., a software industrial company, as Vice President, Strategy, Alliances & Internet of Things for the Sensing
and Productivity Solutions division from 2010 to 2016. Prior to that, he was employed with Moog, Motorola, and Bain & Company in a variety of roles.

Ms. Stacy Bogart joined Winnebago Industries in January 2018 as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Prior to joining Winnebago Industries, Ms.
Bogart was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Compliance Officer, Corporate Secretary at Polaris Industries Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of
powersports products, where she joined in November 2009. Previously, Ms. Bogart was General Counsel of Liberty Diversified International; Assistant General
Counsel and Assistant Secretary at The Toro Company; and a Senior Attorney for Honeywell International, Inc.

Mr. Clark, President of Grand Design RV; Vice President of Winnebago Industries, became an officer of Winnebago Industries in November 2016 in
accordance with terms of the Grand Design acquisition. He co-founded Grand Design RV, LLC in 2012 and built the team at Grand Design RV. Mr. Clark has
over 30 years of successful RV industry experience.

Mr. Degnan joined Winnebago Industries in May 2012 as Vice President of Sales and Product Management. He became Vice President and General Manager,
Towables Business in 2016. Prior to joining Winnebago, Mr. Degnan served as Vice President of Sales for Riverside, California's MVP RV from 2010 to 2012.
He also previously served in management and sales positions with Coachmen RV from 2008 to 2010, with National RV from 2007 to 2008, and Fleetwood
Enterprises from 1987 to 2007.

Mr. Hazelton joined Winnebago Industries in August 2016 as Vice President and General Manager, Motorhome Business. He previously was CEO of Schwing
America, Inc., a manufacturer of concrete pumps and truck mixers, from 2009 to 2016. Prior to his employment with Schwing, he worked for Terex Corporation
and Detroit Diesel Corporation in various executive roles.

Mr. Hughes joined Winnebago Industries in April 2017 and was appointed Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Hughes
joined Winnebago Industries from Ecolab, Inc., where he served as Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller from 2014 to 2017, as Vice President of
Finance from 2008 to 2014 and in various management positions from 1996 to 2008. Prior to his employment with Ecolab, Inc., a water technologies and
services company, he worked for Ernst & Young, a public accounting firm.

Mr. Kubacki joined Winnebago Industries in November 2016 as Vice President, Information Technology, Chief Information Officer. He previously was Vice

President and Chief Information Officer at Westinghouse Electric Company, a global provider of nuclear power plant products and services, in 2016. Prior to his
employment with Westinghouse, he worked as Chief Information Officer at
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Alliant Techsystems, a defense, aerospace, sporting goods, and retail markets company, from 2010 to 2015, and at Kroll, a global risk consulting firm, from
2007 to 2010. He also held various IT roles with Ecolab, Inc.

Mr. West joined Winnebago Industries in September 2016 as Vice President, Operations. He previously was Vice President of Global Supply Chain for Joy
Global, a worldwide equipment manufacturer, from 2014 to 2016, and Operations Director from 2012 to 2014. Mr. West served as Director of Manufacturing for
AGCO Corporation, an agricultural equipment manufacturer, from 2008 to 2012 and as Director of Operations and in other management positions for the
Nordam Group, a manufacturer of aircraft interiors, from 1999 to 2009.

Mr. Woodson joined Winnebago Industries in January 2015 as Vice President, Administration. Prior to joining Winnebago, Mr. Woodson was Vice President of
Human Resources at Corbion N.V., a food and biochemicals company, from 2007 to 2014 and Director, Human Resources at Sara Lee Corporation from 1999
to 2007. Mr. Woodson has over 24 years of business and human resources experience.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the New York and Chicago Stock Exchanges with the ticker symbol of WGO.

Holders

Shareholders of record as of October 15, 2018: 2,593

Dividends Paid Per Share

On August 15, 2018, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per share, totaling $3.2 million, paid on September 26, 2018 to
common stockholders of record at the close of business on September 12, 2018. The Board currently intends to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends
payments in the future; however, declaration of future dividends, if any, will be based on several factors including our financial performance, outlook, and
liquidity.

Our Credit Agreement, as further described in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in ltem 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, contains restrictions that may limit our ability to pay dividends, if we fail to maintain
certain financial covenants.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Credit Agreement contains restrictions that may limit our ability to make distributions or payments with respect to purchases of our common stock without
consent of the lenders, except for limited purchases of our common stock from employees, in the event of a significant reduction in our EBITDA or in the event
of a significant borrowing on our credit agreement ("ABL"), which was increased from $125.0 million to $165.0 million on September 21, 2018. See additional
information on our ABL in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

On December 19, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of outstanding shares of our common stock, depending on market conditions, for an
aggregate consideration of up to $60.0 million. On October 18, 2017, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program in the amount of $70.0
million. There is no time restriction on either authorization. During Fiscal 2018, we repurchased 134,803 shares of our common stock at a cost of $5.0 million.
An additional 33,560 shares of our common stock at a cost of $1.5 million were repurchased to satisfy tax obligations on employee equity awards as they
vested. We continually evaluate if share repurchases reflect a prudent use of our capital and, subject to compliance with our Credit Agreement, we may
purchase shares in the future. As of August 25, 2018, there was approximately $66.0 million remaining on our board repurchase authorization.

Purchases of our common stock during each fiscal month of the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018 were:

Approximate Dollar Value of

Total Number of Number of Shares Purchased as Shares That May Yet Be
Shares Average Price Part of Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans or
Purchased® Paid per Share or Programs(® Programs®
05/27/18 - 06/30/18 — $ — — % 65,989,000
07/01/18 - 07/28/18 — $ — — 8 65,989,000
07/29/18 - 08/25/18 — $ = — % 65,989,000
Total — $ — — 3 65,989,000

(1) Shares not purchased as part of a publicly announced program were repurchased from employees who vested in Company shares and elected to pay their payroll tax via the
value of shares delivered as opposed to cash.

(2) Pursuant to a combined $130.0 million share repurchase program authorized by our Board of Directors. On December 18, 2007, $60.0 million was approved, and on October
18, 2017, $70.0 million was approved. There is no time restriction on either authorization.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of August 25, 2018 with respect to shares of our common stock that may be issued under our existing equity
compensation plans:

(a) (b) (c)
Number of Securities
Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights® Reflected in (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholders - 2004 Plan 9,000 @ — —
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholders - 2014 Plan 469,704 © 36.68 1,677,481 4
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders® 47,366 © — — @
Total 526,070 36.68 1,677,481

(1) This number represents the weighted average exercise price of outstanding stock options only. Restricted share awards do not have an exercise price so weighted average is
not applicable.

(2) This number represents unvested share awards granted under the 2004 Plan. No new grants may be made under the 2004 Plan.

(3) This number represents stock options and unvested stock awards granted under the 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan, as
amended ("2014 Plan"). The 2014 Plan replaced the 2004 Plan effective January 1, 2014.

(4) This number represents stock options available for grant under the 2014 Plan as of August 25, 2018.

(5) Our sole equity compensation plan not previously submitted to our shareholders for approval is the Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended ("Directors' Plan").
The Board of Directors may terminate the Directors' Plan at any time. If not terminated earlier, the Directors' Plan will automatically terminate on June 30, 2023. For a
description of the key provisions of the Directors' Plan, see the information in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held December 11,
2018 under the caption "Director Compensation," which information is incorporated by reference herein.

(6) Represents shares of common stock issued to a trust which underlie stock units, payable on a one-for-one basis, credited to stock unit accounts as of August 25, 2018 under
the Directors' Plan.

(7) The table does not reflect a specific number of stock units which may be distributed pursuant to the Directors' Plan. The Directors' Plan does not limit the number of stock units
issuable thereunder. The number of stock units to be distributed pursuant to the Directors' Plan will be based on the amount of the director's compensation deferred and the per
share price of our common stock at the time of deferral.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares our five-year cumulative total shareholder return (including reinvestment of dividends) with the cumulative total return on the
Standard & Poor's 500 Index and a peer group. The peer group companies consisting of Thor Industries, Inc., Polaris Industries, Inc., and Brunswick
Corporation were selected by us as they also manufacture recreation products. It is assumed in the graph that $100 was invested in our common stock, in the
Standard & Poor's 500 Index and in the stocks of the peer group companies on August 31, 2013 and that all dividends received within a quarter were
reinvested in that quarter. In accordance with the guidelines of the SEC, the shareholder return for each entity in the peer group index has been weighted on
the basis of market capitalization as of each annual measurement date set forth in the graph.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100

250 =

200 o

Index Value
g
(5,
f=]

100 +
50
8/31/2013 8/30/2014 8/29/2015 8/27/2016 82612017 8/25/2018
Period Ending
=#-—1\innebago Indusfries, Inc. ~8--5&P 500 Index =de—Peer Group

Base Period

August 31, August 30, August 29, August 27, August 26, August 25,
Companyl/index 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Winnebago Industries, Inc. 100.00 111.05 93.25 111.33 163.06 177.65
S&P 500 Index 100.00 125.25 126.89 141.45 162.65 195.09
Peer Group 100.00 125.80 125.54 114.31 133.51 147.90

Source: Zacks Investment Research, Inc.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Fiscal Years Ended

August 25, August 26, August 27, August 29, August 30,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017W 2016 2015 2014
Income statement data:

Net revenues $ 2,016,829 % 1,547,119 % 975,226 $ 976,505 $ 945,163

Net income 102,357 71,330 45,496 41,210 45,053
Per share data:

Net income - basic 3.24 2.33 1.69 1.53 1.64

Net income - diluted 3.22 2.32 1.68 1.52 1.64

Dividends declared and paid per common share 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.36 —
Balance sheet data:

Total assets 1,051,805 902,512 390,718 362,174 358,302

Long-term liabilities 313,175 293,680 29,410 59,601 65,835

(1) Includes Grand Design operations from the date of its acquisition on November 8, 2016.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is intended to provide a reader of our financial statements
with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and certain other factors that may affect our
future results. Our MD&A is presented in six sections:

*  Overview

*  Results of Operations

* Analysis of Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources
*  Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

»  Critical Accounting Estimates

*  New Accounting Pronouncements

Our MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Winnebago Industries, Inc. is one of the leading U.S. manufacturers with a diversified portfolio of recreation vehicles ("RV"s) and marine products used
primarily in leisure travel and outdoor recreation activities. We produce our motorhomes in manufacturing facilities in lowa and Oregon; our towable units in
Indiana; and our marine products in Florida. We distribute our RV and marine products primarily through independent dealers throughout the U.S. and Canada,
who then retail the products to the end consumer. We also distribute our marine products internationally through independent dealers, who then retail the
products to the end consumer.

Non-GAAP Reconciliation

This MD&A includes financial information prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. ("GAAP"), as well as certain
adjusted or non-GAAP financial measures such as EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for
income taxes, and depreciation and amortization expense. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes,
depreciation and amortization expense, and other adjustments made in order to present comparable results from period to period. These non-GAAP financial
measures, which are not calculated or presented in accordance with GAAP, have been provided as information supplemental and in addition to the financial
measures presented in accordance with GAAP. Such non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered superior to, as a substitute for, or as an
alternative to, and should be considered in conjunction with, the GAAP financial measures presented herein. The non-GAAP financial measures presented
may differ from similar measures used by other companies.

Refer to the Consolidated Results of Operations-Fiscal 2018 Compared to Fiscal 2017 and the Consolidated Results of Operations-Fiscal 2017 Compared to
Fiscal 2016 for a detailed reconciliation of items that impacted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. We have included this non-GAAP performance measure as a
comparable measure to illustrate the effect of non-recurring transactions occurring during the year and improve comparability of our results from period to
period. We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides meaningful supplemental information about our operating performance because this measure excludes
amounts that we do not consider part of our core operating results when assessing our performance. Examples of items excluded from Adjusted EBITDA
include the postretirement health care benefit income from terminating the plan and transaction costs related to acquisitions. These types of adjustments are
also specified in the definition of certain measures required under the terms of our
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Credit Agreement. For additional information, see Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Management uses these non-GAAP financial measures (a) to evaluate our historical and prospective financial performance and trends as well as our
performance relative to competitors and peers; (b) to measure operational profitability on a consistent basis; (c) in presentations to the members of our board
of directors to enable our board of directors to have the same measurement basis of operating performance as is used by management in its assessments of
performance and in forecasting and budgeting for our company; (d) to evaluate potential acquisitions; and (e) to ensure compliance with covenants and
restricted activities under the terms of our Credit Agreement. We believe these non-GAAP financial measures are frequently used by securities analysts,
investors, and other interested parties to evaluate companies in our industry.

Business Combinations

On June 4, 2018, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests of Chris-Craft, a privately-owned company based in Sarasota, Florida. Chris-Craft
manufactures and sells premium quality boats in the recreational powerboat industry through an established global network of independent authorized dealers.

On November 8, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of all the issued and outstanding capital stock of towable RV manufacturer Grand Design RV, LLC ("Grand
Design") for an aggregate purchase price of $520.5 million. This acquisition was funded from our cash on hand, $353.0 million from asset-based revolving and
term loan credit facilities, as well as stock consideration as is more fully described in Note 2, Business Combinations, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We purchased Grand Design to
significantly expand our existing towable RV product offerings and dealer base and acquire additional talent in the RV industry.

Reportable Segments

Beginning in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we have five operating segments: 1) Winnebago motorhomes, 2) Winnebago towables, 3) Grand Design
towables, 4) Winnebago specialty vehicles, and 5) Chris-Craft marine. We evaluate performance based on each operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA, as
defined above, which excludes certain corporate administration expenses and non-operating income and expense.

Our two reportable segments include: 1) Motorhome (comprised of products that include a motorized chassis as well as other related manufactured products
and services) and 2) Towable (comprised of products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle as well as other related
manufactured products and services), which is an aggregation of the Winnebago towables and Grand Design towables operating segments.

The Corporate / All Other category includes the Winnebago specialty vehicles and Chris-Craft marine operating segments as well as expenses related to
certain corporate administration expenses for the oversight of the enterprise. These expenses include items such as corporate leadership and administration
costs. Previously, these expenses were allocated to each operating segment.

Prior year segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current reportable segment presentation. The reclassifications included removing the
corporate administration expenses from both the Motorhome and Towable reportable segments and removing Winnebago specialty vehicles from the
Motorhome reportable segment, as we begin to dedicate leadership and focus on these operations separately from our Winnebago motorhomes operations.
Industry Trends

Key reported statistics for the North American RV industry are as follows:

*  Wholesale unit shipments: RV product delivered to the dealers, which is reported monthly by the Recreation Vehicle Industry Association ("RVIA")
* Retail unit registrations: consumer purchases of RVs from dealers, which is reported by Stat Surveys
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We track RV Industry conditions using these key statistics to monitor trends and evaluate and understand our performance relative to the overall industry. The
rolling twelve months shipment and retail information for 2018 and 2017, as noted below, illustrates that the RV industry continues to grow at the wholesale and
retail level. We believe retail demand is the key driver to continued growth in the industry.

US and Canada Industry

Wholesale Unit Shipments per RVIA Retail Unit Registrations per Stat Surveys
Rolling 12 Months through August Rolling 12 Months through August
(In units) 2018 2017 Increase % Change 2018 2017 Increase % Change
Towable® 443,572 402,258 41,314 10.3% 417,013 383,248 33,765 8.8%
Motorhome® 62,095 59,891 2,204 3.7% 58,452 56,187 2,265 4.0%
Combined 505,667 462,149 43,518 9.4% 475,465 439,435 36,030 8.2%

(1) Towable: Fifth wheel and travel trailer products.
(2) Motorhome: Class A, B and C products.

The most recent RVIA wholesale shipment forecasts for calendar year 2019, as noted in the table below, indicate that industry shipments are most likely
expected to decline slightly in 2019. The RV sales outlook is based on anticipated increases in inflation and interest rates and rising costs of production,
partially offset by strong job and wage growth.

Calendar Year

2019 2018
Wholesale Unit Shipment Forecast per RVIA® Forecast Actual Unit Change % Change
Aggressive 510,600 505,900 4,700 0.9 %
Most likely 497,100 505,900 (8,800) 1.7)%
Conservative 485,900 505,900 (20,000) (4.0)%

(1) Prepared by Dr. Richard Curtin of the University of Michigan Consumer Survey Research Center for RVIA and reported in the Roadsigns RV Fall 2018 Industry Forecast Issue.

Market Share

Our retail unit market share, as reported by Stat Surveys based on state records, is illustrated below. Note that this data is subject to adjustment and is
continuously updated.

Rolling 12 Months

Through August Calendar Year
US and Canada 2018 2017W 20170 2016 2015
Motorhome A, B, C 15.7% 16.4% 16.2% 18.0% 20.5%
Travel trailer and fifth wheels 7.4% 5.2% 6.1% 1.7% 0.9%

(1) Includes retail unit market share for Grand Design since acquisition on November 8, 2016.
Facility Expansion

During Fiscal 2017, our Board of Directors approved two large facility expansion projects to increase production capacity in the fast growing Towable segment.
The Grand Design expansion project consisted of two new production facilities. The first facility was completed in the second quarter of Fiscal 2018, and the
second was completed in the third quarter of Fiscal 2018. Both facilities have resulted in an increase in units produced. The facility expansion in the
Winnebago towables division is expected to be completed in the first half of Fiscal 2019.

Enterprise Resource Planning System

In the second quarter of Fiscal 2015, our Board of Directors approved the strategic initiative of implementing an enterprise resource planning ("ERP") system to
replace our legacy business applications. The new ERP platform will provide better support for our changing business needs and plans for future growth. Our
initial cost estimates have grown for additional needs of the business, such as the opportunity to integrate the ERP system with additional manufacturing
systems. The project includes software, external implementation assistance, and increased internal staffing directly related to this initiative. We anticipate that
approximately 40% of the cost will be expensed in the period incurred and 60% will be capitalized and depreciated over its useful life.
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The following table illustrates the cumulative project costs:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Cumulative
(In thousands) 2018 2017 2016 2015 Investment
Capitalized $ 5941 $ 1881 $ 7,798 $ 3291 $ 18,911 59%
Expensed 2,107 2,601 5,930 2,528 13,166 41%
Total $ 8,048 $ 4,482 $ 13,728 $ 5819 $ 32,077 100%

Consolidated Results of Operations

Fiscal 2018 Compared to Fiscal 2017

The following is an analysis of changes in key items included in the statements of operations for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018 compared to the fiscal

year ended August 26, 2017:

Year Ended
(In thousands, except percent and August 25, % of August 26, % of Increase %
per share data) 2018 Revenues® 2017 Revenues® (Decrease) Change
Net revenues $ 2,016,829 100.0% $ 1,547,119 1000% $ 469,710 30.4 %
Cost of goods sold 1,716,993 85.1 % 1,324,542 85.6 % 392,451 29.6 %
Gross profit 299,836 14.9 % 222,577 14.4 % 77,259 34.7 %
Selling 49,850 25% 35,668 23 % 14,182 39.8 %
General and administrative 78,089 3.9% 55,347 3.6% 22,742 41.1 %
Postretirement health care benefit income — — % (24,796) (1.6)% (24,796) (100.0)%
Transaction costs 2,177 0.1% 6,592 0.4 % (4,415) (67.0)%
Amortization of intangible assets 9,328 0.5% 24,660 1.6 % (15,332) (62.2)%
Total general and administrative 89,594 4.4 % 61,803 4.0% 27,791 45.0 %
Total selling, general, and administrative
expenses ("SG&A") 139,444 6.9 % 97,471 6.3 % 41,973 43.1 %
Operating income 160,392 8.0 % 125,106 8.1% 35,286 28.2%
Interest expense 18,246 0.9% 16,837 11% 1,409 8.4 %
Non-operating income (494) — % (330) — % 164 49.7 %
Income before income taxes 142,640 7.1% 108,599 7.0% 34,041 31.3%
Provision for taxes 40,283 2.0% 37,269 24 % 3,014 8.1 %
Net income $ 102,357 51% $ 71,330 46% $ 31,027 43.5 %
Diluted income per share $ 3.22 $ 2.32 $ 0.90 38.8%
Diluted average shares outstanding 31,814 30,766 1,048 3.4 %

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

Consolidated net revenues increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to organic volume growth in our Towable segment and acquisition-

related growth.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 driven by a favorable mix due to the accelerated growth in the

Towable segment.

Selling expenses increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to volume growth in our Towable segment.

Total general and administrative expenses increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 due primarily to the $24.8 million benefit recorded in Fiscal 2017
associated with the termination of the postretirement health care plan, investments in our business, and incentives related to the growth in our business. The

increase was partially offset by the reduction of amortization of definite-lived intangible assets, driven by the Grand Design acquisition in Fiscal 2017.

Interest expense increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017, which was related to our Credit Agreements associated with the acquisition of Grand

Design. See Analysis of Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Resources and Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further
information.

The overall effective income tax rate for Fiscal 2018 was 28.2% compared to the effective income tax rate of 34.3% for Fiscal 2017. The decrease in the tax
rate from Fiscal 2017 to Fiscal 2018 was primarily due to the decrease in the Federal statutory rate as part of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax
Act") on December 22, 2017. The decrease was partially offset by the required remeasurement of our net deferred tax assets due to the change in the Federal
statutory tax rate.

Net income and diluted income per share increased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to the sales increase in the Towable segment, the
increased gross profit rate, and the lower effective income tax rate. These increases were partially offset by an increase in the SG&A rate driven primarily by
the termination of the postretirement health care plan, which lowered expense in Fiscal 2017.

Non-GAAP Reconciliation

The following table reconciles net income to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017.

Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Net income $ 102,357 $ 71,330
Interest expense 18,246 16,837
Provision for income taxes 40,283 37,269
Depreciation 9,849 7,315
Amortization 9,328 24,660
EBITDA 180,063 157,411
Postretirement health care benefit income — (24,796)
Transaction costs 2,177 6,592
Non-operating income (494) (330)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 181,746 $ 138,877
Segment Results of Operations
The following is an analysis of key changes in our Motorhome segment for Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017.
Motorhome Year Ended
August 25, August 26, Increase %
(In thousands, except units) 2018 % of Revenue 2017 % of Revenue (Decrease) Change
Net revenues $ 860,675 $ 853,360 $ 7,315 0.9 %
Adjusted EBITDA 35,508 4.1% 56,518 6.6% (21,010) (37.2)%
August 25, Product August 26, Product Increase %
Unit deliveries 2018 Mix % 2017 Mix % M (Decrease) Change
Class A 2,997 31.4% 3,182 34.4% (185) (5.8)%
Class B 2,012 21.1% 1,541 16.6% 471 30.6 %
Class C 4,539 47.5% 4,537 49.0% 2 — %
Total Motorhome 9,548 100.0% 9,260 100.0% 288 3.1%
Motorhome average selling price
("ASP") $ 89,879 $ 91,759 $ (1,880) (2.0)%
August 25, August 26, %
Backlog @ 2018 2017 Increase Change
Units 1,693 1,293 400 30.9 %
Dollars $ 157,554 $ 122,142 $ 35,412 29.0 %
Dealer Inventory
Units 4,620 4,282 338 7.9 %

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.
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(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of
the dealer at any time without penalty and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Motorhome net revenues increased in Fiscal 2018 as compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to an increase in the number of units sold, partially offset by
product mix.

Motorhome unit deliveries grew slower than recent industry growth in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017. Our overall Motorhome market share moved to
15.7% from 16.4% when comparing shipments during the twelve-month trailing periods ended August 2018 and August 2017 due to a mix change from our
Class A-diesel products to our Class B products.

Motorhome Adjusted EBITDA decreased in Fiscal 2018 as compared to Fiscal 2017 due to increased material costs and investments in our business, including
higher costs and lower productivity associated with a new facility that produces our Class A diesel product line.

The following is an analysis of key changes in our Towable segment for Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017.

Towable Year Ended
August 25, August 26, %
(In thousands, except units) 2018 % of Revenue 2017 % of Revenue Increase Change
Net revenues $ 1,127,723 $ 685,197 $ 442,526 64.6 %
Adjusted EBITDA 157,010 13.9% 89,734 13.1% 67,276 75.0 %
August 25, Product August 26, Product %
Unit deliveries 2018 Mix % @ 2017 Mix % @ Increase Change
Travel trailer 22,360 61.1% 13,650 60.7% 8,710 63.8 %
Fifth wheel 14,229 38.9% 8,824 39.3% 5,405 61.3 %
Total Towable 36,589 100.0% 22,474 100.0% 14,115 62.8 %
Towable ASP 30,941 30,571 370 12%
August 25, August 26, (Decrease) %
Backlog @ 2018 2017 Increase Change
Units 7,651 8,001 (350) (4.4)%
Dollars $ 244,854 $ 229,706 $ 15,148 6.6 %
Dealer Inventory
Units 14,877 9,545 5,332 55.9 %

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of

the dealer at any time without penalty and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Towable net revenues increased in Fiscal 2018 as compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to organic volume growth as well as the annualization of net
revenues related to the Fiscal 2017 acquisition of Grand Design.

Towable unit deliveries grew in Fiscal 2018 as compared to Fiscal 2017 primarily due to Towable growth in excess of recent industry trends and due to the
acquisition of Grand Design. With the addition of Grand Design in the first quarter of Fiscal 2017, our Towable market share increased to 7.4% from 5.2% when

comparing shipments during the twelve-month trailing periods ended August 2018 and August 2017.

Towable Adjusted EBITDA increased in Fiscal 2018 as compared to Fiscal 2017 due to the favorable impact of organic growth as well as the annualization of
net revenues related to the Fiscal 2017 acquisition of Grand Design. We achieved strong results in our Towable segment, where shipments grew much faster
than the industry as a result of greater penetration of our new products and further expansion of our distribution base, as well as higher gross profit from cost

savings initiatives and pricing, which more than offset escalating cost inputs.
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Fiscal 2017 Compared to Fiscal 2016

The following is an analysis of changes in key items included in the statements of operations for the fiscal year ended August 26, 2017 compared to the fiscal
year ended August 27, 2016:

Year Ended
(In thousands, except percent and per August 26, % of August 27, % of Increase %
share data) 2017 Revenues® 2016 Revenues® (Decrease) Change
Net revenues $ 1,547,119 100.0% $ 975,226 1000% $ 571,893 58.6 %
Cost of goods sold 1,324,542 85.6 % 862,577 88.4 % 461,965 53.6 %
Gross profit 222,577 14.4 % 112,649 11.6 % 109,928 97.6 %
Selling 35,668 23 % 19,823 2.0% 15,845 79.9 %
General and administrative 55,347 3.6% 33,209 3.4% 22,138 66.7 %
Postretirement health care benefit income (24,796) (1.6)% (6,124) (0.6)% 18,672 304.9 %
Transaction costs 6,592 0.4% — — % 6,592 — %
Amortization of intangible assets 24,660 1.6 % — — % 24,660 — %
Total general and administrative 61,803 4.0 % 27,085 2.8% 34,718 128.2 %
Total SG&A 97,471 6.3 % 46,908 4.8 % 50,563 107.8 %
Operating income 125,106 8.1 % 65,741 6.7 % 59,365 90.3 %
Interest expense 16,837 1.1% — — % 16,837 100.0 %
Non-operating income (330) — % (457) — % (227) (27.8)%
Income before income taxes 108,599 7.0 % 66,198 6.8 % 42,401 64.1 %
Provision for taxes 37,269 2.4 % 20,702 21% 16,567 80.0 %
Net income $ 71,330 46% $ 45,496 47% $ 25,834 56.8 %
Diluted income per share $ 2.32 $ 1.68 $ 0.64 38.0 %
Diluted average shares outstanding 30,766 27,033 3,733 13.8 %

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

Consolidated net revenues increased in Fiscal 2017 over Fiscal 2016 primarily due to the acquisition of Grand Design, which added revenues of $559.7 million
in Fiscal 2017. Winnebago-branded towables products increased $36.1 million in Fiscal 2017. Growth in Towable revenues was partially offset by a $28.0
million decrease in Motorhome revenues caused mainly by the consumer trend towards smaller RVs with a lower ASP. In addition, we exited the aluminum
extrusion operation in Fiscal 2016, which caused a reduction of $6.1 million in Fiscal 2017 net revenue.

Cost of goods sold was 85.6% of net revenues for Fiscal 2017 compared to 88.4% of net revenues for Fiscal 2016 due to the following:

«  Total variable costs (materials, direct labor, variable overhead, delivery expense, and warranty), as a percent of net revenues, decreased
to 81.2% from 83.2% primarily due to a higher proportion of Towable revenue as the Towable segment operates at a higher gross profit rate. Also,
improvement in Towable segment material efficiency and purchasing synergies reduced costs as a percent of net revenue. Finally, improvement in the
Towable segment margin was partially offset by margin pressure in the Motorhome segment due in part to the ramp up of the Junction City, Oregon
production facility.

»  Fixed overhead (manufacturing support labor, depreciation, and facility costs) and engineering-related costs were lower at 4.5% of net revenues
compared to 5.2% in the prior year due mainly to a higher proportion of Towable revenue that operates at a lower fixed cost per unit.

» All factors considered, gross profit increased from 11.6% to 14.4% of net revenues.

Selling expenses were 2.3% and 2.0% of net revenues in Fiscal 2017 and Fiscal 2016, respectively. Selling expenses are largely variable and remained
proportional to revenues in Fiscal 2017.

General and administrative expenses were 4.0% and 2.8% of net revenues in Fiscal 2017 and Fiscal 2016, respectively. General and administrative expenses
increased in Fiscal 2017 due to the addition of $13.9 million of general and administrative expenses related to the acquired Grand Design operation, an
increase of $6.6 million in transaction related expenses, and the addition of $24.7 million in intangible amortization. In addition, Fiscal 2016 results of
operations were impacted by $3.4 million in favorable
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legal settlements. These increases were partially offset in Fiscal 2017 by the increased benefit of $18.7 million associated with the termination of the
postretirement health care plan and reduced ERP implementation expenses.

Non-operating income decreased $0.1 million, in Fiscal 2017, primarily due to lower proceeds from company-owned life insurance ("COLI") policies than we

received in Fiscal 2016.

The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2017 was 34.3% compared to 31.3% in Fiscal 2016. The increase in the effective tax rate is primarily due to the increased
income attributable to the Grand Design acquisition without a proportionate increase in tax credits and other favorable permanent items that provide a benefit

to the tax rate.

Net income and diluted income per share were $71.3 million and $2.32 per share, respectively, for Fiscal 2017. In Fiscal 2016, net income was $45.5
million and diluted income per share was $1.68.

Non-GAAP Reconciliation

The following table reconciles net income to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for Fiscal 2017 and Fiscal 2016

Year Ended
(In thousands) August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Net income 71,330 $ 45,496
Interest expense 16,837 —
Provision for income taxes 37,269 20,702
Depreciation 7,315 5,745
Amortization 24,660 —
EBITDA 157,411 71,943
Postretirement health care benefit income (24,796) (6,124)
Legal settlement — (3,400)
Transaction costs 6,592 355
Non-operating income (330) (457)
Adjusted EBITDA 138,877 $ 62,317
Segment Results of Operations
The following is an analysis of key changes in our Motorhome segment for Fiscal 2017 compared to Fiscal 2016.
Motorhome Year Ended
August 26, August 27, %
2017 % of Revenue 2016 % of Revenue Decrease Change
Net revenues $ 853,360 $ 881,363 $ (28,003) (3.2)%
Adjusted EBITDA 56,518 6.6% 66,127 7.5% (9,609) (14.5)%
August 26, Product August 27, Product Increase %
Unit deliveries 2017 Mix % @ 2016 Mix % @ (Decrease) Change
Class A 3,182 34.4% 2,925 31.4% 257 8.8 %
Class B 1,541 16.6% 1,239 13.3% 302 244 %
Class C 4,537 49.0% 5,143 55.3% (606) (11.8)%
Total Motorhome 9,260 100.0% 9,307 100.0% (47) (0.5)%
Motorhome ASP $ 91,759 $ 93,116 $ (1,357) (1.5)%
As Of
August 26, August 27, Increase %
Backlog @ 2017 2016 (Decrease) Change
Units 1,293 1,139 154 13.5%
Dollars $ 122,142 $ 107,621 $ 14,521 13.5%
Dealer Inventory
Units 4,282 4,345 (63) 1.4)%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.
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(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of
the dealer at any time without penalty and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Motorhome net revenues decreased 3.2% in Fiscal 2017 as compared to Fiscal 2016. This was primarily due to a decline in Class C sales, a lower ASP on the
mix of units sold, and the $6.1 million reduction in sales to aluminum extrusion customers as we have ceased those operations.

Motorhome unit deliveries decreased by 0.5% in Fiscal 2017, most notably in our Class C products. The unit growth we have generated has been in our Class
A and Class B products. The shift in product mix has been towards Class B products, which have a lower ASP. Though total Motorhome unit deliveries were
down for Fiscal 2017, we saw an increase in the backlog volumes by 13.5% as of August 26, 2017 versus the prior period.

Motorhome segment Adjusted EBITDA decreased due to lower revenues as described above, lower pricing, and additional costs associated with the
investment in and shift of production to our Junction City, Oregon production facility. Higher personnel expenses were partially offset by a decrease in ERP

expenses.

The following is an analysis of key changes in our Towable segment for Fiscal 2017 compared to Fiscal 2016.

Towable Year Ended
August 26, August 27, %
2017 % of Revenue 2016 % of Revenue Increase Change
Net revenues $ 685,197 89,412 $ 595,785 666.3%
Adjusted EBITDA 89,734 13.1% 1,721 1.9% 88,013 5,114.1%
August 26, Product August 27, Product %
Unit deliveries 2017 Mix % O 2016 Mix % Increase Change
Travel trailer 13,650 60.7% 3,613 86.0% 10,037 277.8%
Fifth wheel 8,824 39.3% 586 14.0% 8,238 1,405.8%
Total Towable 22,474 100.0% 4,199 100.0% 18,275 435.2%
Towable ASP 30,571 21,322 9,249 43.4%
As Of
August 26, August 27, %
Backlog @ 2017 2016 Increase Change
Units 8,001 492 7,509 1,526.2%
Dollars $ 229,706 $ 8,420 $ 221,286 2,628.1%

Dealer Inventory
Units 9,545 2,156 7,389 342.7%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.
(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of
the dealer at any time without penalty and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Towable net revenues increased 666.3% in Fiscal 2017 as compared to Fiscal 2016. This was primarily due to the acquisition of Grand Design, which added
revenues of $559.7 million in Fiscal 2017. In addition, Winnebago-branded towable revenues rose $36.1 million or 40.4% in Fiscal 2017.

Towable unit deliveries grew by 435.2% in Fiscal 2017 primarily due to the acquisition of Grand Design and also due to Towable segment growth in excess of
recent industry trends. With the addition of Grand Design in November 2016, our towables market share increased from 1.1% to 5.1% when comparing
shipments during the twelve month trailing periods ended August 2016 and August 2017. The addition of Grand Design has also resulted in a higher ASP due
to a greater proportion of higher-priced fifth wheel units sold in Fiscal 2017 compared to Fiscal 2016. Strong increases in backlog and the dealer inventory turn
ratio in Fiscal 2017 resulted primarily from the acquisition of Grand Design.

Towable segment Adjusted EBITDA excludes the costs associated with the acquisition and as such increased $88.0 million. This increase illustrates the
favorable impact of Grand Design and the organic growth of Winnebago-branded towables. We achieved strong results in our Towable segment, where
shipments grew much faster than the industry as a result of greater penetration of our new products and further expansion of our distribution base and higher
gross profit on new products. In addition to the growth in our Towable segment, profitability has increased due to material efficiencies and the leverage of
higher volume on the fixed cost components of our business.
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Analysis of Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Resources
Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows from total operations for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016:

Year Ended

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Total cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 83,346 $ 97,127 $ 52,746

Investing activities (111,761) (405,385) (23,392)

Financing activities (5,188) 258,620 (14,010)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (33,603) $ (49,638) $ 15,344

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities decreased in Fiscal 2018 compared to Fiscal 2017 due to an increase in inventory to support organic growth, partially
offset by growth in net income.

Cash provided by operating activities increased in Fiscal 2017 compared to Fiscal 2016 due to net income and changes in non-cash charges (e.g.,
amortization of debt issuance costs, depreciation, LIFO, stock-based compensation, deferred income taxes, postretirement benefits).

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities for Fiscal 2018 consisted primarily of the acquisition of Chris-Craft and capital expenditures related to the capacity expansions
taking place in our Towable segment. In Fiscal 2017, cash used in investing activities consisted of the acquisition of Grand Design for which we paid cash of
$392.5 million, net of cash acquired, in addition to issuing Winnebago stock with a value of $124.1 million at closing. In Fiscal 2016, cash used in investing
activities was primarily due to capital spend.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities for Fiscal 2018 consisted of payments on the Credit Agreement, dividend payments, and share repurchases; these were
partially offset by cash proceeds on the Credit Agreement. Cash provided by financing activities for Fiscal 2017 consisted of cash proceeds from the Credit
Agreement, partially offset by payments on the Credit Agreement, payment of debt issuance costs, and dividend payments. Cash used in financing for Fiscal
2016 was primarily due to dividend payments and share repurchases.

Debt and Capital

As described in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, effective December 8, 2017, our Credit Agreement consists of a $300.0 million loan agreement (“Term Loan") and a
$125.0 million asset-based revolving credit agreement ("ABL") (collectively, the "Credit Agreement") with JPMorgan Chase. The requirement to hedge a portion
of the Term Loan floating rate interest exposure was removed from the ABL on December 8, 2017, which provided greater flexibility under the Credit
Agreement. The ABL was increased to a $165.0 million revolving credit agreement as of September 21, 2018.

We filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3, which was declared effective by the SEC on April 25, 2016. Subject to market conditions, this registration
provides for the ability to offer and sell up to $35.0 million of our common stock in one or more offerings pursuant to the Registration Statement. The
Registration Statement will be available for use for three years from its effective date. We currently have no plans to offer and sell the common stock registered
under this Registration Statement; however, it does provide another potential source of liquidity to raise capital if we need it, in addition to the alternatives
already in place.

Other Financial Measures
Working capital at August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017 was $167.8 million and $147.0 million, respectively. We currently expect cash on hand, funds

generated from operations, and the borrowing available under our Credit Agreement to be sufficient to cover both short-term and long-term operating
requirements.

29



Table of Contents

Capital Expenditures

We anticipate capital expenditures in Fiscal 2019 of approximately $40.0 million to $50.0 million. We will continue to invest in our ERP system as well as
expand our towable and marine facilities and make improvements to our motorhome facilities.

Share Repurchases and Dividends

We repurchase our common stock and pay dividends pursuant to programs approved by our Board of Directors. Our long-term capital allocation strategy is to
first fund operations and investments in growth, maintain a debt leverage ratio within our targeted zone, maintain reasonable liquidity, and then return excess
cash over time to shareholders through dividends and share repurchases.

On December 19, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of outstanding shares of our common stock, depending on market conditions, for an
aggregate consideration of up to $60.0 million. On October 18, 2017, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program in the amount of $70.0
million. There is no time restriction on either authorization. During Fiscal 2018, we repurchased 134,803 shares of our common stock at a cost of $5.0 million.
An additional 33,560 shares of our common stock at a cost of $1.5 million were repurchased to satisfy tax obligations on employee equity awards as they
vested. We continually evaluate if share repurchases reflect a prudent use of our capital and, subject to compliance with our Credit Agreement, we may
purchase shares in the future. At August 25, 2018, we have $66.0 million remaining on our board repurchase authorization.

On August 15, 2018, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per share, totaling $3.2 million, paid on September 26, 2018 to
common stockholders of record at the close of business on September 12, 2018.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
Our principal contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of August 25, 2018 were as follows:

Payments Due By Period

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal More than
(In thousands) Total 2019 2020-2021 2022-2023 5 Years
ABLOD $ 38,532 $ — $ — % — $ =
Term loan® 260,000 — 25,250 234,750 —
Interest at variable rate® 72,313 10,016 20,032 20,032 22,233
Net swap payments® 8,266 2,068 3,707 2,344 147
Deferred compensation obligations® 18,496 3,214 6,092 4,862 4,328
Operating leases® 16,463 2,700 4,794 4,928 4,041
Contracted services 5,574 2,846 2,433 295 —
Unrecognized tax benefits™ 1,745 — — — —
Total contractual cash obligations $ 421,389 $ 20,844 $ 62,308 $ 267,211 $ 30,749
Expiration By Period
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal More than
(In thousands) Total 2019 2020-2021 2022-2023 5 Years
Contingent repurchase obligations © $ 878,989 $ 815,704 $ 63,285 $ — $ =

(1) As of August 25, 2018, we had $38.5 million in borrowings under our ABL. Borrowings and repayments are expected to fluctuate over the term.

(2) As of August 25, 2018, we had $260.0 million outstanding under our Term Loan that matures on November 8, 2023. The contractual principal payments are included in the
table. Additional principal payments are potentially due annually on a formula based on excess cash flow and the leverage ratio at that time as defined in the Credit Agreement.
No amounts for this contingency are included in the above table.

(3) The Term Loan is at a variable rate and the interest in the table assumes the variable rate of 5.8% at August 25, 2018 is constant through the maturity dates of the debt and the
principal payments on the term debt are made as scheduled. The variable rate is subject to change. For example, a 1.0% change in Term Loan rates for Fiscal 2018, would
change the interest expense by $2.5 million. Additionally, included in interest payments due by period is a 0.25% - 0.375% commitment fee on the ABL for unused borrowings,
which are assumed to be at $125.0 million. In addition to interest assumed to be paid, non-cash amortization of debt issuance costs will also be recorded within interest
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income in future periods.

(4) We have an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $170.0 million as of August 25, 2018 that decreases to $120.0 million on December 8, 2018, to $60.0
million on December 8, 2019, and expires on December 8, 2020. We pay a fixed rate at 1.82%, and receive a floating rate that was 2.3% at August 25, 2018. In the table, we
have assumed the floating rate will be constant through the expiration of the interest rate swap when calculating the net swap payments. The variable rate is subject to change.
For example, a 1.0% increase in the floating rate for Fiscal 2018 would decrease the payments noted in footnote 3 by $2.1 million.

(5) See Note 10, Employee and Retiree Benefits, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(6) See Note 11, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(7) We are not able to reasonably estimate in which future periods these amounts will ultimately be settled.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. In connection with the preparation of our financial statements, we are required to
make assumptions and estimates about future events and apply judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and the
related disclosures. We base our assumptions, estimates, and judgments on historical experience, current trends, and other factors believed to be relevant at
the time our consolidated financial statements are prepared. Because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could
differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be material.

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We believe that the following accounting estimates are
the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results. These estimates require our most difficult, subjective, or complex
judgments because they relate to matters that are inherently uncertain. We have reviewed these critical accounting estimates and related disclosures with the
Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

We have not made any material changes during the past three fiscal years, nor do we believe there is a reasonable likelihood of a material future change to the
accounting methodologies for the areas described below.

Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets (trade names) for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter and more frequently if events or
circumstances occur that would indicate a reduction in fair value. Our test of impairment begins by either performing a qualitative evaluation or a quantitative
test:

*  Qualitative evaluation - Performed to determine whether it is more likely than not that the carrying value of goodwill or the trade name exceeds the fair
value of the asset. During our qualitative assessment, we make significant estimates, assumptions, and judgments, including, but not limited to, the
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, overall financial performance of the Company and the reporting units,
changes in our share price, and relevant company-specific events. If we determine that it is more likely than not that the carrying value of goodwill
exceeds the fair value of goodwill, we perform the quantitative test to determine the amount of the impairment.

* Quantitative test - Used to calculate the fair value of goodwill or the trade name. If the carrying value of goodwill or the trade name exceeds the fair
value of the asset, the impairment is calculated as the difference between the carrying value and fair value. Our goodwill fair value model uses a blend
of the income (discounted future cash flow) and market (guideline public company) approaches, which includes the use of significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3 inputs). Our trade name fair value model uses the income (relief-from-royalty) approach, which includes the use of significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). During these valuations, we make significant estimates, assumptions, and judgments, including, current and
projected future levels of income based on management’s plans, business trends, market and economic conditions, and market-participant
considerations.

Actual results may differ from assumed and estimated amounts. As of August 25, 2018, our goodwill balance includes $244.7 million within our Towable
segment and $29.7 million within our Corporate / All Other category, and our indefinite-lived intangible asset balance is $177.3 million. The qualitative test was
not performed in the current year. No impairments were recorded in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, and definite-lived intangible assets, primarily the dealer network, are assessed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. The impairment testing involves comparing
the carrying amount of the asset to the fair value of the asset as determined by calculating the undiscounted future cash flows generated by the asset. During
these valuations, we make significant estimates, assumptions, and judgments, including current and projected future levels of income based on management’s
plans, business trends, and market and economic conditions. In the event the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value and the carrying amount is
not considered recoverable, an impairment exists. An impairment loss is measured as the excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its fair value. In addition,
the reasonableness of the useful lives of these assets is regularly evaluated. No impairments were recorded in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016.
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Repurchase Commitments

It is customary practice for manufacturers in our industries to enter into repurchase agreements with financing institutions that provide financing to their dealers.
Our repurchase agreements generally provide that, in the event of a default by a dealer in its obligation to these lenders, we will repurchase units sold to the
dealer that have not been resold to retail customers. The terms of these agreements, which can last up to 24 months, provide that our liability will be the lesser
of remaining principal owed by the dealer or dealer invoice less periodic reductions based on the time since the date of the original invoice. Our liability cannot
exceed 100% of the dealer invoice. In certain instances, we also repurchase inventory from our dealers due to state law or regulatory requirements that govern
voluntary or involuntary relationship terminations.

Based on these repurchase agreements, we establish an associated loss reserve. Our loss reserve for repurchase commitments contains uncertainties
because the calculation requires management to make assumptions and apply judgment regarding a number of factors. We base our reserve primarily on our
historical loss experience rate per dollar of dealer inventory. The historical experience has been affected by a number of factors which are evaluated, such as
macro-market conditions, current retail demand for our product, location of the dealer, and the financing source. The percentage of dealer inventory we
estimate we will repurchase and the associated estimated loss is based on historical loss experience and current trends and economic conditions.

Repurchase risk is affected by the credit worthiness of our dealer network and if we are obligated to repurchase a substantially larger number of units in the
future, this would increase our costs and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. A hypothetical
change of a 10% increase or decrease in our repurchases commitments as of August 25, 2018 would have an immaterial effect on net income.

Warranty

We provide certain service and warranty on our products. Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time of sale and are based upon past
warranty claims and unit sales history. Estimates are adjusted as needed to reflect actual costs incurred as information becomes available.

In addition to the costs associated with the contractual warranty coverage provided on our products, we also occasionally incur costs as a result of additional
service actions not covered by our warranties, including product recalls and customer satisfaction actions. Although we estimate and reserve for the cost of
these service actions, there can be no assurance that expense levels will remain at current levels or such reserves will continue to be adequate.

A significant increase in dealership labor rates, the cost of parts, or the frequency of claims could have a material adverse impact on our operating results for
the period or periods in which such claims or additional costs materialize. A hypothetical change of a 10% increase or decrease in our warranty liability as of
August 25, 2018 would have affected net income by approximately $2.8 million.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 740, Income Taxes. In preparing our financial statements, we are
required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income
taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets.

We will continue to assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets are properly measured and will be realizable at each reporting period. Any adjustment to
the deferred tax assets could materially impact our financial position and results of operations. As of August 25, 2018, we have determined that our deferred
tax assets are properly measured and realizable and, therefore, no valuation allowance has been recorded.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For a summary of new applicable accounting pronouncements, See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The assets we maintain to fund deferred compensation have market risk, but we maintain a corresponding liability for these assets. The market risk is therefore
borne by the participants in the deferred compensation program.

Interest rate risk

We are exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on the outstanding variable rate debt. As of August 25, 2018, we had $260.0 million
outstanding under our Term Loan, subject to variable interest rates. This risk is partially mitigated
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through the use of an interest rate swap contract as detailed below.

Under terms of the Credit Agreement, we were previously required to maintain interest rate swaps to manage our interest rate exposure related to the variable
component of interest cost on the Term Loan. In accordance with this requirement, we entered into an interest swap contract on January 23, 2017, to effectively
convert $200.0 million of the Term Loan balance to a fixed rate. The notional amount of the swap reduced to $170.0 million on December 8, 2017 and will be
reduced to $120.0 million on December 8, 2018 and $60.0 million on December 9, 2019. The swap contract expires on December 8, 2020. A hypothetical one
percentage point increase in interest rates on the Term Loan would increase our interest expense (after consideration of the interest rate swap) for 2018 by
approximately $0.9 million. A 1.0% decrease in interest rates on the Term Loan would decrease our interest expense for Fiscal 2018 by approximately $0.9
million. The requirement to hedge a portion of the Term Loan floating rate interest exposure was removed through an amendment to the ABL. See Note

9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in ltem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

For variable rate debt, interest rate changes generally do not affect the fair value of the debt instrument, but do impact future earnings and cash flows,
assuming other factors are held constant.

Derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value and have been designated for hedge accounting. The fair value of the interest rate swap is based on
observable market data (Level 2) and was $2.0 million on August 25, 2018. The interest rate swap requires us to pay interest at a fixed rate of 1.82% through
the December 8, 2020 expiration of the swap. A 1.0% increase in the interest rate would have changed the fair value of the swap as of August 25, 2018 by
approximately $2.1 million and a 1.0% decrease would have changed the fair value by $2.2 million. These increases and decreases would be recorded in other
comprehensive income and the hedged value on our consolidated balance sheet within other assets, if the balance is an asset and within other non-current
liabilities, if the balance is a liability. While these are our best estimates of the impact of the specified interest rate scenario, actual results could differ from
those projected. The sensitivity analysis presented assumes interest rate changes are instantaneous, parallel shifts in the yield curve. In reality, interest rate
changes of this magnitude are rarely instantaneous or parallel.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We, the management of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Company") are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. The Company's internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company's internal control over financial reporting is supported by written policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the Company's
assets;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Company's management and directors; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting solely of independent directors, meets periodically with management of the Company, the
internal auditors, and the independent registered public accounting firm to review internal accounting controls, audit results, and accounting principles and
practices and annually selects the independent registered public accounting firm.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of the Company's annual financial statements, management of the Company has undertaken an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Management of the Company's assessment included an evaluation of
the design of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting.

During Fiscal 2018, management excluded certain elements of internal control over financial reporting pertaining to the activities of the Chris-Craft business
acquired in the fourth quarter (Refer to Note 2, Business Combinations). Exclusion in the year of acquisition is customary to allow management sufficient time
to evaluate and integrate our internal control over financial reporting. The exclusion for Chris-Craft represented less than 1.0% of consolidated total revenue
and less than 1.0% of our consolidated total operating income for the year ended August 25, 2018 as well as 9.5% of our consolidated total assets as of
August 25, 2018.

Based on its assessment and considering the exclusion noted above, management has concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of August 25, 2018.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company's financial statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, has issued a report included herein, which expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Michael J. Happe /s/ Bryan L. Hughes

Michael J. Happe Bryan L. Hughes

President, Chief Executive Officer Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
October 18, 2018 October 18, 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Winnebago Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of August 25, 2018 and
August 26, 2017, the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the
three years in the period ended August 25, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 25, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of August 25, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated October 18, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company
in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 18, 2018

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1986.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Winnebago Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of August 25, 2018, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of August 25, 2018, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended August 25, 2018, of the Company and our report dated October 18, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over
financial reporting at Chris-Craft USA, Inc., which was acquired on June 4, 2018 and whose financial statements constitute 9.5% of total assets, less than 1.0%
of net revenues, and less than 1.0% of operating income of the consolidated financial statements amounts as of and for the year ended August 25, 2018.
Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at Chris-Craft USA, Inc.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Is/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 18, 2018
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

Year Ended

(In thousands, except per share data) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Net revenues $ 2,016,829 1,547,119 $ 975,226
Cost of goods sold 1,716,993 1,324,542 862,577
Gross profit 299,836 222,577 112,649
Selling, general, and administrative expense ("SG&A"):

Selling 49,850 35,668 19,823

General and administrative 78,089 55,347 33,209

Postretirement health care benefit income — (24,796) (6,124)

Transaction costs 2,177 6,592 —

Amortization of intangible assets 9,328 24,660 —

Total SG&A 139,444 97,471 46,908

Operating income 160,392 125,106 65,741
Interest expense 18,246 16,837 —
Non-operating income (494) (330) (457)
Income before income taxes 142,640 108,599 66,198
Provision for income taxes 40,283 37,269 20,702
Net income $ 102,357 71,330 $ 45,496
Income per common share:

Basic $ 3.24 2.33 $ 1.69

Diluted $ 3.22 2.32 $ 1.68
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 31,596 30,648 26,925

Diluted 31,814 30,766 27,033
Dividends paid per common share $ 0.40 0.40 $ 0.40
Net income $ 102,357 71,330 $ 45,496
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Amortization of prior service credit

(net of tax of $0, $15,409, and $2,947) — (25,035) (4,788)

Amortization of net actuarial loss

(net of tax of $11, $5,976, and $621) 27 9,705 1,010

Increase in actuarial loss

(net of tax of $0, $35, and $415) — (57) (674)

Plan amendment

(net of tax of $0, $2,402, and $10,895) — 3,903 17,701

Change in fair value of interest rate swap

(net of tax of $840, $314, and $0) 1,947 (514) —

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 1,974 (11,998) 13,249

Comprehensive income $ 104,331 59,332 $ 58,745

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except per share data)

August 25, 2018

August 26, 2017

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts ($197 and $183, respectively)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Other assets:
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Investment in life insurance
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Current maturities of long-term debt
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses:
Accrued compensation
Product warranties
Self-insurance
Promotional
Accrued interest
Other
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Deferred income taxes
Unrecognized tax benefits
Deferred compensation benefits, net of current portion
Other
Total non-current liabilities
Contingent liabilities and commitments (Note 11)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01: Authorized-10,000 shares; Issued-none
Common stock, par value $0.50: Authorized-60,000 shares; Issued-51,776 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Treasury stock, at cost: 20,243 and 20,183 shares, respectively
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2,342 $ 35,945
164,585 124,539
195,128 142,265

9,883 11,388
371,938 314,137
101,193 71,560
274,370 242,728
265,717 228,440

28,297 27,418
— 12,736
10,290 5,493
1,051,805 $ 902,512
81,039 $ 79,194
— 2,850
15,655 7,450
29,350 24,546
40,498 30,805
12,262 6,122
11,017 6,560
3,095 3,128
11,269 6,503
204,185 167,158
291,441 271,726
4,457 —
1,745 1,606
15,282 19,270
250 1,078
313,175 293,680
25,888 25,888
86,223 80,401
768,816 679,138
892 (1,023)
(347,374) (342,730)
534,445 441,674
1,051,805 $ 902,512
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

c sh Accumulated Other T Stock Total
(In thousands, ommon Shares Additional Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive reasury Stoc Stockholders'
except per share data) Number Amount Capital ("APIC") Earnings Income (Loss) Number Amount Equity
Balance, August 29, 2015 51,776 $ 25888 $ 32,018 $ 585941 $ (2,274) (24,825) $ (420,610) $ 220,963
Creation of APIC pool due to stock
award — — 33 — — — — 33
Issuance of restricted stock — — (1,309) — — 108 1,826 517
Stock-based compensation, net of
forfeitures — — 1,975 — — 5 83 2,058
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (163) (3,066) (3,066)
Cash dividends paid on common stock;
$0.40 per share — — — (10,891) — — — (10,891)
Prior service cost and actuarial loss, net
of $2,741 tax — — — — (4,452) — — (4,452)
Plan amendment, net of $10,895 tax — — — — 17,701 — —_ 17,701
Net income — — — 45,496 — — — 45,496
Balance, August 27, 2016 51,776 $ 25888 $ 32,717 $ 620,546 $ 10,975 (24,875) $ (421,767) $ 268,359
Creation of APIC pool due to stock
award — — 470 — — — — 470
Issuance of restricted stock — — (1,821) — — 155 2,629 808
Stock-based compensation, net of
forfeitures — — 2,830 — — 5 78 2,908
Issuance of stock for acquisition — — 46,205 4,586 77,861 124,066
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (54) (1,531) (1,531)
Cash dividends paid on common stock;
$0.40 per share — — — (12,738) — — — (12,738)
Prior service cost and actuarial loss, net
of $9,468 tax — — — — (15,387) — — (15,387)
Plan amendment, net of $2,402 tax — — — — 3,903 — —_ 3,903
Change in fair value of interest rate
swap, net of $314 tax — — — — (514) — — (514)
Net income — — — 71,330 — — — 71,330
Balance, August 26, 2017 51,776 $ 25,888 $ 80,401 $ 679,138 $ (1,023) (20,183) $ (342,730) $ 441,674
Issuance of restricted stock — — (1,625) — — 101 1,712 87
Stock-based compensation, net of
forfeitures — — 7,406 — — 5 78 7,484
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (169) (6,481) (6,481)
Issuance of stock under ESPP — — 41 — — 3 47 88
Cash dividends paid on common stock;
$0.40 per share — — — (12,738) — — — (12,738)
Actuarial loss, net of $11 tax — — — — 27 — — 27
Change in fair value of interest rate
swap, net of $840 tax — — — — 1,947 — — 1,947
Reclassification of tax effects — — — 59 (59) — — —
Net income — — — 102,357 — — — 102,357
Balance, August 25, 2018 51,776 $ 25,888 $ 86,223 $ 768,816 $ 892 (20,243) $ (347,374) $ 534,445

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Operating activities:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Net income $ 102,357 $ 71,330 $ 45,496
Adj_u_s;ments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation 9,849 7,315 5,745
Amortization of intangible assets 9,328 24,660 —
Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,206 1,596 —
Last-in, first-out expense 3,344 1,722 1,153
Stock-based compensation 7,434 2,977 3,293
Deferred income taxes 5,784 8,360 2,233
Deferred compensation expense and postretirement benefit income 1,201 (23,379) (4,292)
Other, net (995) (1,257) (935)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (37,739) (25,136) 564
Inventories (46,429) (6,165) (11,510)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,353 (2,461) 653
Accounts payable (2,278) 23,778 10,977
Income taxes and unrecognized tax benefits 7,939 7,045 85
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 21,084 9,919 3,276
Deferred compensation and postretirement benefits (3,092) (3,177) (3,992)
Net cash provided by operating activities 83,346 97,127 52,746
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (28,668) (13,993) (24,551)
Proceeds from the sale of property 338 223 18
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (81,200) (392,473) —
Other, net (2,231) 858 1,141
Net cash used in investing activities (111,761) (405,385) (23,392)
Financing activities:
Borrowings on credit agreement 221,133 366,400 —
Repayments of credit agreement (206,601) (82,400) —
Payments of cash dividends (12,738) (12,738) (10,891)
Payments for repurchases of common stock (6,481) (1,530) (3,066)
Payments of debt issuance costs (589) (11,020) —
Other, net 88 (92) (53)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (5,188) 258,620 (14,010)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (33,603) (49,638) 15,344
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 35,945 85,583 70,239
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 2,342 35,945 85,583
Supplemental cash flow disclosure:
Income taxes paid, net $ 26,436 21,421 18,449
Interest paid $ 16,565 11,893 —
Non-cash transactions:
Issuance of Winnebago common stock for acquisition of business $ — 124,066 —
Capital expenditures in accounts payable $ 698 1,021 903
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Unless the context otherwise requires, the use of the terms "Winnebago Industries,” "we," "us," and "our" in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
refers to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Nature of Operations

Winnebago Industries, Inc., founded in 1958 and headquartered in Forest City, lowa is one of the leading U.S. manufacturers with a diversified portfolio of
recreation vehicles ("RV"s) and marine products used primarily in leisure travel and outdoor recreation activities. We distribute our RV and marine products
primarily through independent dealers throughout the U.S. and Canada, who then retail the products to the end consumer. We also distribute our marine
products internationally through independent dealers, who than retail the products to the end consumer. Other products manufactured by us consist primarily of
original equipment manufacturing parts for other manufacturers and commercial vehicles.

Reportable Segments

We have two reportable segments: (1) Motorhome and (2) Towable. The Motorhome segment includes products that include a motorized chassis as well as
other related manufactured products. The Towable segment includes all products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle. A new
corporate allocation policy was adopted in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, which removed certain corporate administration expenses and non-operating
income and expense that were previously allocated to the operating segments and recorded them in a Corporate / All Other category. See Note 3, Business
Segments.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2018 include the parent company and our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions with our subsidiaries have been eliminated.

Fiscal Period

We follow a 52-/53-week fiscal year, ending the last Saturday in August. The financial statements presented are all 52-week fiscal periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. ("GAAP") requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount approximates
fair value due to the short maturity of the investments.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use derivative instruments to hedge our floating interest rate exposure. Derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. We have designated these derivatives as cash flow hedges for accounting
purposes. Changes in fair value, for the effective portion of qualifying hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive income. We review the effectiveness of our
hedging instruments on a quarterly basis, recognize current period hedge ineffectiveness immediately in earnings, and discontinue hedge accounting for any
hedge that we no longer consider to be highly effective.

Receivables

Receivables consist principally of amounts due from our dealer network for RVs and boats sold.

We establish allowances for doubtful accounts based on historical loss experience and any specific customer collection issues identified. Additional amounts

are provided through charges to income as we believe necessary after evaluation of receivables and current economic conditions. Amounts which are
considered to be uncollectible are written off, and recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the allowance upon recovery.
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Inventories

Generally, inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, valued using the First-in, First-out basis ("FIFO"), except for our Motorhome segment which is
valued using the Last-in, First-out ("LIFO") basis. Manufacturing cost includes materials, labor, and manufacturing overhead. Unallocated overhead and
abnormal costs are expensed as incurred.

Property and Equipment

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method on the cost of the assets, less allowance for salvage value where
appropriate, at rates based upon their estimated service lives as follows:

Asset Class Asset Life

Buildings 8-45 years
Machinery and equipment 1-15 years
Software 1-10 years
Transportation equipment 3-6 years

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asset
Goodwill

Goodwill is tested annually in the fourth quarter of each year, and is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change
that would indicate the carrying amounts may be impaired. Impairment testing for goodwill is done at a reporting unit level and all goodwill is assigned to a
reporting unit. Our reporting units are the same as our operating segments as defined in Note 3, Business Segments.

Companies have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the fair value of a reporting unit is “more likely than not” less than its carrying
amount. If it is more likely than not that an impairment has occurred, companies then perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. If we perform the
guantitative test, we compare the carrying value of the reporting unit to an estimate of the reporting unit’s fair value to identify impairment. The estimate of the
reporting unit’s fair value is determined by weighting a discounted cash flow model and a market-related model using current industry information that involve
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). In determining the estimated future cash flow, we consider and apply certain estimates and judgments,
including current and projected future levels of income based on management’s plans, business trends, prospects, market and economic conditions, and
market-participant considerations. If we fail the quantitative assessment of goodwill impairment, we would recognize an impairment loss equal to the amount
that a reporting unit's carrying value exceeded its fair value.

Trade name

We have indefinite-lived intangible assets for trade names related to Grand Design within our Towable segment and to Chris-Craft within our Corporate / All
Other category. Annually in the fourth quarter, or if conditions indicate an interim review is necessary, we assess qualitative factors to determine if it is more
likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying amount. If we perform a quantitative test, we use the relief from
royalty method to determine the fair value of the trade name. This method uses assumptions, which require significant judgment and actual results may differ
from assumed and estimated amounts. If we conclude that there has been impairment, we will write down the carrying value of the asset to its fair value.

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we completed our annual impairment tests. We elected not to rely on the qualitative assessment as of the testing date
and rather performed the quantitative analysis. The result of the test was that the fair value exceeded the carrying value, and no impairment was indicated.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and definite-lived intangible assets, primarily the dealer network, are assessed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable from future cash flows. The impairment test
involves comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the forecasted undiscounted future cash flows generated by that asset. These assumptions require
significant judgment and actual results may differ from assumed and estimated amounts. In the event the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
undiscounted future cash flows generated by that asset and the carrying amount is not considered recoverable, an impairment exists. An impairment loss is
measured as the excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its fair value and is recognized in the statement of income in the period that the impairment
occurs. The reasonableness of the useful lives of this asset and other long-lived assets is regularly evaluated.

There was no impairment loss for the period ended August 25, 2018 for definite-lived intangible assets or long-lived assets.
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Self-Insurance

Generally, we self-insure for a portion of product liability claims and workers' compensation. Under these plans, liabilities are recognized for claims incurred,
including those incurred but not reported. We determined the liability for product liability and workers' compensation claims with the assistance of a third party
administrator and actuary using various state statutes and historical claims experience. We have a $50.0 million insurance policy that includes a self-insured
retention for product liability of $2.5 million per occurrence and $6.0 million in aggregate per policy year. We maintain excess liability insurance with outside
insurance carriers to minimize our risks related to catastrophic claims in excess of our self-insured positions for product liability and personal injury matters.
Any material change in the aforementioned factors could have an adverse impact on our operating results. Our product liability and workers' compensation
accrual is included within accrued self-insurance on our balance sheet.

Income Taxes

In preparing our financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves
estimating our current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.
These temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our balance sheet. We then assess the likelihood that our
deferred tax assets will be realized based on future taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance.
To the extent we establish a valuation allowance or change this allowance in a period, we include an expense or a benefit within the tax provision in our
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Legal

Litigation expense, including estimated defense costs, is recorded when probable and reasonably estimable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is primarily earned through the sale of manufactured RVs and boats. Revenue for these units is recognized when contract terms are met, collectability
is reasonably assured, and the unit is shipped or risk of ownership has been transferred to and accepted by the dealer. Provisions are made for discounts and
sales allowances based on management’s best estimate and the historical experience of each unit type. Dealers do not have the right to return units, and units

are not sold on consignment.

Revenue from the sale of parts is recognized when title to the product and the risk of loss is transferred to the customer, which is generally upon
shipment. Revenue from services is recognized as earned when services are rendered.

Delivery Revenues and Expenses

Delivery revenues for products delivered are included within net sales, while delivery expenses are included within cost of goods sold.

Concentration of Risk

One of our dealer organizations accounted for 9.8%, 10.0%, and 13.0% of our net revenue for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. A second dealer
organization accounted for 9.0%, 9.9%, and 16.6% of our consolidated net revenue in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. These dealers declined on a
relative basis due to the growth of other dealers and due to the addition of Grand Design revenue in Fiscal 2017.

Sales Promotions and Incentives

We accrue for sales promotions and incentive expenses, which are included in net revenues, at the time of sale to the dealer or when the sales incentive is
offered to the dealer or retail customer. Examples of sales promotions and incentive programs include dealer and consumer rebates, volume discounts, retail
financing programs, and dealer sales associate incentives. Sales promotion and incentive expenses are estimated based upon program parameters at the time
of the sales, such as unit or retail volume and historical rates. Actual results may differ from these estimates if market conditions dictate the need to enhance or
reduce sales promotion and incentive programs or if the retail customer usage rate varies from historical trends. Historically, sales promotion and incentive
expenses have been within our expectations and differences have not been material.

Advertising

Advertising costs, which consist primarily of literature and trade shows, were $7.4 million, $5.7 million, and $4.9 million in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016,
respectively. Advertising costs are included in selling expense and are expensed as incurred.
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Subsequent Events

We evaluated events occurring between the end of our most recent fiscal year and the date the financial statements were issued. There were no material
subsequent events, except as noted in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, and Note 12, Stock-Based Compensation Plans, and the item described below.

Dividend

On August 15, 2018, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per share, totaling $3.2 million, paid on September 26, 2018 to
common stockholders of record at the close of business on September 12, 2018.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2018-02, Income Statement—Reporting
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), which allows for a reclassification of stranded tax effects from the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax Act") from
accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI") to retained earnings. We early adopted this ASU in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, which resulted in the
reclassification of $0.1 million from AOCI to retained earnings.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business, which adds guidance for the
determination of whether a transaction should be accounted for as an acquisition of assets or a business. ASU 2017-01 is effective prospectively for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2017 (our Fiscal 2019), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. We adopted ASU 2017-01 in the
fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018 for the acquisition of Chris-Craft, which is further discussed in Note 2, Business Combinations.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting (Topic 718), which simplifies several aspects of
the accounting for employee share-based payment transactions, including the accounting for the related income taxes, forfeitures, statutory tax withholding
requirements and classification in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 (our
Fiscal 2018), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. We adopted ASU 2016-09 in the interim quarterly reporting period ended
November 25, 2017. Amendments requiring recognition of excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies in the statements of income and comprehensive income
resulted in $0.5 million of excess tax benefits recorded as a reduction of income tax expense upon adoption for the year ended August 25, 2018. The reduction
in income tax expense also reduced the effective tax rate by 0.4% and added $0.02 to income per share for the year ended August 25, 2018. Amendments
related to the presentation of excess tax benefits and employee taxes paid when an employer withholds shares to meet the minimum statutory withholding
requirement required no change to the statement of cash flows. As part of the adoption, we implemented a policy of accounting for forfeitures as they occur.
The impact to our consolidated financial statements was not material.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330), which requires inventory measured using any method other than LIFO or the retail
inventory method to be subsequently measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, rather than at the lower of cost or market. Under ASU 2015-11,
subsequent measurement of inventory using the LIFO and retail inventory method is unchanged. ASU 2015-11 is effective prospectively for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2016 (our Fiscal 2018), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. We adopted ASU 2015-11 on August 27,
2017, and the impact to our consolidated financial statements was not material.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which establishes a comprehensive new model for the
recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. This model is based on the core principle that revenue should be recognized to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Entities have the option of using either retrospective transition or a modified approach in applying the new standard. The standard is effective for
fiscal years, and the interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017 (our Fiscal 2019). Early adoption is permitted.

We will adopt this standard in the first quarter of our Fiscal 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, we will recognize the cumulative
effect of the changes in retained earnings at the date of adoption with no restatement of comparative periods. We currently estimate no cumulative effect
adjustment at the date of adoption. In addition, we expect the impact of adoption to be immaterial to net earnings on an on-going basis.

Our evaluation included a review of representative contracts with key customers and the performance obligations contained therein, as well as a review of our
commercial terms and practices across each of our operating segments. Based on these procedures, we have determined the prospective impact is expected
to be immaterial.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires an entity to recognize both assets and liabilities arising from financing
and operating leases, along with additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures. The new

44



Table of Contents

standard must be adopted on a modified retrospective basis to either each prior reporting period presented or as of the beginning of the period of adoption for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 (our Fiscal 2020), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. Early adoption is permitted.
We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (Topic 230), which provides guidance for eight
specific cash flow issues with the objective of reducing the existing diversity in practice. ASU 2016-15 is effective retrospectively for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2017 (our Fiscal 2019), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. Early adoption is permitted. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU on our consolidated financial statements and do not expect adoption to have a material impact.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), which improves the financial reporting of hedging relationships to better
portray the economic results of an entity's risk management activities in its financial statements. ASU 2017-12 is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 (our Fiscal 2020), including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. Early adoption is permitted. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: Business Combinations

Chris-Craft USA, Inc.

On June 4, 2018, we acquired 100% of the ownership interest of Chris-Craft USA, Inc. ("Chris-Craft"). The acquisition diversifies our outdoor lifestyle value
proposition into the recreational powerboat industry. The assets, liabilities and operating results have been included in our financial statements from the date of
acquisition within the Corporate / All Other category. Pro forma results of operations for this acquisition have not been presented, as it was immaterial to the
reported results.

Grand Design RV, LLC

On November 8, 2016, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests of Grand Design RV, LLC ("Grand Design") in accordance with the Securities Purchase
Agreement for an aggregate purchase price of $520.5 million, which was paid in cash and Winnebago shares as follows:

(In thousands, except shares) November 8, 2016

Cash $ 396,442
Winnebago shares: 4,586,555 at $27.05 per share 124,066
Total $ 520,508

The cash portion was funded from cash on hand and borrowings under our debt agreements discussed in Note 9, Long-Term Debt. The stock was valued
using our share price on the date of closing.

The acquisition has been accounted for in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations, using the acquisition method of accounting. Under the

acquisition method of accounting, the total purchase price was allocated to the net tangible and intangible assets of Grand Design acquired, based on their fair
values at the date of the acquisition. The purchase price allocation was finalized during the first quarter of Fiscal 2018.
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The final allocation of the purchase price to assets acquired and liabilities assumed is as follows:

(In thousands) November 8, 2016

Cash $ 1,748
Accounts receivable 32,834
Inventories 15,300
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,037
Property, plant, and equipment 8,998
Goodwill 243,456
Other intangible assets 253,100
Total assets acquired 558,473
Accounts payable 11,163
Accrued compensation 3,615
Product warranties 12,904
Promotional 3,976
Other 1,496
Deferred tax liabilities 4,811
Total liabilities assumed 37,965
Total purchase price $ 520,508

The acquisition of 100% of the ownership interests of Grand Design occurred in two steps: (1) direct purchase of 89.34% of Grand Design member interests
and (2) simultaneous acquisition of the remaining 10.66% of Grand Desigh member interests via the purchase of 100% of the shares of SP GE VIII-B GD RV
Blocker Corp. ("Blocker Corporation"), which held the remaining 10.66% of the Grand Design member interests. We agreed to acquire Blocker Corporation as
part of the Securities Purchase Agreement, and we did not receive a step-up in basis for 10.66% of the Grand Design assets. As a result, we established
certain deferred tax liabilities on the opening balance sheet that relate to Blocker Corporation. As of August 25, 2018, Blocker Corporation was dissolved.

The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to the value of the workforce, reputation of founders, customer and dealer growth opportunities, and expected
synergies. Key areas of cost synergies include increased purchasing power for raw materials and supply chain consolidation. Goodwill is expected to be mostly
deductible for tax purposes. As of August 25, 2018, goodwill increased $2.0 million as compared to the end of Fiscal 2017. The increase is due to the final
purchase price adjustment made for taxes in the first quarter of Fiscal 2018.

The allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in the recognition of intangible assets. We used the income
approach to value certain intangible assets. Under the income approach, an intangible asset'’s fair value is equal to the present value of future economic
benefits to be derived from ownership of the asset. We used the income approach known as the relief from royalty method to value the trade name. The relief
from royalty method is based on the hypothetical royalty stream that would be received if we were to license the trade name and is based on expected
revenues from such license. The fair value of the dealer network was estimated using an income approach known as the cost to recreate/cost savings method.
This method uses the replacement of the asset as an indicator of the fair value of the asset. The useful life of the intangible assets was determined considering
the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the intangible assets adjusted as appropriate for the entity-specific factors including legal,
regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic, or other factors that may limit the useful life of the intangible assets.

Within the Towable segment, the results of Grand Design's operations have been included in our consolidated financial statements from the close of the
acquisition. The following table provides net revenues and operating income (which includes amortization expense and our allocation changes described in
Note 3, Business Segments) from the Grand Design business included in our consolidated results during the fiscal years ended August 25, 2018 and
August 26, 2017 following the November 8, 2016 closing date:

Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Net revenues $ 969,362 $ 559,664
Operating income 129,123 54,188
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Unaudited pro forma information has been prepared as if the acquisition had taken place on August 30, 2015. The unaudited pro forma information is not
necessarily indicative of the results that we would have achieved had the transaction actually taken place on August 30, 2015, and the unaudited pro forma
information does not purport to be indicative of future financial operating results. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information does
not reflect any operating efficiencies and cost savings that may be realized from the integration of the acquisition. Unaudited pro forma information is as
follows:

Year Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Net revenues $ 2,016,829 $ 1,642,786 $ 1,402,897
Net income 102,465 91,163 48,357
Income per share - basic 3.24 2.89 1.53
Income per share - diluted 3.22 2.88 1.53

(1) Netincome and income per share include the increased benefit of $16.3 million, net of tax, associated with the termination of the postretirement health care plan in Fiscal 2017.

The unaudited pro forma data above includes the following significant non-recurring adjustments made to account for certain costs which would have changed
if the acquisition of Grand Design had been completed on August 30, 2015:

Year Ended

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Amortization of intangibles (1 year or less useful life)® $ (122) $ (18,751) $ 18,871
Increase in amortization of intangibles® — 1,551 7,733
Expenses related to business combination (transaction costs)@ (50) (6,649) 6,649
Interest to reflect new debt structure® — 3,672 19,622
Taxes related to the adjustments to the pro forma data and to the income

of Grand Design 64 11,648 1,680

(1) Refer to Note 7, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, for additional information on the intangible assets recorded as a result of the acquisition.
(2) Pro forma transaction costs include $0.1 million incurred by Grand Design prior to the acquisition.
(3) Refer to Note 9, Long-Term Debt, for additional information on the new debt structure as a result of the acquisition.

We incurred approximately $7.0 million of acquisition-related costs to date, of which $0.1 million, $6.6 million, and $0.3 million was expensed during Fiscal
2018, Fiscal 2017, and Fiscal 2016, respectively.

Share Registration

As a result of the acquisition of Grand Design, we agreed to register the 4,586,555 shares of common stock issued to the sellers pursuant to the terms of a
registration rights agreement. Under the registration rights agreement, we filed a shelf registration statement on January 20, 2017 to register these shares for
resale. On April 11, 2017, pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated as of April 5, 2017, by and among the Company, certain of the sellers, and Morgan
Stanley & Co., LLC, the sellers sold 2,293,277 shares of common stock in an underwritten block trade.

Note 3: Business Segments

Beginning in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we have revised our segment presentation and now have five operating segments: 1) Winnebago motorhomes,
2) Winnebago towables, 3) Grand Design towables, 4) Winnebago specialty vehicles, and 5) Chris-Craft marine. We evaluate performance based on each
operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA, as defined below, which excludes certain corporate administration expenses and non-operating income and expense.

Our two reportable segments include: 1) Motorhome (comprised of products that include a motorized chassis as well as other related manufactured products
and services) and 2) Towable (comprised of products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle as well as other related
manufactured products and services), which is an aggregation of the Winnebago towables and Grand Design towables operating segments.

The Corporate / All Other category includes the Winnebago specialty vehicles and Chris-Craft marine operating segments as well as expenses related to
certain corporate administration expenses for the oversight of the enterprise. These expenses include items such as corporate leadership and administration
costs. Previously, these expenses were allocated to each operating segment.

Identifiable assets of the reportable segments exclude general corporate assets, which principally consist of cash and cash equivalents and certain deferred
tax balances. The general corporate assets are included in the Corporate / All Other category.

Prior year segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current reportable segment presentation. The reclassifications included removing the
corporate administration expenses from both the Motorhome and Towable reportable
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segments and removing Winnebago specialty vehicles from the Motorhome reportable segment, as we begin to dedicate leadership and focus on these
operations separately from our Winnebago motorhomes operations.

Our chief operating decision maker ("CODM") is our Chief Executive Officer. Our CODM relies on internal management reporting that analyzes consolidated
results to the net earnings level and operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA. Our CODM has ultimate responsibility for enterprise decisions. Our CODM
determines, in particular, resource allocation for, and monitors the performance of, the consolidated enterprise, the Motorhome segment, and the Towable
segment. The Motorhome segment management and Towable segment management have responsibility for operating decisions, allocating resources, and
assessing performance within their respective segments. The accounting policies of both reportable segments are the same and are described in Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

We evaluate the performance of our reportable segments based on Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for
income taxes, and depreciation and amortization expense. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes,
depreciation and amortization expense, and other adjustments made in order to present comparable results from period to period. Examples of items excluded
from Adjusted EBITDA include the postretirement health care benefit income from terminating the plan and transaction costs related to acquisitions. These
types of adjustments are also specified in the definition of certain measures required under the terms of our Credit Agreement.

The following table shows information by reportable segment for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016:

Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Net revenues
Motorhome $ 860,675 $ 853,360 $ 881,363
Towable 1,127,723 685,197 89,412
Corporate / All Other 28,431 8,562 4,451
Consolidated $ 2,016,829 $ 1,547,119 $ 975,226
Adjusted EBITDA
Motorhome $ 35,508 $ 56,518 $ 66,127
Towable 157,010 89,734 1,721
Corporate / All Other (10,772) (7,375) (5,531)
Consolidated $ 181,746 $ 138,877 $ 62,317
Capital expenditures
Motorhome $ 9,302 $ 9,563 $ 23,909
Towable 18,460 4,406 631
Corporate / All Other 906 24 11
Consolidated $ 28,668 $ 13,993 $ 24,551
Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Total assets
Motorhome $ 322,048 $ 277,015
Towable 626,588 576,262
Corporate / All Other 103,169 49,235
Consolidated $ 1,051,805 $ 902,512
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The following table reconciles net income to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016:

Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Net income $ 102,357 $ 71,330 45,496
Interest expense 18,246 16,837 —
Provision for income taxes 40,283 37,269 20,702
Depreciation 9,849 7,315 5,745
Amortization 9,328 24,660 —
EBITDA 180,063 157,411 71,943
Postretirement health care benefit income — (24,796) (6,124)
Legal settlement — — (3,400)
Transaction costs 2,177 6,592 355
Non-operating income (494) (330) (457)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 181,746 $ 138,877 62,317
The following table reconciles net revenue by geographic area for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016:
Year Ended
(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
United States $ 1,860,613 92.3% $ 1,445,401 93.4% $ 940,230 96.4%
International 156,216 7.7% 101,718 6.6% 34,996 3.6%
Total net revenues $ 2,016,829 100.0% $ 1,547,119 100.0% $ 975,226 100.0%

Note 4: Derivatives, Investments and Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

We account for fair value measurements in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measurement, and expands disclosure about fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Our assessment of the significance of a particular
item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, including the consideration of inputs specific to the asset or liability.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy contains three levels

as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Other observable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly or indirectly, including:

e Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
*  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nonactive markets;
* Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and

* Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment. These values
are generally determined using pricing models for which the assumptions utilize management'’s estimates of market participant assumptions.
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The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
at August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017 according to the valuation techniques we used to determine their fair values:

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at August Using Inputs Considered As

(In thousands) 25,2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets that fund deferred compensation:

Domestic equity funds $ 1,143  $ 1,114 % 29 % —

International equity funds 139 120 19 —

Fixed income funds 223 132 91 —

Interest rate swap contract 1,959 — 1,959 —
Total assets at fair value $ 3,464 % 1,366 $ 2,098 $ —

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at August Using Inputs Considered As

(In thousands) 26, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets that fund deferred compensation:
Domestic equity funds $ 1,708 $ 1671 % 37 $ —
International equity funds 174 157 17 —
Fixed income funds 259 170 89 —
Interest rate swap contract (828) — (828) —
Total assets (liabilities) at fair value $ 1,313 $ 1,998 $ (685) $ —

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:
Assets that fund deferred compensation

Our assets that fund deferred compensation are marketable equity securities measured at fair value using quoted market prices and primarily consist of equity-
based mutual funds. These securities are classified as Level 1 as they are traded in an active market for which closing stock prices are readily available. These
securities fund the Executive Share Option Plan and the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (see Note 10, Employee and Retiree Benefits). The proportion
of the assets that will fund options which expire within a year are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The remaining assets are classified as non-current and are included in other assets.

Interest Rate Swap Contract

Under the terms of our Credit Agreement (see Note 9, Long-Term Debt) we were previously required to hedge a portion of the floating interest rate exposure. In
accordance with this requirement, on January 23, 2017, we entered into an interest swap contract, which effectively fixed our interest rate on our Term Loan for
a notional amount that reduces each December during the swap contract. As of August 25, 2018, we had $170.0 million of our Term Loan fixed at an interest
rate of 5.32%. As of August 26, 2017, we had $200.0 million of our Term Loan fixed at an interest rate of 6.32%. The swap contract expires on December 8,
2020.

The fair value of the interest rate swap based on a Level 2 valuation was an asset of $2.0 million as of August 25, 2018 and a liability of $0.8 million as of
August 26, 2017. The fair value is classified as Level 2 as it is corroborated based on observable market data. The asset is included in other assets and the
liability is included in other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The change in value was predominately recorded to accumulated other
comprehensive income on the consolidated balance sheets since the interest rate swap has been designated for hedge accounting.

Assets and Liabilities that are measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Our non-financial assets, which includes goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment, are not required to be measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. However, if certain triggering events occur, or if an annual impairment test is required, we must evaluate the non-financial asset for impairment.
If an impairment did occur, the asset is required to be recorded at the estimated fair value. No impairments were recorded for non-financial assets in Fiscal
2018, 2017, and 2016.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments, other than those presented in the disclosures above, include cash, receivables, accounts payable, other payables, and long-term

debt. The fair values of cash, receivables, accounts payable, and other payables approximated carrying values because of the short-term nature of these
instruments. If these instruments were measured at fair value in the financial
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statements, they would be classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. See Note 9, Long-Term Debt, for information about the fair value of our long-term
debt.

Note 5: Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Finished goods $ 26,513 $ 16,947
Work-in-process 68,339 60,818
Raw materials 139,039 99,919

Total 233,891 177,684
LIFO reserve (38,763) (35,419)

Total inventories $ 195,128 $ 142,265

The above value of inventories, before reduction for the LIFO reserve, approximates replacement cost at the respective dates. Of the $233.9 million and
$177.7 million of inventory at August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, respectively, $176.2 million and $149.8 million is valued on a LIFO basis. The remaining
inventories of $57.7 million and $27.9 million at August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, respectively, are valued on a FIFO basis.

Note 6: Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and consists of the following:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Land $ 6,747 $ 3,914
Buildings and building improvements 94,622 73,831
Machinery and equipment 105,663 99,952
Software 23,388 17,844
Transportation 8,837 8,993

Total property, plant and equipment, gross 239,257 204,534
Less accumulated depreciation (138,064) (132,974)

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 101,193 $ 71,560

For Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, depreciation charged to operations was $9.8 million, $7.3 million, and $5.7 million, respectively.
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Note 7: Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in carrying amount of goodwill by segment were as follows in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, noting we have no accumulated impairment losses:

(In thousands) Towable Corporate | All Other Total
Balances at August 29, 2015 $ 1228 $ — 3 1,228
Balances at August 27, 2016 1,228 — 1,228
Acquisition of Grand Design® 241,500 — 241,500
Balances at August 26, 2017 242,728 — 242,728
Grand Design purchase price adjustment® 1,956 — 1,956
Acquisition of Chris-Craft® — 29,686 29,686
Balances at August 25, 2018 $ 244,684 $ 29,686 $ 274,370

(1) Refer to Note 2, Business Combinations, for additional information on the acquisitions of Grand Design and Chris-Craft.

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization consists of the following:

August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
Weighted Weighted

Average Life- Accumulated Average Life- Accumulated
(In thousands) Years Cost Amortization Years Cost Amortization
Trade name Indefinite $ 177,250 Indefinite $ 148,000
Dealer network 12.2 95,581 $ 12,328 12.0 80,500 $ 5,348
Backlog 0.5 19,527 19,135 0.5 18,000 18,000
Non-compete agreements 4.1 5,347 2,084 4.0 4,600 1,116
Leasehold interest-favorable 8.1 2,000 441 8.1 2,000 196
Total intangible assets, gross 299,705 $ 33,988 253,100 $ 24,660
Less accumulated amortization 33,988 24,660
Total intangible assets, net $ 265,717 $ 228,440

For Fiscal 2018 and 2017, amortization of intangible assets charged to operations was $9.3 million and $24.7 million, respectively. The weighted average
remaining amortization period for intangible assets as of August 25, 2018 was approximately 11.4 years.

Remaining estimated aggregate annual amortization expense by fiscal year is as follows:

(In thousands) Amount
Fiscal 2019 $ 9,487
Fiscal 2020 9,032
Fiscal 2021 9,032
Fiscal 2022 8,405
Fiscal 2023 8,197
Thereafter 44,314
Total amortization expense remaining $ 88,467

Note 8: Warranty

We provide certain service and warranty on our products. From time to time, we also voluntarily incur costs for certain warranty-type expenses occurring after
the normal warranty period to help protect the reputation of our products and the goodwill of our customers. Estimated costs related to product warranty are
accrued at the time of sale and are based upon historical warranty and service claims experience. Adjustments are made to accruals as claim data and cost
experience becomes available.

In addition to the costs associated with the contractual warranty coverage provided on our products, we also occasionally incur costs as a result of additional

service actions not covered by our warranties, including product recalls and customer satisfaction actions. Although we estimate and reserve for the cost of
these service actions, there can be no assurance that expense levels will remain at current levels or such reserves will continue to be adequate.
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Changes in our product warranty liability during Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016 are as follows:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Balance at beginning of year $ 30,805 $ 12,412 $ 11,254
Business acquisitions® 611 12,904 —
Provision 42,377 31,631 16,503
Claims paid (33,295) (26,142) (15,345)

Balance at end of year $ 40,498 $ 30,805 $ 12,412

(1) Refer to Note 2, Business Combinations, for additional information on the acquisitions of Grand Design and Chris-Craft.
Note 9: Long-Term Debt

The components of long-term debt are as follows:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017
ABL $ 38,532 $ =
Term Loan 260,000 284,000
Gross long-term debt, excluding issuance costs 298,532 284,000
Debt issuance cost, net (7,091) (9,424)
Total long-term debt 291,441 274,576
Less: current maturities — (2,850)
Total long-term debt, less current maturities $ 291,441 $ 271,726

On November 8, 2016, we entered into a $125.0 million credit agreement ("ABL") and a $300.0 million loan agreement ("Term Loan") with JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. ("Credit Agreement"). On December 8, 2017, we amended our Credit Agreement, which decreased the interest rate spread by 1.0% on the Term
Loan and 0.25% on the ABL.

Under the ABL, we have a five year credit facility on a revolving basis, subject to availability under a borrowing base consisting of eligible accounts receivable
and eligible inventory. The ABL is available for issuance of letters of credit to a specified limit of $10.0 million. We pay a commitment fee in the range of 0.25% -
0.375% on the amount of facility available, but unused. We can elect to base the interest rate on various base rates plus specific spreads depending on the
amount of borrowings outstanding. We currently pay interest on ABL borrowings at a floating rate based upon LIBOR plus 1.25%.

Under the Term Loan, we can elect to base the interest rate on various base rates plus specific spreads. The interest rate as of August 25, 2018 was based on
LIBOR plus 2.32%. The Term Loan agreement currently requires quarterly payments in the amount of $2.75 million until December 31, 2019 at which time the
quarterly payments change to $3.75 million, with all amounts then outstanding due on November 8, 2023. We have made voluntary prepayments that have
extended the opportunity to defer quarterly payments, at our option, until December 31, 2019. There are mandatory prepayments for proceeds of new debt,
sale of significant assets or subsidiaries, and excess cash flow as those terms are defined in the Term Loan. Incremental term loans of up to $125.0 million are
available if certain financial ratios and other conditions are met. The amount that may be borrowed under the ABL was increased to $165.0 million as of
September 21, 2018.

The Credit Agreement contains certain financial covenants. As of August 25, 2018, we are in compliance with all financial covenants of the Credit Agreement.

The ABL and Term Loan are guaranteed by Winnebago Industries, Inc. and all material direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and are secured by a security
interest in substantially all of our assets, except minor excluded assets.

We amortize debt issuance costs on a straight-line basis (which is not materially different from an effective interest method) over the term of the associated
debt agreement. If early principal payments are made on the Term Loan, a proportional amount of the unamortized issuance costs will be expensed. As

of August 25, 2018, we incurred $1.1 million of costs related to our revolving Credit Agreement that are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the five
year term of the agreement. We also incurred $10.5 million of costs as of August 25, 2018 related to the Term Loan that are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over the seven year term of the agreement. Unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.6 million related to the voluntary prepayment on the Term Loan were
expensed in Fiscal 2018.

The fair value of long-term debt, excluding debt issuance costs, approximated the carrying values as of August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017 as interest is at
variable market rates.
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Aggregate contractual maturities of debt in future fiscal years, are as follows:

(In thousands) Amount

Fiscal 2019 $ =

Fiscal 2020 10,250

Fiscal 2021 15,000

Fiscal 2022 15,000

Fiscal 2023 219,750
Total long-term debt $ 260,000

Note 10: Employee and Retiree Benefits
Deferred compensation benefits are as follows:

(In thousands)

August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017

Non-qualified deferred compensation $
Supplemental executive retirement plan

Executive share option plan

Executive deferred compensation plan

Officer stock-based compensation

Total deferred compensation benefits
Less: current portion®

Long-term deferred compensation benefits $

14,831 $ 16,476
2,309 2,534
935 1,498
421 447
1,528 1,664
20,024 22,619
(4,742) (3,349)
15,282 $ 19,270

(1) Included in accrued compensation in the consolidated balance sheets.

Postretirement Health Care Benefits

Historically, we provided certain health care and other benefits for retired employees hired before April 1, 2001, who had fulfilled eligibility requirements at age
55 with 15 years of continuous service. During the first quarter of Fiscal 2017, we announced the termination of the remaining postretirement health care

benefits to all participants. As of January 1, 2017, postretirement health care benefits were discontinued.

Changes in our postretirement health care liability were as follows:

(In thousands)

August 26, 2017

Balance at beginning of year $ 6,346
Interest cost 29
Service cost 16
Net benefits paid (53)
Plan amendment (6,338)

Balance at end of year $ —

Net periodic postretirement benefit income for Fiscal 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following components:

Year Ended

(In thousands) August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Interest cost $ 29 $ 327

Service cost 16 108

Amortization of prior service benefit (40,444) (7,736)

Amortization of net actuarial loss 15,648 1,612
Net periodic postretirement benefit income $ (24,751) $ (5,689)

For accounting purposes, we recognized net periodic postretirement income as presented in the previous table, due to the amortization of prior service benefit
associated with the establishment of caps on the employer portion of benefits in Fiscal 2005 and the plan amendments made over the past five years.
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Amounts not yet recognized in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive income (before taxes) are as follows:

(In thousands) August 27, 2016
Prior service credit $ (34,139)
Net actuarial loss 15,648
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ (18,491)

Deferred Compensation Benefits
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

We have a Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Program which permitted key employees to annually elect to defer a portion of their compensation until their
retirement. The plan has been closed to any additional deferrals since January 2001. The retirement benefit to be provided is based upon the amount of
compensation deferred and the age of the individual at the time of the contracted deferral. An individual generally vests at age 55 and 5 years of participation
under the plan. For deferrals prior to December 1992, vesting occurs at the later of age 55 and 5 years of service from first deferral or 20 years of service.
Deferred compensation expense was $1.1 million, $1.2 million and $1.3 million in Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP")

The primary purpose of this plan was to provide our officers and managers with supplemental retirement income for a period of 15 years after retirement. We
have not offered this plan on a continuing basis to members of management since 1998. The plan was funded with individual whole life insurance policies (split
dollar program) owned by the named insured officer or manager. We initially paid the life insurance premiums on the life of the individual and the individual
would receive life insurance and supplemental cash payments during the 15 years following retirement. In October 2008, the plan was amended as a result of
changes in the tax and accounting regulations and rising administrative costs. Under the redesigned SERP, the underlying life insurance policies previously
owned by the insured individual became company-owned life insurance ("COLI") by a release of all interests by the participant and assignment to us as a
prerequisite to participate in the SERP and transition from the Split Dollar Program. This program remains closed to new employee participation.

To assist in funding the deferred compensation and SERP liabilities, we have invested in COLI policies. The cash surrender value of these policies is presented
in investment in life insurance in the accompanying balance sheets and consists of the following:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017

Cash value $ 63,574 $ 62,824

Borrowings (35,277) (35,406)
Investment in life insurance $ 28,297 $ 27,418

Executive Share Option Plan

The Non-Qualified Share Option Program permitted participants in the Executive Share Option Plan (the "Executive Plan") to choose to defer a portion of their
salary or other eligible compensation in the form of options to purchase selected securities, primarily equity-based mutual funds. These assets are treated as
trading securities and are recorded at fair value. The Executive Plan has been closed to any additional deferrals since January 2005. The Executive Plan
assets related to those options that will expire within a year are included in prepaid expenses and other assets in the accompanying balance sheets. The
remaining assets are included in other assets. Total assets on August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017 were $1.0 million and $1.6 million, respectively.

The difference between the asset and liability balances represents the additional 25% we contributed at the time of the initial deferrals to aid in potential
additional earnings to the participant. This contribution is required to be paid back to us when the option is exercised. A participant may exercise his or her
options per the plan document, but there is a requirement that after these dollars have been invested for 15 years the participant is required to exercise such
option.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
In December 2006, we adopted the Winnebago Industries, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Executive Deferred Compensation Plan"). Under
the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, corporate officers and certain key employees may annually choose to defer up to 50% of their salary and up to

100% of their cash incentive awards. The assets are presented as other assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Such assets on August 25, 2018 and
August 26, 2017 were $0.4 million and $0.4 million, respectively.
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Profit Sharing Plan

We have a qualified profit sharing and contributory 401(k) plan for eligible employees. The plan provides quarterly discretionary matching cash contributions as
approved by our Board of Directors. Contributions to the plan for Fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016 were $2.3 million, $1.6 million, and $1.5 million, respectively.

Note 11: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Repurchase Commitments

Generally, manufacturers in our industries enter into repurchase agreements with lending institutions which have provided wholesale floorplan financing to
dealers. Most dealers are financed on a "floorplan” basis under which a bank or finance company lends the dealer all, or substantially all, of the purchase price,
collateralized by a security interest in the units purchased.

Our repurchase agreements generally provide that, in the event of default by the dealer on the agreement to pay the lending institution, we will repurchase the
financed merchandise. The terms of these agreements, which generally can last up to 24 months, provide that our liability will be the lesser of remaining
principal owed by the dealer to the lending institution, or dealer invoice less periodic reductions based on the time since the date of the original invoice. Our
liability cannot exceed 100% of the dealer invoice. In certain instances, we also repurchase inventory from our dealers due to state law or regulatory
requirements that govern voluntary or involuntary relationship terminations. Although laws vary from state to state, some states have laws in place that require
manufacturers of RVs or boats to repurchase current inventory if a dealership exits the business. Our total contingent liability on all repurchase agreements
was approximately $879.0 million and $713.1 million at August 25, 2018 and August 26, 2017, respectively.

Repurchased sales are not recorded as a revenue transaction, but the net difference between the original repurchase price and the resale price are recorded
against the loss reserve, which is a deduction from gross revenue. Our loss reserve for repurchase commitments contains uncertainties because the
calculation requires management to make assumptions and apply judgment regarding a number of factors. Our risk of loss related to these repurchase
commitments is significantly reduced by the potential resale value of any products that are subject to repurchase and is spread over numerous dealers and
lenders. The aggregate contingent liability related to our repurchase agreements represents all financed dealer inventory at the period reporting date subject to
a repurchase agreement, net of the greater of periodic reductions per the agreement or dealer principal payments. Based on these repurchase agreements
and our historical loss experience, we establish an associated loss reserve which is included in accrued expenses-other on the consolidated balance sheets.
Our accrued losses on repurchases were $0.9 million as of August 25, 2018 and $0.7 million as of August 26, 2017. Repurchase risk is affected by the credit
worthiness of our dealer network and we do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be a material change in the estimates or assumptions
used to establish the loss reserve for repurchase commitments.

A summary of the activity for the fiscal years stated for repurchased units is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Fiscal 2018 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016
Inventory repurchased:
Units 56 14 29
Dollars $ 1,716 $ 408 $ 1,605
Inventory resold:
Units 56 15 28
Cash collected $ 1585 % 393 % 1,510
Loss recognized $ 132 3 4 3% 95
Units in ending inventory — — 1
Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceedings which are ordinary and routine litigation incidental to our business, some of which are covered in whole or in part
by insurance. While we believe the ultimate disposition of litigation will not have material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or
liquidity, there exists the possibility that such litigation may have an impact on our results for a particular reporting period in which litigation effects become
probable and reasonably estimable. Though we do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be a material change related to these matters,
litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and management'’s view of these matters may change in the future.

Lease Commitments
As part of our acquisition of Grand Design, we acquired leases to two properties which hold Grand Design’s current principal facilities and facilities under

construction for expansion. The lessor under these leases is an Indiana limited liability company, Three Oaks, LLC, owned by three of Grand Design's selling
equity holders. One of the selling equity holders, Mr. Don Clark is the
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President of Grand Design RV; Vice President of Winnebago Industries. Upon joining our company, Mr. Clark has agreed that as long as he is an employee of
Grand Design, he has relinquished his voting rights in Three Oaks, LLC while retaining all other economic rights in Three Oaks, LLC.

We have operating leases for certain land, buildings, and equipment. Lease expense was $4.4 million for Fiscal 2018, $2.9 million for Fiscal 2017, and $0.6
million for Fiscal 2016.

Our future lease commitments for future fiscal years included the following related party and non-related party leases:

Operating Leases

Non-Related Party

(In thousands) Related Party Amount Amount Total
Fiscal 2019 $ 1,800 $ 900 $ 2,700
Fiscal 2020 1,800 624 2,424
Fiscal 2021 1,800 570 2,370
Fiscal 2022 1,800 445 2,245
Fiscal 2023 2,533 150 2,683
Thereafter 4,041 — 4,041
Total future lease commitments $ 13,774  $ 2689 $ 16,463

Note 12: Stock-Based Compensation Plans

We have a 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (as amended, the "Plan") in place as approved by shareholders,
which allows us to grant or issue non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, share awards, and other equity compensation to key employees and to
non-employee directors.

No more than 3.6 million shares of common stock may be issued under the Plan, and no more than 3.6 million of those shares may be used for awards other
than stock options or stock appreciation rights. Shares subject to awards that are forfeited or terminated, expire unexercised, are cancelled and settled in cash
in lieu of common stock or are exchanged for awards that do not involve common stock, shall be added back to the limits and again immediately become
available for awards.

The term of any options granted under the Plan may not exceed ten years from the date of the grant. Stock options are granted at the closing market price on
the date of grant. Options issued to key employees generally vest over a three-year period in equal annual installments, beginning one year after the date of
grant, with immediate vesting upon a change of control (as defined in the Plan), if earlier.

Share awards generally vest over a three-year period in equal annual installments with continued employment, beginning one year after the date of grant, with
immediate vesting upon retirement for awards made prior to October 2016 or upon a change of control (collectively, "time-based") or upon attainment of
established goals. Share awards that are not time-based typically vest at the end of a one-year or three-year incentive period based upon the achievement of
company goals ("performance-based"). The value of time-based restricted share awards is based on the number of shares granted and the closing price of our
common stock on the date of grant. The value of performance-based restricted share awards is based upon the terms of the plan, the closing price of our
common stock on the date of grant, and an assessment of the probability of reaching the established performance targets. Historically, the terms of these plans
linked the incentive payment to a percentage of base salary compensation, and if the established goals are met, shares of the appropriate value are then
granted.

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"), as approved by the shareholders at the December 12, 2017 annual meeting, permits employees to purchase
our common stock at a 15% discount from the market price at the end of semi-annual purchase periods and is compensatory. Employees are required to hold
the common stock purchased for one year. In Fiscal 2018, 2,760 shares were purchased through the ESPP. At August 25, 2018, plan participants had
accumulated $0.1 million to purchase our common stock pursuant to this plan.
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Total stock-based compensation expense for the past three fiscal years consisted of the following components:

Year Ended

(In thousands)

August 25, 2018

August 26, 2017

August 27, 2016

Share awards:

Performance-based $ 2525 % 69 $ 807
Time-based 4,152 2,606 2,326
Stock options 502 164 11
Other® 255 138 149
Total stock-based compensation $ 7434 % 2977 % 3,293

(1) Includes stock-based compensation expense related to Board of Directors stock unit expense and ESPP expense. Directors may elect to defer all or part of their annual
retainer into a deferred compensation plan. The plan allows them to defer into either money units or stock units and is more fully described in the Proxy Statement.

Share Awards - Performance-Based

Long-Term Incentive Plan

In each fiscal year presented, the Human Resources Committee of our Board of Directors established a three year incentive compensation plan to serve as an
incentive to our senior management team to achieve certain company-performance targets. If the targets are met, restricted stock is awarded subsequent to
the end of each three year period with a one year restriction on sale upon award (except for shares we agree to repurchase in lieu of executives' payment of
payroll taxes). In the event that we do not achieve the required targets, no restricted stock will be granted. If it becomes probable that certain of the
performance targets will be achieved, the corresponding estimated cost of the grant will be recorded as stock-based compensation expense over the
performance period. The probability of reaching the targets is evaluated each reporting period. If it becomes probable that certain of the target performance
levels will be achieved, a cumulative adjustment will be recorded and future stock-based-compensation expense will increase based on the then projected
performance levels. If we later determine that it is not probable that the minimum performance threshold for the grants will be met, no further stock-based
compensation cost will be recognized and any previously recognized stock-based compensation cost related to these plans will be reversed.

Annual Incentive Plan

The Human Resources Committee of our Board of Directors establishes annual incentive plans for the officers. The Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017 Annual
Incentive Plans were paid entirely in cash, while the Fiscal 2016 Annual Incentive Plan was paid in 2/3 cash and 1/3 restricted stock (stock must be held for
one year from date of grant except for shares we agree to repurchase in lieu of executives' payment of payroll taxes). On October 11, 2016, 17,532 restricted
shares were awarded related to the Fiscal 2016 Annual Incentive Plan.

Share Awards - Time-Based

A summary of share award activity for Fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Year Ended
August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Grant Average Grant Average Grant
Date Date Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Beginning of year 243,769 $ 23.61 283881 $ 20.45 163,420 $ 20.83
Granted 167,781 42.54 156,801 28.13 240,270 19.72
Vested (100,648) 23.96 (159,979) 22.66 (110,283) 19.44
Cancelled (25,711) 29.64 (36,934) 22.61 (9,526) 20.28
End of year 285,191 $ 34.08 243,769 $ 23.61 283,881 $ 20.45

The aggregate intrinsic value of awards outstanding at August 25, 2018 was $10.6 million. As of August 25, 2018, there was $5.6 million of unrecognized
compensation expense related to restricted stock awards that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.2 years. The total fair value of
awards vested during Fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $7.1 million, $4.9 million, and $2.2 million, respectively.

On October 15, 2018, the Board of Directors granted 77,869 restricted stock units under the Plan valued at $2.5 million to our key management group
(approximately 40 employees). The Board of Directors also granted 23,975 restricted stock units valued at
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$0.8 million to the non-management members of the Board. The value of the restricted stock units is based on the closing price of our common stock on the
date of grant, which was $31.70. The fair value of this award is amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of three years for employees
and one year for non-management members of the Board. Estimated non-cash stock compensation expense based on this grant is expected to be

approximately $1.6 million for Fiscal 2019.

Stock Options

A summary of stock option activity for Fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Year Ended
August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016
Wtd. Avg. Wtd. Avg. Wtd. Avg.
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price/Share Shares Price/lShare Shares Price/lShare

Outstanding at beginning of year 65,800 $ 28.15 10,000 $ 16.67 167,394 $ 28.30
Options granted 72,710 44.40 63,800 29.92 10,000 16.67
Options cancelled — — (8,000) 27.89 (167,394) 28.30
Outstanding at end of year 138,510 $ 36.68 65,800 $ 28.15 10,000 $ 16.67
Exercisable at end of year 25,263 $ 26.64 3,333 $ 16.67 — % —
Vested and expected to vest at end of year 138,510 $ 36.68 65,800 $ 28.15 10,000 $ 16.67

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average valuation

assumptions:

Valuation Assumptions® Fiscal 2018 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016
Expected dividend yield 0.90% 1.35% 2.40%
Risk-free interest rate @ 1.99% 1.47% 1.49%
Expected life (in years) © 5 5 5
Expected volatility ¥ 38.08% 39.34% 43.52%
Weighted average fair value of options granted $14.78 $9.58 $5.31

(1) Forfeitures are recorded when they occur.

(2) Risk-free interest rate is based on Treasury Securities constant maturity interest rate whose term is consistent with the expected life of the stock options.

(3) Expected life of stock options is based on historical experience.

(4) Expected stock price volatility is based on historical experience over a term consistent with the expected life of the stock options.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for options outstanding at August 25, 2018 was 8.6 years. Aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding at
August 25, 2018 was $0.6 million. As of August 25, 2018, there was $1.0 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to option awards that is

expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

On October 15, 2018, the Board of Directors granted 114,635 stock options to our officers.

Note 13: Income Taxes

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

(In thousands)

Year Ended

August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017

August 27, 2016

Current
Federal
State
Total
Deferred
Federal
State
Total
Income Tax Expense

$ 28,874 $ 33,125 $ 14,293
5,215 2,937 1,685

34,089 36,062 15,978

5,123 926 4,280

1,071 281 444

6,194 1,207 4,724

$ 40,283 $ 37,269 $ 20,702
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to our effective income tax rate:

Year Ended

August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017 August 27, 2016

U.S. federal statutory rate(® 25.9 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
State taxes, net of federal benefit 3.0% 2.8% 25%
Tax-free and dividend income (0.4)% (0.7)% (1.3)%
Income tax credits (0.5)% (0.6)% (1.1)%
Domestic production activities deduction (2.2)% (2.4)% (2.5)%
Uncertain tax positions settlements and adjustments 0.1% (0.6)% — %
Impact from Tax Act 2.6 % — % — %
Other items (0.3)% 0.8 % (1.3)%
Effective tax provision rate 28.2% 34.3% 31.3%

(1) The U.S. federal statutory rate for the year ended August 25, 2018 is a blended rate, which includes the impact of the Tax Act enactment.

Our effective tax rate decreased to 28.2% for Fiscal 2018 from 34.3% for Fiscal 2017 due primarily to the enactment of the Tax Act on December 22, 2017.
One of the most significant provisions of this legislation was a reduction in the Federal corporate income tax rate from 35.0% to 21.0% effective beginning
January 1, 2018. Most of the remaining significant provisions of the Tax Act, such as the repeal of the federal domestic production activities deduction, take
effect in our Fiscal 2019.

ASU 2018-05, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, provided guidance for
companies that allows for a measurement period of up to one year after the enactment date of the Tax Act to finalize the recording of the related tax impacts
under ASC 740, Income Taxes. In accordance with this guidance, a company must reflect the income tax effect of those aspects of the Tax Act for which the
accounting under ASC 740 is complete. To the extent that a company's accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Act is incomplete, but it is able to
determine a reasonable estimate, the company must record a provisional estimate in the financial statements.

In accordance with ASC 740, as of the date of enactment through the year ended August 25, 2018, we recorded a non-cash provisional estimate of $3.6
million to income tax expense and a corresponding increase in the net deferred tax asset as a result of revaluing all deferred tax assets and liabilities at the
newly enacted Federal corporate income tax rate.

We are still analyzing certain aspects of the Tax Act and refining our calculations, which could potentially affect the measurement of our deferred tax balances
and cause us to revise our estimate in future periods. These impacts may be material, due to, among other things, further refinement of our calculations,
changes in interpretations of the Tax Act, or issuance of additional guidance by the relevant tax authorities.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred income taxes were as follows:

(In thousands) August 25, 2018 August 26, 2017

Deferred income tax asset (liability)
Deferred compensation $ 4,730 $ 9,135
Warranty reserves 9,842 11,675
Self-insurance reserve 2,601 1,967
Accrued vacation 1,298 2,142
Stock based compensation 1,277 943
Inventory 615 —
Unrecognized tax benefit 584 437
Other® 1,797 2,072
Total deferred tax assets 22,744 28,371
Inventory — (1,919)
Intangibles (21,292) (7,455)
Depreciation (5,909) (6,261)
Total deferred tax liabilities (27,201) (15,635)

Total deferred income tax (liabilities) assets, net $ (4,457) $ 12,736

(1) At August 25, 2018, other includes $1.4 million and $0.1 million related to federal and state net operating losses, respectively, that do not expire. We have evaluated all the
positive and negative evidence and consider it more likely than not that these carryforwards can be realized.
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It is our policy to recognize interest and penalties accrued relative to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Total reserves for uncertain tax

positions were not material.

We file a U.S. Federal tax return, as well as returns in various international and state jurisdictions. Although certain years are no longer subject to examination
by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and various state taxing authorities, net operating loss carryforwards generated in those years may still be adjusted
upon examination by the IRS or state taxing authorities. As of August 25, 2018, our federal returns from Fiscal 2015 to present are subject to review by the
IRS. With limited exception, state returns from Fiscal 2014 to present continue to be subject to review by state taxing jurisdictions. Several years may lapse
before an uncertain tax position is audited and finally resolved and it is difficult to predict the outcome of such audits.

Note 14: Income per Share

The following table reflects the calculation of basic and diluted income per share for the past three fiscal years:

Year Ended

(In thousands, except per share data)

August 25, 2018

August 26, 2017

August 27, 2016

Income per share - basic

Net income $
Weighted average shares outstanding

Net income per share - basic $

Income per share - assuming dilution

Net income $
Weighted average shares outstanding

Dilutive impact of awards and options outstanding

Weighted average shares and potential dilutive shares outstanding
Net income per share - assuming dilution $

102,357 $ 71,330 $ 45,496
31,596 30,648 26,925
324 $ 233 % 1.69
102,357 $ 71,330 $ 45,496
31,596 30,648 26,925
218 118 108
31,814 30,766 27,033
322 % 232 % 1.68

The computation of weighted average shares and potential dilutive shares outstanding excludes the effect of options to purchase 62,323, 55,800, and 10,000
shares of common stock for the fiscal years ended August 25, 2018, August 26, 2017, and August 27, 2016, respectively. These amounts were not included in
the computation of diluted income per share because they are considered anti-dilutive under the treasury stock method.
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Note 15: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Changes in AOCI by component, net of tax, were:

Year Ended

August 25, 2018

August 26, 2017

Defined Benefit Interest Rate Defined Benefit Interest Rate

(In thousands) Pension Items Swap Total Pension Items Swap Total
Balance at beginning of year $ (509) $ (514) $ (1,023) $ 10,975 — $ 10,975

OCI before reclassifications — 1,947 1,947 3,846 (514) 3,332

Amounts reclassified from AOCI 27 — 27 (15,330) — (15,330)

Net current-period OCI 27 1,947 1,974 (11,484) (514) (11,998)

Reclassification to retained earnings (209) 50 (59) — — —
Balance at end of year $ (591) $ 1,483 $ 892 $ (509) (514) $ (1,023)
Reclassifications out of AOCI in net periodic benefit costs, net of tax, were:

Year Ended
Location on Consolidated Statements of Income and August 25,

(In thousands) Comprehensive Income 2018 August 26,2017 August 27, 2016
Amortization of prior service credit SG&A $ (25,035) % (4,788)
Amortization of net actuarial loss SG&A 9,705 1,010

Total reclassifications $ (15,330) $ (3,778)
Note 16: Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
The following tables show selected operating results for each 3-month quarter of Fiscal 2018 and 2017 (unaudited):
Fiscal 2018 Quarter Ended

November 25, February 24, May 26, August 25,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2017 2018 2018 2018
Net revenues $ 450,021 % 468,359 562,261 $ 536,188
Gross profit 62,831 67,661 85,514 83,830
Operating income 31,176 35,251 48,277 45,688
Net income 17,958 22,088 32,521 29,790
Net income per share (basic) 0.57 0.70 1.03 0.94
Net income per share (diluted) 0.57 0.69 1.02 0.94
Fiscal 2017 Quarter Ended
November 26, February 25, May 27, August 26,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2016 2017 2017 2017
Net revenues $ 245,308 $ 370,510 476,364 $ 454,936
Gross profit 28,875 49,316 70,804 73,582
Operating income 18,399 28,376 34,860 43,471
Net income 11,738 15,278 19,391 24,923
Net income per share (basic)® 0.42 0.48 0.61 0.79
Net income per share (diluted)® 0.42 0.48 0.61 0.79

(1) The sum of the quarterly amounts will not equal the YTD amount due primarily to the stock issuance during Fiscal 2017.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures. Management necessarily applied its judgment in assessing the costs and benefits of such controls and procedures and
believes that such controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of the Evaluation Date.

Evaluation of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management's report on internal control over financial reporting as of August 25, 2018 is included within Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. The report of Deloitte & Touche LLP on the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting is included within Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in internal control over financial reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter ended August 25, 2018 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

We are implementing an Enterprise Resource Planning ("ERP") system which is expected to improve the efficiency of certain financial and related transaction
processes. The implementation of an ERP system will likely affect the processes that constitute our internal control over financial reporting and will require
testing for effectiveness. As we have completed implementation of certain phases of the ERP, internal controls over financial reporting have been tested for
effectiveness with respect to the scope of the phase completed. We concluded, as part of our evaluation described in the above paragraphs, that the
implementation of ERP in these circumstances has not materially affected our internal control over financial reporting. The implementation is continuing in a
phased approach and will continue to be evaluated for effect on our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance.

Reference is made to the table entitled "Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part | of this report and to the information included under the captions
"Corporate Governance," "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance," "Election of Directors," and "Fiscal Year 2019 Shareholder Proposals" in
our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held December 11, 2018, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
We have adopted a written code of ethics, the "Code of Conduct" (the "Code"), which is applicable to each our employees, including our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer (such three officers, collectively, the "Senior Officers"). In accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC, a

copy of the Code is posted on our website at www.winnebagoind.com in the "Company" section under "Investor Relations - Corporate Governance."

We intend to disclose any changes in or waivers from the Code applicable to any Senior Officer on our website at www.winnebagoind.com or by filing a Form
8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Reference is made to the information included under the captions "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held December 11, 2018, which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Reference is made to the table entitled "Equity Compensation Plan Information” in Part Il of this report and to the share ownership information included under
the caption "Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof" in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held

December 11, 2018, which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Reference is made to the information included under the caption "Corporate Governance" in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
scheduled to be held December 11, 2018, which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Reference is made to the information included under the caption "Independent Registered Public Accountant's Fees and Services" in our Proxy Statement for
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held December 11, 2018 which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

1.

2.

3.

Our consolidated financial statements are set forth under Item 8 of this report.

Financial Statement Schedules: Winnebago Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries

All schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the information required is

shown in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Number and Description

2a.

3a.

3b.

10a.

10b.

10c.

10d.

10e.

10f.

Securities Purchase Agreement by and among, Grand Design RV, LLC, Octavius Corporation, Winnebago Industries,_Inc. Summit Partners Growth
Equity Fund VIII-B, L.P., Summit Partners Growth Equity Fund VIII-A, L.P., Summit Partners Entrepreneur Advisors Fund I, L.P., Summit Investors I,
LLC, Summit Investors | (UK), L.P., SP GE VIII-B GD RV Holdings, L.P., RDB Illl, Inc., and each of the shareholders of RDB lll, Inc. previously filed
with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference
herein.

Articles of Incorporation.

Amended By-Laws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 16, 2016
(Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan previously filed with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 2, 1991 (Commission File Number 001-06403), and incorporated by reference herein and the Amendment dated June 29, 1995 previously
filed as Exhibit 10.B with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 26, 1995 (Commission File Number 001-
06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Executive Share Option Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.J with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 29, 1998 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein,_and the Amendment dated July 1,
1999 previously filed as Exhibit 10.J with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 29, 1999 (Commission File
Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein and the Amendment dated January 1, 2001 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 24, 2001 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by
reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.C with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended November 25, 2006 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and the Amendment dated June 21, 2011 previously filed as
Exhibit 10.BB with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2011 (Commission File Number 001-06403)
and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2004 Incentive Compensation Plan previously filed as Appendix B with the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting_of Shareholders held on January 13, 2004 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein and the
Amendment dated October 11, 2006 previously filed as Exhibit 10.A with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 25, 2006 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein and the Amendment dated March 23, 2011

001-06403) and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan previously filed as Appendix B with the
Registrant's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting_of Shareholders held on December 17, 2013 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and
incorporated by reference herein and the Supplement previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 6, 2013 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.E with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended August 30, 1997 (Commission File Number 001-06403),_and incorporated by reference herein and the Amendment
dated October 15, 2003 previously filed as Exhibit 10.H with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 29,
2003 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein and the Amendment dated October 11, 2006 previously filed as
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Exhibit 10.B with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 25, 2006 (Commission File Number 001-06403)
and the Amendment dated July 1, 2013 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 1, 2013 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Profit Sharing and Deferred Savings Investment Plan previously filed with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K

1, 1995 previously filed as Exhibit 10.C with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 26, 1995 (Commission
File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 18, 2014 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Officers' Long-Term Incentive Plan, fiscal three-year period 2016, 2017 and 2018 previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 with the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 16, 2015 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 11, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Officers' Long-Term Incentive Plan, fiscal three-year period 2018, 2019 and 2020 previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 with the

Executive Change of Control Agreement dated June 20, 2012 between Winnebago Industries, Inc. and S. Scott Degnan previously filed as Exhibit
10.V with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2012 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and
incorporated by reference herein.*

Executive Change of Control Agreement dated April 26, 2016 between Winnebago Industries, Inc. and Michael J. Happe previously filed as Exhibit
99.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 26, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference
herein.*

Executive Change of Control Agreement dated September 16, 2016 between Winnebago Industries, Inc. and Brian Hazelton previously filed as
Exhibit 10.U with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and
incorporated by reference herein.*

Separation Agreement dated June 19, 2017 between Winnebago Industries, Inc. and Sarah N. Nielsen previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 8-K dated June 19, 2017 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Executive Change of Control Agreement dated December 22, 2017 between Winnebago Industries,_Inc. and Bryan L. Hughes previously filed as
Exhibit 99.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 22, 2017 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by
reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.Z with the Registrant's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended August 29, 2009 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries,_Inc. Officers' Incentive Compensation Plan for Fiscal Period 2016 previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 with the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 16, 2015 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries,_Inc. Officers' Incentive Compensation Plan for Fiscal Period 2017 previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 with the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 11, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries,_Inc. Officers' Incentive Compensation Plan for Fiscal Period 2018 previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 with the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 17, 2017 (Commission File Number 001-06403) and incorporated by reference herein.*

Winnebago Industries, Inc. Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation (later acquired by Wells Fargo

10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2014 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference
herein.
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Non-competition, Non-solicitation and Confidentiality Agreement by and among_Octavius Corporation, Winnebago Industries, Inc., Grand Design
RV, LLC, RDB I, Inc., Ronald Fenech, Donald Clark and William Fenech previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated October 2, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality Agreement by and among_Octavius Corporation, Winnebago Industries,_Inc., Grand Design, RV, LLC, Summit
Partners Growth Equity Fund VIII-B, L.P., Summit Partners Growth Equity Fund VIII-A, L.P., Summit Entrepreneur Advisors Fund |, L.P., Summit
Investors |, LLC, Summit Investors | (UK), L.P.,_ and SP GE VIII-B GD RV Holdings previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 with the Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Registration Rights Agreement by and among_Winnebago Industries, Inc., Summit Partners Growth Equity Fund VIII-A, L.P., Summit Partners
Growth Equity Fund VIII-B, L.P., Summit Partners Entrepreneur Advisors Fund |, L.P., Summit Investors |, LLC, Summit Investors | (UK), L.P. and
SP GE VIII-B GD RV Holdings,_L.P., Donald Clark, Ronald Fenech, and William Fenech previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 with the Registrant's Current

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 2016 including Exhibit A, Executive Change of Control Agreement between Winnebago
Industries,_Inc. and Donald Clark (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Loan Agreement by and among_Winnebago Industries, Inc., Octavius Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. previously filed as Exhibit 99.2
with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference
herein.

Amendment No. 1 to Loan Agreement dated as of December 8, 2017 among_Octavius Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative
Agent and the lender parties hereto previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 8, 2017
(Commission File No. 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Credit Agreement by and among_Winnebago Industries, Inc., Winnebago of Indiana, LLC, Grand Design RV, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
previously filed as Exhibit 99.3 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403),
and incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement dated as of December 8, 2017 by and among_Winnebago Industries, Inc., Winnebago of Indiana, LLC,
Grand Design RV, LLC, the other Loan Parties hereto, the financial institutions party hereto as Lenders, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as
Administrative Agent previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 8, 2017 (Commission File
No. 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

Intercreditor Agreement by and among Winnebago Industries,_Inc., Winnebago of Indiana, LLC, Grand Design RV, LLC, Octavius Corporation and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. previously filed as Exhibit 99.4 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2016
(Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.

99.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 26, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403)_and
incorporated by reference herein.

Exhibit 99.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 26, 2016 (Commission File Number 001-06403),
and incorporated by reference herein.

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting_Firm.

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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101.INS*XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitions Linkbase Document
101.LAB*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.
**Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following financial statements from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 25, 2018
formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (iii) the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) related notes to these financial statements. Such
exhibits are deemed furnished and not filed pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

None.

68



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

By /s/ Michael J. Happe

Michael J. Happe

President, Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: October 18, 2018

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on October 18, 2018, by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Capacity

/s/ Michael J. Happe

Michael J. Happe President, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Bryan L. Hughes

Bryan L. Hughes Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Maria F. Blase
Maria F. Blase Director

/s/ Christopher J. Braun

Christopher J. Braun Director

/s/ Robert M. Chiusano
Robert M. Chiusano Director

/s/ William C. Fisher
William C. Fisher Director

/s/ David W. Miles
David W. Miles Director

/s/ Richard D. Moss
Richard D. Moss Director

/s/ John M. Murabito
John M. Murabito Director

/s/ Martha T. Rodamaker
Martha T. Rodamaker Director
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT '8 153 IMENDED AND RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

FIRNERAGL INDDSTRAES, INC. =
= - =
== =
= 0w
=

To the Secrelory of Statz af e State of Fnod:

Dus-snunt {e the frrovisions of §clon 58 of the Jowa Business Corporcion
adoprs fs folowing Aréicles of Amendiceszto

Aei, e wwlersigned Coxporation
ife Amieng'ad ond Restated Ardeles of Frrowporalion: 2
(1) The marae of tie Cowpara lion is Wimebsgo hdustrias,
gec. The effectice date af ils incarprralion was the 12th day of
Felruary, 1058, Es oviginal nosn uas Modesnisiic Industries of
fors .
The falking Amondinarf af the Amend=sd and Restated
on was adeiied by the shareholders of the
erext on May Z0th | 19685, £ the
Brusimess Corporaiion Acl:

' (=)
Articles of lcorforai
Curporation entilied o vole ik
marmer prescribed by the Jows
Articie [T of the Amended and Restated Articies of :
Iecorporation of Wamebage hdusiries, Inc., is keveby amended
in ils eafirety o vesd as follows: ot

ARTICLE IV

CAPITAL STOCK:

The agevsgale member of

be auffurized to issue is Ten Million
Stock having « par value of Fifty Cenfs (§.50) eack, ol being of a

sinole class.
Each common share shall be entitled to one vofe of each

3-

meeting of shareholders.
vofing vighls end control of the corporation.

shares which the Corporation Shall
(16, 000, 008) shares af Commes

The common shareholders shall kave all

o]

Mo shareholder shall have ény pre-emplive righi fo acquire
addifional shares of the covioralion nor shall any shareholder have
gy pre-emplive right lo acquire freasury shares of e corporsiion.

_-if. the Hme of adoption of this Article of Amendment to the Amended and
the Corporation had outstanding One Million
, 1o0) shares aof

Resiafed Aviicles of hcorporation,
TEres Towdvred Eighty-seven Thousand One Hiundred (I, 357

for which issuance,

Thouwsand One

Common Siock, having a par value of One Dollzr (§1} each,
Mil¥ien Thyee Hundred Eighly-seven

fhe ageregaie sum of One
Thom issuauce of a

Hundred Dollars 1,337,
comsiitutes ife stafed capital,
of Staie, said shares of outstmiding
the Corporation are kerehby

From its surplus and
Certificate of Amendment by the Secrefary

Onre Dollar $1) par celue Common Stock thus issued by
Ged fnto Two Million Seven Hundred Seventy—jour Thousad
200) shares of Common Siock having @ par value of Fifty Cents

Ider oF record of a cerlificate for ome or more sheres of
s5 on lte dete (his

as soon as practicabls

changed mnd reclassi
Two Hundred (2, 774,
5. 30) each and each ho
Common Stock of the Corporation as of the clese of busine
amendment becomes effective shall be entitled ta receive,

106) has been paid inio the Corporalion ov fransferred

and without surrender of such certificate, a certificate or certificales representing

cme additonz] skave for each sk ve veprecented by certificales registered in the

name of suchk holder et the close of business on the dale this amendment becoines

effeciive, and the stated capiial of the Corporafion shall be uncharged.




Page o
Articlzs of Amendment lo tve Amended and Restafed iriicles of

Scorporation of Wimnebage Pudustries, bic.

(#) The said Articles of Anendment to e Smwerded arnd
Restaisd Articles of lacorporafion was edopled ot Yhe Amawd Bl i
of the Common Shareholdsrs of the Corporation jheld o the 2
) Aday af Mey, IP6E; said Common Shareislders befng bhe aw;!v_S-" ari
nolders of the Corpordiion.

) Thae rumber of Common Shares of the Corpuration our-
* tanding at the Hme of such adoptioc: was e Mivlies Turee Huncred
Eighly-seven Thousend Cue Hundred (1,367, 100;; the neniber of
Common Sheres entitied lo vofe thereon roas One Mo Tirce Hirgdrod
Eight-seven Thousand Gne Hundred (1,387, i00); the wabey of shares

wvioled for such amendment was 1,357, 514 ; amc Bee number of
siares roled agningl swch aniendment was 240

5} The mamer in which the reclassification of the
Cirporalion s Common Shares shall e efecled bv swch cnendnrent
is sef forth in swch amcndnient,

(6} Suwch amensinear does not effect a change in the amount of
sisfed capital or the Corporation, which amow shall remain nm:.‘-cn oid
as i sum of Gne Mm.:m Three Hundred Eighly-seven Thousand Gm.' :

Huudred Doligrs {§1, 257, 10wy
Daiag,this __ 20tk oy of May . 1588,
s 'Hlnf’ff'a 1‘|1 '

= "

WINKEB: (,{:t IN L”STR.LES NG,
%ﬁm

Ii-‘fm K. .Es’ar.r.s'mt_ Presiden
5}’1 [ rryyrs ) ‘/?

EllioH L. Cooper. Secpiary

CETATE GF rowA . L0

COUNTY CF WINNEBAGO, ss :
On Wiz 20th day of May, i365, bgfore me, Betly J. Baldwin, a Notery
Public in and jor said Coundy, peETsonsily czppmreﬁ Jodin K. ' Aenson and Ellios B,
Cogper, ecch lo me personallv Erown, who being b m me duly sworm, did say that
they are President and SBecretars, respeclively, af Wimebago ﬁrdusfnes Ire.;
fhal the seal affived herelo is the duly adopied sea? of soid Corporation: that soid
Arficlzs of Amendment of the Amended and Reslated Arficles of bhicorporation was
signed and evecuied om behalf of the Corpovation by authority of its Beard of
Directors md its Slockholders entilled to vole; and the said Jodin K. Hancon aed
Ellioit E, Couper acknowisdged the evecution of seid instrument to be the volintary
act oid deed gf said Corporation by if and by them vobiesterily sxecuted.

-'.J'.I
J‘.'J)_? —}“ /—-«r_-l"’..-edff-‘ "ﬂ;—,ﬂ
Helly J. ‘,iz.cdu "J't Notary Fublic in aad
for Wingebage Cc:m.-‘_s o

OFFICE L7 THE SECnE STARY OF STaT” !
Hm-:n..,l =
_h.I: mr‘ rerosred [a Baookr o rwjfé_., i .Lx.an&-;_f..,ner._?’ e




P Each commpn shave shall be enlilled ! ;
P The comaron shereholders.siallhcue.. e e T e iy S P

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTA TED_;. ; I_-:
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF ‘4 :
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC. TE z-" '

I Ta the Secrelary of Slale af the State of Towar

Purswant to He provisions of Section 58 of the Jowa Buciness Corpovation
Act, the mdersigned Corperation adopts the foliowing Avticles of Amendment lo
its Amended and Restated Ariticles of corporation: :

(1} The nane of the Corporation is Winnsbago Industrics,
e, The effective Date of ils incovporation was the 12th day af
Falruary, 1958. [ts origincl nowe was Modernistic Industries

af Jow. L
[ The following Amendment of the Amended and Restated
Idere af the

Avticles of Incorporalion wes adoplud by the sharehs
Corporation entitled to voie theveon on May a2 . 1969, &
the manner prescribed by Hie Jowa Business Corporalion Act:

Aﬁ:‘c!_e IV of the Amnended and Restated Arifcles of
Ircovporation of Wimneboyo ndusiries, Inc.: is hereby amended .
rk in its entivety to vead os follows: ; .

ARTICLE IV

i

A=

! CAPITAL STOCK:

The aggregate munmber of shares which the Corporation sr.'ct.fi
be nuthorized to issue is Twenly Million 20,000, 00d) skares of 7
Common Stock heving o par value of Fifty Cenls ($. 50) each, all

being of @ single class. _ s
e sga
lo une volc al egch

2 A L

P s tr e meppreeting of: shaveholder se
@il voting vights and control of the corporation.

3 No shaveholder shall have any pre-emplive vight to acqidre
additional shares of the corporation wor shall any shaveholder have
any pre-gmpiive right o acquire treasury shares of the corporation,

(3 The said Articles of Amendntent to the Amended and
Restated Articles of Incovporation was adopled at the Ammnal
Meeting of the Common Shaveholders of the Corporalion held on

the 22nd  day of May, 1969; said Common Shareholders being fhe
only shareholders of the Corporation,

) The mpmber of Comnton Sheres of the Covporalion oul-
l standing at the tme of such adoption was Thyee Million Twenly-four
Thousand Two Humdred (3, 02<,200); the number of Common Shares
entitled to vote theveon was Three Million Twenty-four Thowsand
Two Hundyed (3,024,200); the monber of sheres voled for such
gmendnrenrt was 2,736,003 - and the number of shaves voled

againel suech amendment was 413

(5} Such Amendment does not vequire exchmyge, reclass-
ification or cancellation of issued shares.

]




Papre IN}\ID
Articles of Amendment fo the Amended and Restated Articles of
Srcovporation of Wirmebago hudustries, Me.

) Such amendnent does not gffect & change in the
amowt of staled capilal af the Corperation.

Daled this 22nd _day of May, 1969.

BAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

!
oA Wi

Jokn K. Hanson, Presicent

WINDN,

& 3, ; s
Vi

#

STATE OF IoWA , "

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 55

om this Z2nd day of May, 159, before me, Befty J, Baldwin, a Notary
Public iz and for sad County, personally appeared Joln K. Henson and Etliott
E. Cooper, each to me personally kuown, who being by me duly sworn, did say
that they are Presinont ond Secrefary, respectively, of Wimmebago Industries,
e, ; that the seal affixed thereto is the duly adopted seal of said Corporation;
et said Artieles of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Ariicles of
Incorporalion was signed and execuled on behalf of the Corporation by authorily

of its Board of Dircclors and iis Steckholders eniitled lo vole; and-the said Jokn

K. Hanson and Elliott E. Cooper acknowledged the execution of said instrionent
tu be the voluntary cot and deed of said Corporation by €t and by them
volurtarily execubed, d

o

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF SPACE 13

o Des Mulses buww ) i
This inctryeat meousded i Elraale .&-.':'—u\'. Puge 5-"'13 (e Q‘;.;MA-“_-;.L-‘-} s I';El.ull..f

Eapirs . "" . Crrt Moy gk .2 Pemeipt e .T__.rq} TS
Filea 3y g g "-‘—.4—.#—-5—9*13_‘.:'..__ A S _ﬂh:_-xn srbtion
Etline Feecl0 - Momedine Pob Lol f,..{_..&q_‘i—-f e rarye of Srane |

576

.

« %4
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED.
- OF
ARTICLES OF INCORPORA T70N %@ﬁﬂh !ﬂﬁ_ _

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

I To the Secratary of State of the State of JTowa:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 58 of the lowa Busfness
Corporation Act, the wndersigned Corporation adopis the following Ariicles
its Amended and Restated Articles of meorporalioe:

of Amendment to
(1) The name of the Corporation is Winnebago
e, The effective date ﬂfﬂs_ﬁ:cmwuﬁm was

Idustvies,
the 12th day of February, 1958. Its nAME WIS

Modernistic ndustvies of Iowa.

&) The following Amendmeant of the Amended and

Restated Aviicies of Icorporation was adopted by the shareholder's

of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon on May 21, 1970, in

the manner prescribed by the Jowa Business Corpovation Act:
Article VIof the Amended and Restated Articles of

Ficorporation of Winnebago Fudustries, Inc., is heveby
amendad in {is entivety fa vead as Jollows:

ARTICLE VI

_ "k DIRECTORS: - .
ing the Board of Direciors

The number of direciors comstiti
uf the Corparation chail be not more than fifteer (15} nor less than
three (3), the precise nunber to be specijied in the By-Laws of the
Corporation. t i

P Tt SRR sof3)- The said Ari

Restated Avticles of carporalion was adopied af the Amual

Meeting of the Common Sharekolders of the Corporation held on

the 21st day of May, 1970; said Common Skarekolders being th

only shareholders of the Corporation... p

The number of Common Shares of the Corporation
outstonding at the time of such adoption was Six Million Forty-
eight Thousawd Four Hundred (6, 048,400); the mumber of Common
Sheres entilled fo vote thereon was Six Million Fority-eigii
Thousand Four Hundred (6, 048, 404); the number of shares voted
for such amendment was 4,605, 379 : and the number of
shares voled against such amendment was

I (5) Swch Amendment does not require exchange, ¥e-
classification or cancellation of issued shares.

(8) Swch amendiment does not effect @ change in the

T A
R Ay L e

e ] £
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i
f
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TSR

AH:':I&S afAmendmeut ta ﬂih-ﬂ.rhm cm‘,izasm:ed Aﬂ:c.&es uf' ; A .
Frcorporation of Winnebago hdustes; ez - - A WA e oo

amount of stated capital of the Corporation.

. Dated this _21=t _ day of May, 1970,
q—.‘w\'\r\\%
3 ‘1-. WINNERA GO INDUSTRIES , INC,

okn K, Eanm, President

_E‘_M s (Lf.u)

Ellipit E; Cooper, Secrefry

STATE OF IOWA

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ss

On this 21si  day of May, 1970, bejore me, Betiy J. Baldwin, a
: Notary Public in and for said County, personally appeered Jolm K, Hanson
and Elliolt E, Cooper, each to me pevsonally fmown, who being by me duly
sworn, did say that they are President and Secvelary, respectively, of
Wimmebago Industries, e, ; that the seal affived thereto is the duly adopied
seal of said Corporation; thel said Articles of Amendment of the Awended
-and Restated Articles of Breorpovation wes signed and executed on behalf of
the Corporation by authorily of its Board of Diveciors and iis Stockholdeys
entitled to vote; and the said Johm K. Hanson and Ellioit E, Cooper
acknowledged the execution of said instrument fo be the volwlary act and
deed of said Corporafion by it and by them voluniarily executed,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Moioes, lowa
This instrument rocorded in Boak =3 E ., Page Tl Mo . [
Exprel F_L.. R 0 . .;-';‘...'Z...".? . Reedlpe Mo == -
il Be Mmu;ﬂmv : ; ;
mul-h-?:

!.'Imz I-J pramting Fre .{.0:3’-_‘. il
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STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE.
OF REGETERED AGENT. OR BOTH,

OF ;
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC @EEQWE@

U mAR 1 5 1071

SECRETARY OF STATE _

T+ he Secretary of Srate
of e State of lowar
Pursuant o the visione of the [ows Pusiness C-\rpo“zlrion Act,
sn= undersigned corperscion, organized under the iaws oF the Arate of
Towa _ zubmirs the following statement for the purpose of
aging tis registered office or i registered agent, or both, inthe
= of Jowa:

I. The name or'the cerporation s Winnebsgo Indostries, Inc.
1. The address of its present regisrered office is _201-202 Secor f

Bldg. . Forest Cimv, Jowa
[D1d Address)

address to which itg registered office is o be chanz"*d is

LS Ths
145 South Clark Street, Forest Cisv, Towz 50438
(Mew Address) .
W, Th= name of its present registerad agent is
Etlio':-: E. Cooper "
B The name of fts saccessor registerad agent is
Elliptt £. Cooper
L The address of its registered offics znd the address of the

business oifics of it5 re!,w.ered a;. nt, &= changed, will be identicai.

I, Such change was suthorized by resclution duly adopted by its
pozrd of directors.

Dared : Maréh 10 , 1971,
= s e e = s et e e L
srare of A " dimes, Bimw : :
Y |-t EER— i ‘"""'_‘;59“' recorded in Bunlk J’J‘.&' Paee D 7 P eane s L 11?' .
i o } PEran w s ik, .ﬁ.;:.f-l?’I ..... E 'ﬁ‘.‘l 0 R e A | Y
Wipnebago oRnry i Pl By r =) i ] @{i{}
3 Filiag . ﬂr:wﬂ]n:.' Feef.i':_.. S 7 i 5‘.‘_,.‘.'.4'_..\_, of th
|. Gerald E. Eoman e TS oo ST o Ry
Jupnse and siate tiac [ am the Viem= President of Winnehago
indust .,3.5_ Inc. ., amd hat [ executed the forsgoing instrument a8 g™ -
Preosidom o8 e corperaiion, and that the stacemsnis concained thereim.ace Tk,
_..'rfl N i T o
a kel & Brpioet " 7.

Yppseribead and fworn (o before me this  10th r_f..:l}-' of 'M-ﬁ'r::h

e % 3. " ' =
W m. @“L(_

lgesi s Bl
FOMR IO 7L




ARTITZE OF AMDEDMENT TO THE AMENDED AXD RISTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPCEATION OF

WINEZEAGD INDUSTRI=ES, INO,

To the Secrstexry of State of the State of Iowa:

Section 53 of the Towa
igrzsd Corporetion adopts tihe
cdment to iis Amended sad Restated Art*-i==

Parszent to th
sinass Corporation Ac
following Artisles of fim
cf Incorporasica;

(1) The name of the Corporation is Winnedsgo
Industries, Inc, The effective date of its incorpora-
tioz was ¢ l=sh day of ?e’“uSIT, ;93@ Its originas?
nams was “bﬂev“ls::k Industrizss of Iowa

{2) The following Amendment of the Zmended and
Restated ‘F_'”l=; of In:arporav_on was zdopted Ty the
sharerold wae Lorporatico entitled tq veia
tnerecn oo May manner grescribed by
thz Zowa & hc“ﬂnret*a" fct:

Amended end Restated
iy ¢ ic? of Wimnebago Industri

Art neoIpo
Lho, Ty amended in its engirety io read
25 1 :

wamber of sbarss which the

thorized fo issum is sixty
sheres of Common Stock havi
cenis ($.50) sech, 211 heing

COmE0n share

yote ail each meetings of
Shareholdars shell have
ZF T Corporati

0 1)

o O et iy
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Page Twvo
Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated
Articles of Incofperation of Winnebsgo Industries, Inc,

(%) The number of Common Shares of the Corpora
outstending at the time of such adeption was Twelse
Millior Six-Hundred Thousand Fifty-Nine (12,600,05%};
tne nunber of Common Sheres entitled to vote thereon
was Twelve Million Six-Hundred Thousand Fifty Nine

(1= £00,059); the number of shares wvoted for such amend
and the number of

ment wes o, 424, 018 ; 2
shares voied Bgainsi Such anendment was 4,702 5

(5} Such Amendment does not reguire exchange,
reclassificstion or cancellation of lssued sheres.

does not effect & change' in

(£} Such Amendment
the Corporation, -

the amsunt. of staia2d capitel of

dey of May, 1572

Dated this Z5th T
B i P S WINNERAGO INDUSTRIES, INCI
. = \JHP“H,F‘& i - i 1 ‘
Foik . % 1-'.‘9_.;':5 By _=:hg U, Mapaet
‘o: HEiTwe 1ED Jokn V. Henson,
- e = O: i
s =3 Bty ot
x = Seal Rl g
] ., ~ = o —_—
e B T g o At N
By el AN S By -
L= = £ =11 e = Fal
gy, INV 2 ! Ell‘ott =, Coop
« e ¢

STATZ 7 ICHA

COUNTY OF WIHNZEAGD

it on tr_‘_s' £3th-gay of ‘-'er 372, tefore me, Fegau ~7
b e a l1Dt-"3."""’ and fer saild E.‘cuu.n..:.r, DETSOE . ~
Ty appeared Jonk: Vs flanson a.rd Fl‘Li::'rt. E. Cooper, each to‘me par-
fn
t - h a

; sonalliv dnmown, whe being by me duly sworn, did say thal-ulley are

i Fresident and Secretary, respectively, -of Winnshago Indusgfies,.-Ibc.: .
that the seal affixed thereto is the duly adopted seal of-seid Corpo==a-
tion; that saild articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatec
Articles of Incorporation was signed and executed on behaif of the
Corporation by authority of its .—jaﬂ.rr..' ol HMrectors and its; Shereholidsr=
entitled to vote; and the said John V. Hanson ard Ellioct E. Cooper
acknowledged the execution of said fnsirument to bz the wvoluntaryr
act and deed of said Corperation Ty 1t and by them voluntarily

executed,
I .

Ak AT T b
&nd for Winnmebsgo County,

4y

Iowa

oFF s O F THE A
Tt medeymgat rervrdnd fn B o i -ld: ik
YL/ FIP
I O I LIPS m-/

,.‘?__‘._-._ * Ruerding Bee ¥ L deg
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ARTICLES OF MERGER-. SCCRETAREF STarr
QF - oy
MAROFF CORPORATION

INTO
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

TO: Seeretary of State of the State of Jowa

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4964, T2 of the 1971 Code
of Towa, being the "Towa Business Corporation Act", the undersigned
adopts the following Articles of Merger for the merging ol Maroff
Corpoeration into Winnebago Industries. Inc., the surviving corporation:

ARTICLE I

Meroff Corporation, an Iowal corporation, shall be mérged
into Wirnebago Industries, Inc.. also an Iowa corporation, effective
February 25, 1873, with Winnebago Industries, [oc. being designated--
the gurviving corporation; that such merger shall be a complete liguidation;
that ppon the effective date of seid merger -all.property of Maroff
Corporation shall be thersupon transferrad to Winnebago Industries, Ioc.
and the stock in Maroff Corporation now held by Winnebago Industries, Inr.,
which constitotes gll outstanding stock of such subsidiary, shall be
surrendered and canceled. )

ARTICLE T
That the antstanding shares of Marcff Corporation consists of ane

class only, being common, and total 3,120 shares in number, all held
and owned by Winnebago Industries, Ine., the surviving corporation. s

2

P ot

ARTICLE I
3 That whereas Winnebago Industries, Inc., the surviving ecrpora Hen,
* ‘g the owher of all issued and cutstanding stock of Maroff Corporation, .
Winnebage Industries, Inc. has waived the mailing of a copy of the plan of
merger as would otherwise be reguired by law.

Dated this 20th day of February, 1973.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

a

e N e

Jphn v. f{mscu, President

e ; by .
ok R Elliott E. Cooper,
o BN e

" ! |:.'I ‘,..'_.




STATE OF IOWA ;
) ==
CCUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

On this 20th day of February, 1273, before me, Frank F.

a Notary Publie in and for said county, personally appeared

Sinnard,

John V. Hanson and Eliott E. Cooper, each to me perscnally known,
who being by me duly sworn did say that they are President and

Secretery, respectively, of Winnebago Industries, Inc.; that the seal

affixed théreto is the duly adopted seal of said corporation: that said
Articles of Merger was signed and exeuvuted on behalf of the Corporation
by the authority of its Board of Disectors, and that the said John V.

El;mson and Ellictt E. Cooper acknowledge execution of gaid instrument

to be the valuntary act aud deed of said Corparanon by it and by them

vulunta.rﬂyq m;e cuted. .

Vi
&

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Dwe Madnem, liewn
=LA Z n-mﬂ f-ﬂ g":.if'_!-..':..r_‘*_"-_ﬁ"t')“ 1wl

Toiak. i ._w
_5—1.,_1.._@- :J‘ ' %3@;9 T
. i

"-H'I'EI‘.:IT of S g
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ARTICLES OF MERGER
aF

= 35 s

STITCHCRAFT CORPORATION T @

INTO : i s

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC. =m B3 m

= : -

= m

l | mow O
TO: Secretary of State of the State of Iowa = g

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 496A. 72 of the 1871 Code
of Jowa, being the "lowu Business Corporation Act”, the underzigned
addptﬁ the following Articles of Merger for the merging of Stitcheraft
Corporation inio Winnebago Indusiries, Inc., the surviving corporation:

ARTICLE [

Stitcheraft Corporation, an Jowa corporztion, shall be merged

into Winnebago Industries, Inc., also an Jowa corporation, effective
February 23, 1873, with Winnebago Industries, Inc. being designated

the Burviving sorperction; that guch merger shall be a complete lguidailon;
that upon the effective date of sald merger all property of Stitchcraft
Corporation shall be therenpon transferred to Winnebago Industries, Inc.

and the stock in Stitcheraft Corporation now held by Winnebago Industries,
Ine., which congtitutes all outstanding gtock of such subsidiary, chall be
l surrendered zod canceled.

ARTICLE I

That the cutstanding shares of Stitchcraft Corporation consists of
one class only, being commeon, and totzl 137 shares in nomber, all held
and owned by Winnebapo Industries, Inc., the surviving corporation

ARTICLE TI

That whereas Witnebage Industries, Ine,, the surviving corporation,
is the owner of all issued and outatanding sleck of Stitcheraft Corporation,

Winnebago Industries, [nc. has waived. the rshalling of a copy of the plan of
merger as would otherwise be required by law.

Dated this 20th day of Febroary, 1973

WINKNE E-‘LC‘:D INDUSTRIES, INC.
\\\\'\1“" ; I AM-—-"
Uil US- . Jnh_n ‘.'. [-i;mscm, Prl:.'s.t.lmt
= :3. ll
- i .f, .'
fi:;i W
Flol anbIiip e _J.Lmtu,. Cmp"r, ':.a}t’r'eta.r-y
=i »:
Y o—
TP
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STATE OF IOWA

} B8
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

On this 20th day of February, 1973, belore me, Frank F.

l Sinnard, & Motary Public in snd for eaid county. perscnally appeared
John V. Hanson and Ellistt-E. Cooper, each to me persopally koown,
who being by me duly sworn did sey that they are President and
Secretary, respectively, of Winnebago industries, Inc.; that the geal
affived thereto is the duly adopted seal of said corporation; that said
A,rtEr_-Ilaa of Merger was signed and execmied on behalf of the Corporation
by the authority of its Board of Directors, and that the said Johe V.
Hanson and Eliiott E: Cooper acknowledge exr:cutiud of said i.ustrumam

to be the voluntary act and deed of said Corporation by it and by them
volurtarily executed.

b L el o

: ; : Frank F. Sinnard, Notary Public in and
for Winnebago County, Iowa.

"
STATE
GFFICE OF THE SECRETARY oF
Dhizs Slasiauss irvws 3 T
reenrdded i Hﬂ'll-g a‘?F&# ;.’r&_ﬂ -‘%LL e Mo ';'_119':;—3
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’ STATEMENT OF CHANGE OF RECETERED QFFIC
OF REGISTERED AGENT, OR BOTH,

Winnebagr Iridi STeies Ane.

To ith2 Secretary of State
of the State of Jowa:

a[ﬁi‘ﬁ% Businéss f_.c-rpm‘am:m Aefls

Pursuant to th- prov, fé&nn :
fithe laWs of the State of

E

} the undersigned corporationy S ES
: Torwe P slihm"ﬁﬂf: f{:’]!ﬁ'%ﬁ .a:Emen‘f for the purpose of
£ changing itz zeﬂf".stehtd c:-ﬂ'nfm"ﬁrﬂ 5 f | . in the
: tare of [owa: 5, =
z :
L3
£ I. The name mf th?. mrﬁci
! e ?‘% z ...F Jnt
i H. The addreésp cﬁ t5 p“‘"??ﬁr %‘ﬁ%’
” ey

Street. FEFPEHC:E;T"'-In 043
_’_%@{ﬂ?ﬁ =

JEwsiddress)-
P .:%LE- Siseen

g qa =
R

AAATR oy e

1. The aaiss

Iv. The nenie iif

i
;‘-, V.
F VII.. - -Such Chﬂﬁg_ d by its
; boa i :
{
; Dared
Er INDUSTRIES, INC. _ .
Al )
Pr-=sl<:lem
Srare Chf-_'_ JOws : :l
1&s

WINNEBAGO _County )

being firsr duly sworn on oarh,

President of Winnehaop
u"r:'d fie: foregoing inscrument as
tements contained [‘tereimﬁe_

¥ |
ﬂ"[l'j"! l"j "'r "ﬂ.'ﬁ-ﬂn/'l

L, Inhn Vv Henson &
depose and stae that T am ch
Industries, Ine, , and thal
Fresident of the corporadon,

]‘-:u.

A. D.
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ulrm IE mt. Inn.

INTO
WINNEBABO I[I[JUSTRIES. INC.

TO: Secretary of State of the State of Iowa

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 496A.72 of the 1579 Code of
Iowa, being the "lowa Business Corporation Act,” the undersigned,adopts
the following Articles of Merger for the merging of Winnfe-Vak: Inc. -
into Winnebago Industries, Inc., the surv:.ing corporation:

ARTICLE I

Winnie-Yak, Inc., an lowa corporation, shall be merged into Winnebaoo
Industries, Inc., alse an lowa corporation, effective Awgust 30,1980,
with Winnebago Industries, Inc. being desionated the surviving corporation:
‘that such merger shall be a complete ligufdation; that wpon the effective
date of said merger all property of Winnie-Vek, Inc. shall be thareupon
- transterred to Winnsbago Industries, Inc. and the stock.in Winnie-Vok,

Inc. now held by Winnebago Industries, Imc., which comstitutes 311
putstanding stock of 2uch subsfdiary, shall be surrendered and cancelled.

ARTICLE II

That the outstanding shares of Winnje-Vak, inc. consist of one
class only, being common, and total 60,000 shares in number, all held
and owned by Winnebage Industries, Imc., the surviving corporation.

ARTICLE III

That whereas Winnebago Industries, Imc., the surviving corporation,
iz the owner of a11 issued and owtstanding stock of Winnie-Vak, Inec.,
Winnebago Industries, Inc. has waived the mailing of a copy of thE plamn
of merger as would otherwize be required by Jdw.

Dated th'JS } E day of August, 1580.

uh;n’ K. H.unsun. Pres1den1:-

%ﬁ# he, Secretary
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To the Secretary of Staée ) ! ]
of the State of [owa: S A T

Pursuant ta the provisions of the [owa Business Corporztion Acty
the wndersigned corporation, organized under the Taws of the Sut&.nf
Towa , submits the following statement for the purss::s
ar changing 1ts registersd n“f:- or 1ts r'egis._::rad aﬁznt. or both, —ﬂ
ths Stats of [owa: (PLEASE NOTE FEE CHARGES AT BOTTOM

I. , The name of the corporation js Winmebago Industries, Inc. e

II. The address of its present registersd office 1=
Street, Forest City, Tow: 50436 (Winnebago County)
~ (01d Agdress)
-*[1I. The address to which {ts registered office is to, be :hanged E
Junction Highways 9 & 63, Forest City, Iowa 50436 (hlﬂﬁE‘JﬂGﬂ “Caiity )+
{Hew Address) W S
Raw{)ﬁd M. “Béabe. 1 s

‘145 South Clark.

o Y

V. The name of §ts present regfstered agent is

V. ~ The name of §ts successar registersd agent is Raymond M. Bezbe 4 .

S

.

¥I. The address af its registarad office end the add-nss = the ::-usmT_
affice of its regfstered agent, 35 changed, will be fﬁenn:a‘l i

VII. Such change was authorized by r“suauﬁﬂﬂ duly ndapted by 1t.. o& s
s of directors. i

x“-m 4 January 13,

3 %ﬁw z{

u: '-.

__MINGEBAGD ___ County

1,  John K. Hanson “'Ie'irg ﬁrst dl.r]_v SWORT of
depoce and state that | am e Fresident of _#iMnébagd 'mdus
it ; , ana that I exscuted the foregoing s-s:-
mant as Precident of the corporation, apd that the statements go-i1:

therein ars trus.
4 L
(54 /é'm

o)
Subscribed and sworn to beiore me _'1153?"'-1'!-'1 gay ot Jnnaaﬂ;
A. D 18 8l A ;

JOMESTT

FI"' E'l: )
=ing changed {rom one county to ur'"*.h-e-' .:
iz zppiies to Domestic (lowal

suitlilf

s




fi&k;zﬂiﬂé’f
Y -M

'aoCQSTQSQ_ _

"' o:. Basrdcacy of State of tha State of Iowa

. - Tursngnt to. tha m!idﬂlﬂ of Epction S96A.72 _-n'! the’ '15!.5_% ?f "

Towk, Saisp che “Tows Businsss Corporatisn Ast,” the undereipnsd adijis the.
follmiag Ar¢ictas of Mazger for the merping of Wimebsge Public Wereheusiog
Corporstiin ints Wimisbego Industriss. Inc.. the sscviving corporstiom: -

ARTICLE L

Winnsbago Public Warehousing Corporation, #n Iows corporatics, shall
be merged into Wimnsbago Industries, Inc., also an I corporatlon,
.affsctive January 3, 1586, wich Winoebago Industries. Inc. being Jesignated
the sorviving corporation; rhat such merger shall be & cowplete ldquidation;
thar apon the effmctive date of said merger 21l property of Tlansbago
Poblir Warshonsing Corpocution shall be thereupos traosfecrred to Winoebago
Indastriesa, Ipc, and the stock in Wimmebsgo Public Warehousing Cerperatiem
now hald by Winnebago Tndustries, Ioc., which consticuces all cutstanding
stock of such swheidiary, shall be surrendered and cencelled.

< ARTICLE IT
That tha outstanding sheres of Winoebaga Foblle Warehrusing Corporation

consisr af one cless enly, being comson, and tofal I5,000 shares in rumber,
all held and cwned by Winnebsgo Industries, InE.- the surviving corparacion.

TR T

ARTTCLE IIT

That whereas Wirmebage Industries, Inc., the svrviving corporation, Lls
the owner of all issued and oucacsnding stock of Wienebage Public Wershousing
Corporation, Wiansbage Industries, Inc. has waived the mailing of & copy of
the plan of merger ax would othervise be required by law.

Daced this Jrd day of Jamuary, 1985,

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, IMC. =

WM

Raywond M. Berbe, Secrerary

ky:
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Te the Secretary of State of the State of loma:

pursuent to the provisions of Secti
terpocetion Act, the undersigned corpora
of Anendment to

METICLES DF AMEMDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED -
! ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF W 3

B3 Y
ST I T, MAiign

RECEIVED
SECRETARY OF stare FER
15 59

gn 40BA.58 of the Tows Busingss
tion adopts the following Articles
its Amsnded and Restkted Articles of Incorporation:

{1} The name of the corporation 15 Winnebago Industries. Inc.

{2)

The sffective date of 1ts facorporation was tha 12th dmy
namy was Medermistic

of February, 1058, Tts eriaing
Irdustries of lows.

The following Amenduent of the Asended and Restoted
Articles of Incorporstion was adopted by the shareholders
of the corporation entitled to vote thereon on December 16.

1387 §n the mamner prascribed by the Iowe Business
Corporation Act: 2

The following Articie shall be addad a5 2 new
rrticle VII of the Amended and Restated Articles

of Incorporation of Winnebago Indus tries. Inc.:
“SETICLE Vil

A. HON=-LIABILITY
A director of this corporation shall not be
persana 11y 14able to the corporation or 1ts shargholders

for monetary gamages for breach of fiduciary duty as

a dirsctor except for Tiability (1) for eny breach of

the director's dul{ of loyalty to the corporation or

{ts sharsholders, [11) for acts or emrissions not in

good fafth or wiich involve intenticnal misconduct oF

knowing vielation of the taw, {111} for any transaction

from which the girector derivad an improper persanal

berefit, or (1v) under Sectiom §O5A. 44 of the lowa

pusiness Corpovation Act. o amendnent to or repesl

of this Article shall apply to or have any pffect

on the Makility or alieged 14ability of any directer

of the corporztion for or with respect to any ACLS

or omissions of such director pecarring prior to

cuch amendment or rapeal. If lowa law 1% hereafier
to permit further eliminetion or 1imitation

chan

of the ifability of directors for mongtary damsges
o the corporation or 1ts sharehoiders, then the
1iabiTity of @ director of this corperation shall
be eliminated or Timited to the full extent

then permitred.

B. IHDEMEIFICATION

This corporation shall {ndesel fy any persen who
is or ws @ direcior of the corperation or is or wWis
cerying {2t such time as ha or she 15 or was 2
director of the cgrporation) ot the request of this
corporation, as @ director, officer, partoers trustoee.
enployee or agent of apother corporation. partnership,
joint venture. trust, other enterprise or arpl DYRE
benef{t plan to the fullest extent possible ageinst
al] expenses, 1iabilities and loss (1ncluding attorneys”
fees, judgments, fines ar penalties and AmpUTLS paid
pr to be paid in cattlament], actuslly incurred by
syl persen relating to #ls or her conduct 35 3 director

T e e i

o ———ra




STATE OF 108

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGD

On this 17th day of December, 1987, before me, Shirlsy A. Rosalfus, |
a Notary Public in end for the State of [om, personilly appearsd Gerald W.
G11bert and Raymond M. Besbe, each to me nally known, who being by .
mg duly sworm, did say that they re President Secratary, respectively,

of Winnebsge Industries, Inc.; that the seal affized thereto 4s the doly -
id corporatim; thot said Articles of Avendmant to the -

}ss

adopted seal of 52
Asendod and Reste
- on behalf of the corpora
tagsharehniders entitled

=4 . Beebs acknowledged the oxecy

b act end cdeed of said corporation by 1t and by the

ted Articles of Incorporstion wes signed and exgouted
tien by euthority of 1ts Boérd of Mrectors and

to wotes and the soid Gerald M. Gflbert and .
tipn of sald Tnstrument te be the'
m volentarily

rlav K. Rosellus, hotary Public
in and for the State of Tows

s
OFFEL OF THE SERETART OF STATE
. K
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S'Ecrerafy of State foran
State of lowa | 10WA CORPORATION

Aaguired by lowa Cads chapler 483

£ 19371 25
Return thiy repor 1o the
~ Secratary of Stale 4
posimarked no [mter than
March 31, 1882,

1.-The name of the corporation, itz regislered ageni, and lis reglstared offlce.

490 DP-0%4181
WINHEBAGD INDUSTRIES, [HCs

RAYNOMD He DEERAE
HWYS @ L &7
FOREST CITY [A 50435

[Tons My msLm Changek 1 IR shlopmaiton eiraed A0e 18 1R bazw mp sl ]

D - Adriress ol 1he Principal Otfice of the Carporalion

':HHIGT{EN'H{E*IHHTEJ?-S-‘M
FOREST FITY 14 5047

605 West Crystal Lake Road

ELAINE BAXTER
Secrclary of Stato
Change Ine agdress 10: FiLED .
605 West Crystal Lake Road Statemeant of Change -
Dale: 2 - 4=
.Fu_r‘er_vL City, lowa Jt:!!_jﬁ Timds /.50
— Kret

3. stock Authorlzed and lasirnd

cLASS SERIES AUTHORIZED 153UED
Conman .- _ . 60,000,000 25,011,952

A e =

ATTENTION:

Compinte this section {f Mare is o
chsnge 1o tho current regltered agimt
and rogisterad olfics &3 prepintad in
ilem wno ol (his report,

|, Wema ol the new roglstared agonl:

[Ploase print)

X

[Signebue of nevy registered Ageni)
4 15 sedigin 6l 1B o rahiiaisd
olticainlownlz PO, Box 152

Spigal Addrass [A sirael addross v roqubred.
A pasl ofllce box mny Do poired )

Forest City, Inwa SO436
\City, S, Zip)

| 3. The signature ol B now reglstarnd
n.u-onl conglliulos ihe consent of the new
agent 1o the uppamtmn-nl..

4. The nemo of Ihe :orpnmﬂnnn and 1ha
address of 1ha current rogistarod agent
nnd rogiatnred office nre as stoind in
e Ane ol ihis anaual reper,

5, Aller any chango is made, Ihe
padraay of |he ragralarad alfice o Ina
Birginess addmas of the rogiioend agant
will b idenlicnl .

4, Doas Iha corparstian awn agrigulnal land in lown?

l *ﬂ; norea.

7. signen K

ygn..u,.; Tailm

Aapart must be sgoed by & pean psihorizen by tha
1

Page |

poard of diraclar? 1o sign the reporl.

YE5. tha corparallon awng I
e ranmper g1 asems] g "
'
5. s ihe cérpnrolion a "lamily larm carpaeainn?” ) :I YES I;! Nili
6. FILING FEE 18 ENCLOSED .....oiiaiinninannse oo i AT $30.00
\ %l...«l—g_, . S_egrr-,;_gc_tr}- | 515/582-3535

mons {ophioaal)

e s mE ateer e, e
o S T a
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ARTICLES OF MERGER y
OF et

NORTH I0WA ELECTRONICS, INC. '5/4""’0

INTO

WINMNEEAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
TO: Secretzry of Stat= of the Smte of Jowa

Purssant to the provisons of Secfions £50.1104 and 4501105 of the 1992 Cod= of
Iowa, heing the "lows Business Corparation Act® the undersipned adopts the fnllowing
Arficies of Merger for the merging of Novth Towa Elestrowics, fnc. inta Winnebago
Indurries, Inc., the surviving compomtion:

ARTICLE I

North Jowa. Elcctronics, Ine., ummmuwmww
Mmm.mmmm:ﬁ:m:NmmH 1064, with Winochasn

Indusrier, Ine. being decgnated the mrviving corporation; that such mesger shall bea
3 that vpon the effective date of id mesper all property of Nerth Jowa

complete Honidation;
Electronics, [ns. shall be thomupen ransfered o Winmchago Indusivies, Ine. and [he siock
in Morth Towa Elecoroaics, Inc. now held by Winnebago Indvgries, Inc, which constitutes
all putstanding sock of such mubgidiery, thall be mrrendered and canceled.
ARTICLE IT
That the oirsmanding thared of Noth Jows Electronics, Ine. comsivt of one class only,
being commen, and kofal 100 sheres in number, ell beld and owned by Winnebago
Inctiretriss, Ine., the srviving corporation.
ARTICLE IIX .
That wheress Wimmsbago (ndustrdes, Inc., the mrviving cotporation, i the owner of
mam-um;maxmmmm Winnehago Indngries, Inc.,
has waived the maifing ef 2 copy of the plan of mesper 25 would otherwiss be required by
law,

Daied this $14th éey of November, 1954

RGP 205 0.0

LL30940908, By




STATE OF JOWA )

Jus
' COUNTY OF EANCOCK )

On this I4th day of November, 1994, befor= me, Karen C. Jefton, & Notry Poblis in

-and for the State of Jows, pecsonally appezred Fred G, Dobrimrn and Raymond M. Becbe,

mbmmwhmwbhdngbymdﬂymd{dmﬁﬂﬁqmﬁcﬁdmt
and Secretary, mespectively, of Winnebapo Iodusties, fnc.; that the seal afffxed thersm it he
duly aflopted sl of said corparation; that said Articles of Mesger was sipned and exscuied
o bebalf of the Corporation by the aufiority of i3 Board of Directors, and that the £id Fred
G. Dobrrann 20d Raymand M. ﬁmmmamﬁ?nmmuh
veluatary act 2ad deed of said Corparation by it and by them volunarily cxacated.
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ARTICLES OF MERGER #ﬁ//a(;/;_ 5

OF
WINNEBAGO PRODUCTS, INC.
INTO
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

T0: Secretary of State of the State of Iowa

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 490, 1104 and 490.1105 of the 1995 Code of
Iowa, being the "Iowa Business Corporation Act,” the undersigned adopts the following
Articles of Merger for the merging of Winnebago Products, Inc. into Winnebago Industries,
Inc., the surviving corporation:

ARTICLE I

Winnebago Products, Inc., an Iowa corporation, shall be merged into Winnebago
Industries, Inc., also an Iowa corporation, effective September 20, 1995, with Winnebago
Industries, Inc. being designated the surviving corporation; that such merger shall be a
complete liquidation; that upon the effective date of said merger all property of Winnebago
Products, Inc. shall be thereupon transferred to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and the stock in
Winnzbago Products, Inc. now held by Winnebago Industries, Inc., which constitutes all

. outstanding stock of such subsidiary, shall be surrendered and canceled.

ARTICLE I

That the outstanding shares of Winnebago Products, Inc. consist of one class only,
being commen, and total 100 shares in number, 2l held and owned by Winnebago

Industries, Inc., the surviving corporation.

ARTICLE ITI
That whereas Winnebago Industnes, Inc., the surviving corporation, is the owner of

all issued and outstanding stock of Winnebago Products, Inc., Winnebago Industries, Ine.,
has waived the mailing of & copy of the plan of merger as would otherwise be reguired by

J&w- 0
Dated this 29th day of September, 1995.

R Tt T
R e o
.-l: '..-""-""-,.‘ ! -"- - /é
= &.-‘\. '..{{\ :‘ ‘ih Tt ij""_:_ﬁ/
% e red G./Dohfman e3fdent
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STATE OF IOWA J
}ss

COUNTY OF HANCOCK )

On this 29th day of September, 1995, before me, Karen C. Jefson, a Notary Public in
and for the State of Jowa, personally appeared Fred _G. Dohrmann and Raymond M. Besbe,
each to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn did say that they are President
and Secretary, respectively, of Winnebago Industries, Inc,; that the seal affixed thereto is the
duly adopted seal of said corporation; that said Articles of Merger was signed and executed
on behalf of the Corporation by the authority of its Board of Directors, and l;ha.t. the said Fred
G. Dohrmann and Raymond M. Beebe acknowledge execution of said instrument to be the

voluntary act and dﬂt.d of said Corporation by it and by them voluntarily executed.

P c *‘-‘-‘rp -
: S % cj( 1
L Jowa Karen C. Jefson, Nobary Public in and
1 g F for the Stzte of Towa
\."’ % ,*'-:
~.""';'R‘ML‘__E. N

' ' PAUL D. PATE
Secretary of Stata
FILED

Date: ZJ~R-/P5 5
Time: /7 /,
ﬂ;le.pgfq,zﬁf
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Articies of Amendment
iRCeIVia

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT WA
: aF
WpeEBAGO InpUsTRIES, Inc. CO{°AY I5 EHII: 06

<] /5

TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE COF THE STATE OF [OWA:

Pursuant to Section 1006 of the Jowa Business Corporation Act, the undersigned
corporation adopts the following amendments to the corporation’s articles of incorporation.

i. The name of the corporation is Winnebago Industries, Inc.
2. Armcle IV of the Articles of Incorporaton of Winnebago Indusnjéa. Inc., as
previously amended and restated, is forfher amended 1o read 2s follows:

Article IV

The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have anthority to issve
is: seventy million (70,000,000), of which sixty million (60,000,000) shall be shares of Common
Stock, $.50 par valne, and ten million (10,000,000} shall be shares of Preferred Stock, $.01 par

value (“Series Preference Stock”).

A starement of the designations and the powers, preferences and rights of such classes of
stock and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, the fixing of which by the Articles
of Incorporation is desired, and the anthority of the Board of Directors to fix, by resolution or
resclutions, the designations and the powers, preferences and dghts of such classes of stock or
the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, which are not fixed hereby, ar= as follows:

Proyisions Applicable to All Series of Series Preference Stock.

(1)  Shares of Series Preference Stock may be issued from time to time in one
or more seres. The voting powers, designations, preferences, limitations and relarive
rights of each series may differ from those of any and all other series already outstanding;
the texms of each series shall be specified in the resolution or resolutions hereinafter
refecred to; and the Board of Directors of the Corporadon is hereby expressly granted
authority to fix, by resolution or resclrtions adopted prior to the issuapce of any sharss of
a particnlar serjes of Series Prefersnce . Stock, the voting powers, designations,

Al

preferences, limitations apd relative dghts of sach series, including, bur withour hmiting

the generality of the foregoing, the following:

(a) The rate and times at which, apd the ferms and condidons on
which, dividends on the Series Preference Stock of such series shall be paid;

(&)  The right, if any, of holders of Seres Prefersnce Stock of such
series to convert the same into, or exchange the same for, other classes of stock of
the Corporation and the terms and condidons of such conversion or exchangs;

i
i

50, 00 0J¢
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{¢) The redempiion price or prices and the tirne at which, and the
terms and conditions on which, Serdes Preference Stock of such series may be

redeemed;

{d) The rights of the holders of Series Preference Siock of such series
upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dismibnton or sale of assers,
dissolution or winding op of the Corporation;

{e) - The veting power, if any, of the Series Preference Stock of such
series; and

{fi The terms of the sinking fund or ﬁemptimn or purchase account,
if any, 1o be provided for the Series Preference Stock of such series.

{2)  All shares of each series shall be identical in all respects to the other shares
of such Series. The rights of the Common Stock of the Corporation shall be subject to
the preferences and relative participating, optional and other special rights of the Series
Preference Stock of each series as fixed bherein and from time to time by the Board of

Direttors as aforesaid.

E. Provisions Applicable to Common Stock

(1) Afier the requirements with respect to preferental dividends wpon the
Series Preference Stock of all classes and seres thereof shall have been met and after the
Cuarperation shall have complied with all requirements, if any, with respect to the setting
aside of stms as a sinking fond or redemption or purchase account for the benefit of any
class or seres thereof, then, and oot otherwise, the holders of Common Stock shall be
entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared from time to time by the Board of

Directors.

(2)  After distibution in foll of the preferential amounts to be distribured to the
haolders of all classes and series thersof of Series Preference Stock then ounistanding in the
event of a volontary or involuntary liguidation, dissoluion or winding up of the
Corporation and subject any additional or special rights of the Series Preference Stock as
to the remaining assets of the Corporation for distdbution, the holders of the Common
Stock shall be enttled to receive the remaining assets of the Corporatdon available for
distribution to its shareholders ratably in proportion to tbc nomber of shares of Common

Stock held by them respectively.
{3}  Each holder of Common Stock shall hav- one vots in respect of each share
of such stock held by such holder.’

3. .The date of adopton of the amendment to Arricle [V was January 11, 2000.

4. The amendment o Article IV was approved by the shareholders. The designation,
number of cutstanding shares, number of voras antitled fo be cast by each voting group entitled

.




*3 vole separately on the amendment to Article I'V, and the number of votes of each voting group
adisputably represented at the meeting is as follows:

VOTES ENTITLED VOTES
DESIGMNATION SHARES TO BE CAST REFRESENTED
OF GREOUP OUTSTANDING O AMENDMENT AT MEETING
Zommon Stock, par 21,827,651 21,827,651 19,602,899
value £.50

44, The total. munber of votes cast for the amendment to, Article IV by each voting
wup eptitled to vote separately on the amendment to Article IV is as follows:

VOTING YOTES VOTES WoTES
GROUP ForR AGAINST ABSTAINED
-mmon Stock, $.50 par 12,108,884 4,561,968 2,932,047
valoe

' The number of votes cast for the amendment to Article IV by each voting group was
st. :ient far approval by that voting group.

2. . Atticle VI of the Amicles of Incorporation of Winnebagzo Industries, Inc.. as
‘zusly amended and restated is firther amended to read as follows:

pre

D1z ITORS

The nomber of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be
not : are than fifteen (15) and oot less than three (3), the precise aumber to be determined by
resc: . Zom of the Board of Directors from time to time.

Effective with the clection of the directors at the annual meeting of shareholders to be
held : 2000, the directors shall be classified, with respect to the time for which they severally
hold :ice, into three classes, as nearly equal in pumber as possible, as shall be provided in the
manr -- specified in the By-laws; one class to hold office inftally for a term expiring ar the
anpuz. meeting of shareholders to be held in 2001, ancther class to hold office nitially for a term .
expiri: at the annnal meeting of shareholders to be held in 2002, and another ¢lass o hold
office ‘+itially for a term expiring at the znnual meeting of shateholders to be hald in 2003, with
the re: - =ctive members of each class to hold office until their respective successors are elected
and qu-ified. At each annual meeting of shareholders commencing with the annnal meeting in
2001, =22 soccessors to the class of directors whose term then expires shall be slected to serve a
three-vz== texm and und] their snccessors are duly elected and qualified. No decrease in the
number >7 dirzetors shall have the effect of shortening the term of any inenmbent direcior. Anv
incresge srdecrease in the number of directors shall be apportioned among the classes so as to

maks all :lasses as pearly equal in number as possible,

Sharehalders may remove directors only for cavse,

.




MNotwithstanding zeything contained bersin to the contary, the affirmative vote of the
holders of seventy-five percent (73%) of all issued and outstanding shares of the Corporation
entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class, shall be required to alter, amend or
adopt any provisions imconsistent with, or repeal this Article VI or any provision hereof at any
annual or special meeting of shareholders.

3. The date of adoption of the amendment to Article VI was January 11, 2000.

4. The amendment to Article VI was approved by the shareholders. The designation,
number of outstanding shares, number of votes entitled to be cast by each voting group entitled
tn vote separately on the amendment to Article VI, and the number of votes of each voting group
indisputably represented at the meeting is as foliows:

VOTES ENTITLED VOTES
DESIGNATION SHARES TO BE CasT REPRESENTED
OF GROUP OUTSTANDING ON AMENDMENT AT MEETING
Common Stock, par '213827, 651 21827651 19,602 899

value .30

44,  The total number of votes cast for and ageinst the amendment to Article VI by each
voting group endtled to votz separately on t{:n: amendment to Article VI is as follows:

VOTING VoOTES VOTES , YOTES
GROUP For AGATNST ABSTAINED
Common Stock, $.50 par 11,981,563 4714699 2,906,637
valne ‘

The number of votes cast for the amendment to Aricle VI by each voting sroup was
sufficient for approval by that voting group,

The effective date and time of this document is the ime of filing on the date itis filed.

o WINNMEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

7 med .
R G 0 HFED
SECRETARY OF STATE By D %

. &
e ~ () Bruce D. Hertzke
5—“}5‘ ﬁm Chairman of the Board,
el - Chief Executive Officer and
W240286 President
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” Articles of amendment

ARTICI ES OF AMENDMENT 55_;:_-;”5
of ' 11 gg

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC, 44/5?&,/

TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF [OWA:

Pursuant to Section 1002 of the Jowa Business Corporation Act the undersigned

corporation_adopts the following amendment to the corperatien’s articles of incorporation:
I. .The name of the corporation is Winnebago Induostries, Inc.

2. The Articles of Incorporation of Winnebago Indusiries, Inc., as previously amended
and restated are forther amendment by adding the following:

_CER‘TEIEATE OF DESIGNATIONS - 3
OF §
SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK
OF

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

(Pussnant to Section 490,602 of the
" Iowa Business Corporation Act)

Winnebago Industres, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the Towa Business
Corporation Act (hereinafter referred o as the “Corporation™), herehy certifies that the
following resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (hereinafter
referred to as the “Board of Directors™) pursnant to Section 490.602 of the Jowsa Business
Corporation” Act at 2 meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 3, 2000:

RESOLVED, thar pursuant to the anthority granted to and vested in the Beard of Directors
in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation and Jowa
law, the Board of Directors bereby creates a series of the Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per
share (hereinafter referred to as the “Preferred Siock™), of the Corporation and hereby states the
designation and number of shares, and fixes the relative rights, prefersnces and limitations
thereof as follows:

SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK:

Section 1. Designarion and Amours. The shares of such series shall be designated as
“Series A Prefemed Stock” (bereimafter referred o as the “Series A Preferred Sicck™) and the

106703501053 g /(;\
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number of shares constituting the Serjes A Preferred Stock shall be 300,000, Such number of
shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided, however,
that no decrease shall reduce the number of shares of Series A Preferred Steck to a number less
than the number of shares then outstanding plus the number of shares reserved for issnance upon
the exercise of outstanding options, rights or warrants or upon the conversion of any putstanding
securities i55ued by the Corporation convertible into Series A Preferred Stoclk.

Section 2.  Dividends and Distribusions. (A) Subject to the rights of the holders of any

shares of any series of Preferred Stock (or any similar stock) ranking prior and supedior to the
Series A Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the holders of chares of Series A Preferred
Stock, in preference to the holders of Common Stock, par value $.50 per share (hereinafter
referred to as the "Common Stock™), of the Corporation, and of any other juniar stock, shall be
entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of fonds legally
available for the purpose, guarterly dividends payable in cash on the first day of March, June,
Septernber and December in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a “Cuarterty
Dividend Payment Date™), commencing on the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date after the
first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, in an amount per share
(romunded to the nearest cent) equal to the greater of (a) $1.00 or (b) subject to the provision for
adjustment hereinafter set forth, 100 times the aggregate per share amount of 2l cash dividends,
and 00 times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all non-cash dividends or
other dismibuntions, other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock or a subdivision of
the outsianding shares of Commen Stock (by reclassification or otherwise), declared on the
Commeon Stock since the immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend Pzyment Dare or, with
respect to the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Dare, since the first issuance of any share or
fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock. In the event the Corporation shall at any time
declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effact
a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by
reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a
greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the amount to which
holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event under
clause (b) of the preceding sentence shall be adjusted by multiplying such amonnt by a fraction,
the numerator of which is the number of shares of Commen Stock outstanding immediately after
such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were

ourstanding immediate]y prior to such event,

(B) The Corporation shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series A Preferred

Stock as provided in paragraph (A) of this Section immediately after it declares a dividend or

dismbution on the Common Stock (other than a dividend payahle in shares of Common Stack);

provided that, in the event no dividend or distribution shall have been declared on the Common

_Stock during the pericd berwesn any Quarterly Dividend Payment Date and the pext subsequent

Quarterly Dividend Payment Dste, a dividend of $1.00 per share on the Sedes A Praferced Stock
shall pevertheless be payable on such subsequent Quarierly Dividend Payment Date.

{C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on ontstanding shares of Series A
Preferred Stock from the Quarterly Dividend Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of
such shares, unless the date of issue of such shares is prior 1o the record date for the first




Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue
from the date of issue of such shares, or unless the date of issue is a Quarterly Dividend Paymen:
Date or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of sheres of Seres A
Preferred Stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and before such Quarterly Dividend
Payment Dite, in gither of which events such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative
from such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear
imterest. Dividends paid on the shares of Series A Preferred Stock in an amount less than the
total amonnt of such dividends at the time accmed and pavable on snch shares shall be allocated
pro rata on a share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time ountstanding. The Board of
Dirsctors miay fix a record date for the determination of holders of shares of Sedes A Preferred
Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or distribution declared thereon, which record
date shall be not maore than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.

: Section 3.  Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Serfes A Prefiarred Stock shall have

the following voting righis:

(A)  Subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafier set forth, each share of

Series A Preferred-Stock shall emtitle the holder thereof to 100 vores on all matters
submitted to a vote of the shareholders of the Corporation. In the event the Corporation
shall at any time declare-or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of
Corfimon Stock, or effect a sobdivision or combination or consolidstion of the

- outstanding shares of Common Stock {by reciassification or otherwise than by payment
of a dividend in shares of Cornmen Stock) into 2 greater or lesser number of shares of
Conimon Stock, then in each such case the number of votes per share to which holders of
shares of Series A Prefemred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event shsll be
adjusted by multiplying such number by a fraction, the mumerator of which is the mumber
of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after sich event and the
denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding

immediately prior 1o such event.

(B} Except as otherwise provided herein, in any other Cegtificate of
Designations creating a series of Preferred Stock or any similar stock, or by law, the
bolders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock and the holders of shares of Commen Stock
and any other capital stock of the Corporation having general voting rights shall vots
together as onme class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders of the
Corporation.

{C)  Except as set forth herein, or as otherwiss provided by law, holders of
Series A Preferred Stock shall have no special votng rights and their consent shall net be
required (except 1o the extent they are entitled to vote with holders of Common Stock as

set forth herein) for the taking of any corporate action.
Section 4. Certain Restrictions. {A) Whenever goarterly dividends or other dividends

or distributions payable on the Series A Preferred Stock 2s provided in Section 2 are in arrears,
thereafier and untll all accrued and wnpaid dividends and distribations, whether or not declared,




-

on sheres of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full, the Corporation
shall not:

@) declare or pay dividends, or make any other distributions, on any shares of
stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding

up) to the Series A Preferred Stock;

daclare ar pay dividends, or make any other distributions, on zny shares of
stock ranking on a parity (either as to dividends or upen liguidation, dissolution o
winding up) with the Series A Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the
Series A Preferred Stock and all such parity stock on which dividends are payzble or in
arrears in proportion to the total ameunis to which the holders of all such shares are then
entitled; !

(i) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration shares of any
stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon lignidation, dissolution or winding
up) to the Series A Preferred Stock, provided that the Corporation may at any time
redesmn, purchase or otherwise acguire shares of any such junior stock in exchange for
shares of any stock of the Corporation ranking jumior (either as to dividends or npon
dissolution, liquidation or winding up) to the Seres A Preferred Stock; or

(iv) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of
Serits A Preferred Stock, or any shares of stock ranking on a parity with the Serdes A
Preferred Stock, except im accordance with a purchase offer made in writing or by
publication (as determined by the Board of Directors) to all holders of such shates opon
such terms as the Board of Directors, after consideration of the tespective anmuzal
dividend rates and other relative rights and preferences of the respective series and
classes, shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable treatment among the

(if)

respective series or classes.

(B) The Corporation shall not permit any subsidiary of the Corporation to purchase or
otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock of the Corporation unless the Corporation
could, under paragraph (A) of this Section 4, purchase or otherwise acquire such shares at such

- time and in spch manner.

Seérion 5. Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series A Preferred Stock purchased or
otherwise acquirad by the Corporation in any manner whatsoever shall be retired end cancelled
promptly after the acquisition thersof. AIl such shares shall upon their cancellation become
autharized but nnissned shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of
Presered Stock subject to the conditions and restrictions on issmance set forth herein, in the
Articles of Incorporation or in any other Certificate of Designations creating a series of Preferred
Ssock or any similer stock or as otherwise required by law. '

Section 6. Liguidarion, Dissolusion or Winding Up. Upon any liquidation, dissolution
tion shall be made (1) to the holders of shares of

or winding up of the Corporaticn, no distribu
stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liguidation, dissolution or winding up) to the




Series A Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holders of shares of Seres A Preferred Stock
shall have received $100.00 per share, plus an amount equal to sccrued and nnpsid dividends and
distributions theseon, whether or not declared, to the date of such payment, provided that the
holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be endtled to receive an aggregare amount per
share, subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafler set forth, equal to 100 tmes the
aggregate amount to be distributed per share to holders of shares of Common Stock, or (2) to the
heolders of shares of stock ranking on a parry (either as to dividends or npom lquidation,
dissolution or winding up) with the Series A Preferred Stock, except distributions made ratably
on the Series A Preferred Stock and all such parity stock in proportion to the total amounts to
which the holders of all such shares are entitled npon soch liquidation, disselution or winding op.
In the event the Corporation shall at any time declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock
payable in shares of Commeon Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination ‘or consclidation of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a
dividend in shares of Common Stock) into & greater or lesser number of shares of Common
Stock, then in each snch case the aggregate amount to which holders of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event under the proviso in clanse (1) of
the preceding sentence shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction the numerator
of which is the number of shares of Common Stock cuoistanding immediately after such event
and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were ountstanding

immediately pricr to such event.
Secfion 7. Consolidation, Merger, etc. [n case the Corporation shall enter into any
censolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the shares of Common Stock
are exchanged for or changed into other siock or securities, cash andfor any other property, then
in any such case each share of Sexies A Preferred Stock shall at the same tme be similarly
exchanged or changed fmto an amount per share, subject to the provision for adjusment
hersinafrer set forth, equal to 100 tmes the aggresarte amount of stock, securities, cash andfor
any other property (payable in kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each share of
Ceommon Stock is changed or exchanged. In the event the Corporation shall at any time declare
or pay any dividend o the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effect a
snbdivision or combination or consolidation of the ountstanding shares of Common Stock (by
reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) inta a
greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the amount set forth
in the preceding sentence with respect to the exchange or change of shares of Series A Preferred
Stock shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction, the numerator of wich is the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the
depominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were cutstanding

immediately prior to such event

Section 8. No Redemption. The chares of Sesies A Preferred Stock shall not he

redesmable.
Section 8. Rank. The Seres A Prefemed Stock shall rank, with respect to the payntent
of dividends and the distributicn of assets, junior to all series of any other class of the Preferred

Stock of the Corporadon.




Section 10.  Amendment. The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation shail not be
amended in any manner which would materially alter or change the powers, preferences or
special rights of the Series A Prefemed Stock so as to affect them adversely without the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the owtstanding shares of Series A

Preferred Stock, voting together as a single class.
3. Thedate of adoption of the amendment was May 3, 2000.
4. - The amendment was adopted by the Board of Directors withont action by ﬁ]g
sharsholders. )
The effective date and time of this docament is the time of filing on the date it is filed.

WINNEEAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

.B}r @sﬁrﬁ%f% _

Bruce D. Hertzke ¢/

Chairman of the Board,
. Chief Execntive Officer and President
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WINNEBAGO HEALTH CARE MANAGEMENT COMPANY g
INTO =

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC. 8
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TO:  Secretary of State of the State of lowa

Pursuant to the provision of Sections 450, 1104 and 490.1103 of the Code of Jowa, being the "Tgwa
Business Corporation Act,” the undersigned adopts the following Articles of Merger for the merging 5
Winnebago™ Health Care Management Company intc Winnebago Indestnes, Imc., the swviving-

corporation:

8531603

ARTICLE 1

Winnebago Health Care Management Company, an Iowa corporation, shall be merged into
Winnecbago Industries, Inc., also an fowa corporation, effective May 1, 2006, with Winnebago Industries,
Inc. being designated the surviving corporation; that such merger shall be a complete fiquidation; that
upon the effective date of said merger all property of Winnebago Health Care:Managemem Company shall
be thereupon transferred to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and the stock in Winnebago Healih Cars
Managemen: Company now held by Winnebago Industries, Inc., wtuch constitutes ail outsanding stock

of such subsidiary, shall be surrendered and canceled.

oW
o™

ARTICLE II
All ourstanding shares of Winnebago Health Care Management Company, consisting of ane class
only, being commen, are held and owned by Winnebago Industries, Inc., the surviving corporation.
ARTICLE III
That whereas Winnehago Industries, Inc., the surviving corporation, is the owner of all issued and
outstanding steck of Winnebago Health Care Management Company, Winnebago Industries, Inc. has
waived the mziling of a copy of the plan of merger a5 would otherwise be required by law.

Dated this 1% day of May, 2006
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

o T —

Edwin F. Barker, President

w RaumondM Besbe Secretary

@
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STATE OF IOWA )
Jss:

COUNTY OF HANCOCK )

On this 1% day ofL-fay, 2006, before me, Karen C. Jefson, a Notary Pﬁh].ic in and for
the State of lowa, personally appeared Edwin F. Barker and Raymond M. Beshe, each to me
personally kmown, who being by me duiy sworn did say that they are President and Secretary,
respectively, of Winnebago Industries, Inc.; that the seal affixed thereto s the duly adopted
seal of said corporation; ﬁ:atsﬁd Axticles of Merger was signed and executed om behalf of the
Corporation by the anthoriry of its Board of Directors, aad that the said Edwin F. Barker and

Raymond M. Besbe acknowledge execution of said Instriment to be the voluutarjr-a:t and deed

of said Corporaticn by it and by them voluntarily executed.

ﬂémuﬁgb%wﬂ/

Karen C. Jefson, NbtaryZPublic in and for
the State of lows

KAREN C. JEFSCN

£Fa.% | comnssion no, 151407
¥ F | MY COMMISSION EXCIRES
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ARTICLES OF MERGER cesis, EL{ 'SFF STATH
OF
WINNEBAGO ACCEPTANCE CORPORATIONA J4} 28 AH1i: {3
INTO :

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

TO:  Secretary of State of the State of Jowa

Pursnent to the provision of Sections 490. 1104 and 490.1105 of the Code of lowa, being the “lowa
Business Corporation Act,® the undersigned adopis the following Articles of Merger for the merging of
Winnebago Acceptance Corporation imto Winnebago Indusiies, Inc., the surviving corporation:

ARTICLEI

Winpebazo Accepiznce Corporarion, an Iowa corporation, shall be merged into Winnehago
Indpseries, Inc., also an Jowa corporation, effective January 25, 2008, with Winnebago ndustdes, Inc.
being designated the sarviving corperation; that such merger shall be a complete Hquidaton; that upon
the effective date of said merger zll properzy of Winmebago Acceptance Corporation shall be therevpon
transferred to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and the stock in Winnebigo Acceptance Corporation now held
by Winnebago Industries, Ioc., which constitutes sll cutstanding stock of such subsidiary, shall be

surrendered and capnceled.
ARTICLE IF

- All cnmta.ud’mgshamé of Winnebago Acceptance Corporztion, consisting of one class only, being
" eommon, are held and owned by Winnebago Industriss, Ine., the surviving corporation.

ARTICLE IT

That whereas Winnebazo Industries, Inc., the surviving corparation, is the owner of all issued and

outstanding stock of Winnebago Acceptance Corporztion, Winpebago Industries, Inc. bas waived the
mailing of a copy of the plan of merger as would otherwiss be required by law.

Dated this 25th day of JTannary, 2008
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

By: CA\ et Q- @lﬂ«u

Rabért J. Olsgn, President

S

Raymond M. Baebe, Secretary

50,00 KELLY 2 1728403
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STATE OF IOWA 3
Jss:

COUNTY OF HANCOCE  }

On this 25™ day of Jannary, 2008, before me, Karen C. Jefson, a Notary Public in and for the
State of Jowa, perscnally appeared Robert J. Olson and Raymond M. Besbe, :.achl o me personaily
known, who being by me duly swom did say that they are President and Secretary, respectively, of
Winnebago Industries, Inc.; that the seal affized thereto is the duly adopted seal of said corporation; that
said Arficles of Merger was signed and execurad on behalf of the Corporation by the autharity of its Board
of Directors, and that the said Robert 1. Olsan and Raymond M. Besbe acknowledge execotion of said

instrument to be the volontary act and desd of said Corporation by it and by them volunmsily executed.

Krrrre Qi

Karen C. Jefson, Notery Foblic jn'and for the
State of Jowa

« | KAREN C. JEFSON
= | COMMISSION MO, 151407
2 1 Wy COMMISSION EXFIRES
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
at August 25, 2018

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction of Percent of
Name of Corporation Incorporation Ownership
Winnebago Industries, Inc. lowa Parent
Winnebago of Indiana, LLC lowa 100%
Grand Design RV, LLC Indiana 100%
Octavius Corporation Delaware 100%
Chris-Craft Limited Jersey, Channel Islands Holding Company LLC Jersey Channel Islands 100%
Chris-Craft USA, Inc. Delaware 100%
CC Marine Brand Acquisition LLC Delaware 100%
Chris Craft Corporation Delaware 100%
CC Property Acquisition LLC Delaware 100%



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 333-31595, No. 333-47123, No. 333-113246, No. 333-194854 and No. 333-
222261 on Form S-8 and No. 333-210659 and No. 333-215641 on Form S-3 of our reports dated October 18, 2018, relating to the consolidated financial
statements of Winnebago Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of Winnebago Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Winnebago Industries, Inc. for the year ended August 25, 2018.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 18, 2018



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael J. Happe, Chief Executive Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this Annual Report fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this Annual Report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in this case) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant's internal control over financial reporting;

5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

Date:

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over

financial reporting.

October 18, 2018 By: /s/ Michael J. Happe
Michael J. Happe

President, Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bryan L. Hughes, Chief Financial Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this Annual Report fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this Annual Report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in this case) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant's internal control over financial reporting;

5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: October 18, 2018 By: /s/ Bryan L. Hughes

Bryan L. Hughes
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, Michael J. Happe, Chief Executive Officer of
Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certify that to my knowledge:

a. The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 25, 2018 (the "Report") of the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

b. The information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 18, 2018 By: /s/ Michael J. Happe
Michael J. Happe

President, Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, |, Bryan L. Hughes, Chief Financial Officer of
Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certify that to my knowledge:

a. The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 25, 2018 (the "Report") of the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

b. The information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 18, 2018 By: /s/ Bryan L. Hughes
Bryan L. Hughes

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



